
North Wales Economic Ambition Board

Meeting

NORTH WALES ECONOMIC AMBITION BOARD

Date and Time

1.00 pm, FRIDAY, 15TH NOVEMBER, 2019

Location

County Hall, Ruthin 

Contact Point

Annes Sion
01286 679490

AnnesSion@gwynedd.llyw.cymru
(DISTRIBUTED 08/11/19)

Complete Agenda



NORTH WALES ECONOMIC AMBITION BOARD

MEMBERSHIP OF THE JOINT COMMITTEE 

Voting Members

Councillors

Hugh Evans Denbighshire County Council
Llinos Medi Huws Isle of Anglesey County Council
Mark Pritchard Wrexham County Borough Council
Ian B. Roberts Flintshire County Council
Dyfrig L. Siencyn Gwynedd Council
Sam Rowlands Conwy County Borough Council

Advisers - Non-voting 

Dafydd Evans Grwp Llandrillo Menai
Maria Hinfelaar Glyndwr University
David Jones Coleg Cambria
Jim Jones North Wales and Mersey Dee 

Business Council
Askar Sheibani Business Delivery Board
Professor Iwan Davies Bangor University

Chief Officers - Non-voting 

Annwen Morgan Isle of Anglesey County Council
Iwan Davies Conwy County Borough Council
Colin Everett Flintshire County Council
Judith Greenhalgh Denbighshire County Council
Ian Bancroft Wrexham County Borough Council
Dilwyn Williams Gwynedd Council

Officers in Attendance

Dafydd L. Edwards Section 151 Officer
Iwan G. Evans Monitoring Officer



A G E N D A

1.  APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence.

2.  DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST

To receive any declarations of personal interest 

3.  URGENT BUSINESS

To note any items that are a matter of urgency in the view of the Chair for 
consideration.

4.  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 4 - 7

The Chair shall propose that the minutes of the meetings held on 18th of 
October 2019 be signed as true records  (attached).

5.  GROWTH DEAL UPDATE 8 - 9

Report by Colin Everett, Lead Chief Executive (North Wales Economic 
Ambition Board)

6.  ESF FUNDING APPLICATION 10 - 13

Report by Nia Medi Williams  (Senior Executive Officer, Cyngor Gwynedd) 
and 
Barbara Burchell (Principal European Project Development Officer, Conwy 
County Borough Council)

7.  REGIONAL SKILLS AND EMPLOYMENT PLAN 14 - 122

Report by David Roberts (Chair of North Wales Regional Skills Partnership) 
and
Sian Lloyd Roberts (Skills Programme Manager)

8.  NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK 123 - 133

Report by Andrew Farrow, Chief Officer (Planning, Environment and 
Economy Flintshire County Council)  and Graham Boase (Corporate 
Director: Economy and Public Realm, Denbighshire County Council)



NORTH WALES ECONOMIC AMBITION BOARD 18/10/19

NORTH WALES ECONOMIC AMBITION BOARD 18/10/19

Present:

Voting Members - Councillors:- Hugh Evans (Denbighshire Council), Llinos Medi Huws (Isle of 
Anglesey County Council), Ian Roberts (Flintshire Council), Sam Rowlands (Conwy County 
Borough Council) and Dyfrig L.Siencyn (Gwynedd Council) (Chair).

Advisors – Dafydd Evans (Grŵp Llandrillo Menai), Maria Hinfelaar (Glyndwr University), Bryn 
Jones (Bangor University), Jim Jones (North Wales Mersey Dee Business Council) and Askar 
Sheibani (Business Delivery Board).

Chief Officers - Annwen Morgan (Isle of Anglesey County Council), Iwan Davies (Conwy County 
Borough Council), Andrew Farrow (Flintshire Council), Graham Boase (Denbighshire Council), 
Steve Bayley (Wrexham Council) and Dilwyn Williams (Gwynedd Council).  

Officers in attendance - Dafydd Edwards (Statutory Finance Officer), Iwan Evans (Monitoring 
Officer), Jane Richardson (Chair of the Executive Officers Group) and Eirian Roberts (Democratic 
Services Officer).

Jane Richardson, Chair of the Executive Officers Group, was welcomed to the meeting and 
thanked for taking over the reins temporarily.

1. APOLOGIES

Councillor Mark Pritchard (Wrexham County Borough Council), Professor Iwan Davies 
(Bangor University), David Jones (Coleg Cambria), Colin Everett (Flintshire Council), Judith 
Greenhalgh (Denbighshire Council) and Ian Bancroft (Wrexham Council).

2. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 

No declarations of personal interest were received. 

3. URGENT ITEMS 

None to note. 

4. MINUTES 

The Chair signed the minutes of the previous meetings of the NWEAB held on 6 and 20 
September 2019 as a true record. 

5. UPDATE ON THE NWEAB WORK PROGRAMME AND PROGRAMME OFFICE 
PREMISES 

The report was submitted by Jane Richardson, Chair of the Executive Officers Group.

RESOLVED
1. To accept the report on the Work Programme subject to reviewing and updating 

the RAG status of each task within the Work Programme by the next meeting, 
and asking the Executive Officers Group to review the format of the table when 
the Programme Director is in post.

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



NORTH WALES ECONOMIC AMBITION BOARD 18/10/19

2. To confirm the intention to re-advertise the post of Chair of the Business 
Delivery Board.

3. To approve the Transitional Plan.
4. To authorise the Accountable Body to enter into a lease of the premises at 

Conwy Business Centre in accordance with the report and to agree other terms 
on the basis of advice from the Accountable Body's Head of Property 
Department, in consultation with the Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance 
Officer.

REASONS FOR THE DECISION

Update progress of the Work Programme tasks and ensure that the table content is clearer.
Report on the Transitional Plan as a supporting document to the Work Programme until the 
Programme Director had started in post.
The NWEAB needed to identify a suitable office space for the Programme Office.

DISCUSSION

Further to preparing the report, the Chair of the Executive Officers Group noted that both 
the UK and Welsh Governments were now happy with the Heads of Terms and were 
awaiting confirmation around arrangements to formally sign the Heads of Terms.  A press 
release had been drafted and an internal press release was also being prepared.  

During the discussion the following matters were raised:
 The Leader of Flintshire Council noted that he had not been invited to the first 

meeting of the Transport sub-group.
 The Chief Executive of Gwynedd Council noted that a sufficient pool of candidates 

had not been received for the post of Chair of the Business Delivery Board. It was 
recommended that the post be re-advertised, and to notify the original candidates 
that their applications would still be considered. It was agreed to review the 
advertisement and the information about the role to ensure that they hit the right 
note. The importance of appointing a leader who was well-known in the area and 
regionally was stressed, and it was suggested that a discussion be held with the 
Chair of the Shadow Board to see how best to attract candidates. The business 
community was encouraged to promote this opportunity also.  

 It was noted that the officers were aiming to submit the Business Plan for ESF 
funding to WEFO by 31 October, but it was asked what would happen should Britain 
leave the European Union on that date. The Chair of the Executive Officers Group 
was asked to discuss this with her colleagues at Conwy Council who specialised on 
Brexit matters.

 Concern was expressed that the private sector did not understand the timeframe 
and, although they were ready to start their plans, they were unable to develop the 
five case business models for the Growth Deal projects until the Heads of Terms 
had been signed formally. It was noted that the delay had been caused by both 
Governments and that the North Wales Growth Deal had faced more obstacles than 
other deals in other regions. It was emphasised that the message regarding the 
timeframe needed to be communicated to the business community and the Chair of 
the Executive Officers Group agreed to include a note to that effect in the press 
release.

 It was noted that the information on the columns of the table noting the progress on 
the various plans in the work programme was ambiguous and a request was made 
for the format of the document to be reviewed and, possibly, to set it out in more of a 
narrative format. It was agreed to pass on this comment to the Executive Group.

Page 5



NORTH WALES ECONOMIC AMBITION BOARD 18/10/19

 It was noted that the work programme did not refer to the process following the 
signing of the Heads of Terms and that it would be beneficial to know what the 
timeframe was over the next 12 months.

 Concerns were expressed about the gaps in the National Development Framework 
which was out to consultation by Welsh Government at present, and it was agreed 
to include the matter on the agenda of the Board meeting on 15 November.

 It was suggested that the Transitional Plan was more of a work plan than a 
transitional plan. It was explained that the document would evolve to be a work plan 
in due course, but that it would only be in use for a few months.

6. REVENUE BUDGET 2019-20 - SECOND QUARTER REVIEW (SEPTEMBER 2019) 

The report was submitted by Dafydd Edwards, Statutory Finance Officer of the Host 
Authority.

RESOLVED
1. To receive the Joint Committee's (North Wales Economic Ambition Board) 

Second Quarter Review for 2019/20. 
2. To obtain the Joint Committee's approval for the budget virements set out in 

the last column of Appendix 1.
3. To note and accept the present position on the 2020/21 Budget.

REASONS FOR THE DECISION

There was reduced forecast expenditure on project planning (less work commissioned 
externally and lower cost of employing staff) than originally estimated, but it appeared that 
capitalisation of salaries would not now be possible in 2019/20. The consequent net 
expenditure of the NWEAB was affordable within the current partner contributions, but was 
dependent on obtaining the ESF grant funding from WEFO.

7. REGIONAL BUSINESS SUPPORT 

The report, as well as a PowerPoint presentation, was submitted by Jane Richardson, Chair 
of the Executive Officers Group.

RESOLVED to accept that the preparatory work continues as outlined in the report 
but, in the meantime, send a message to the Minister for Economy and Transport 
expressing that the proposed model does not meet the needs of the private sector in 
North Wales.

REASONS FOR THE DECISION

The business community wished to see one delivery body for North Wales and the 
proposed model did not comply with the aspirations of the region's businesses.

DISCUSSION

During the discussion, the following matters were raised:

 The importance of engaging with the private sector and not repeat past mistakes 
was stressed.

 Several members expressed concern that the proposed model did not comply with 
the aspirations of the region's businesses, who wished to see one delivery body for 
North Wales. It was noted that there was a need to be far more adventurous and 
ambitious and invest in a more suitable model. It appeared that the Minister did not 
want that, but it was stressed that he should be challenged on that. It was agreed to 

Page 6



NORTH WALES ECONOMIC AMBITION BOARD 18/10/19

send a message to the Minister expressing that the proposed model did not meet 
the needs of the private sector in North Wales. In the meantime, it was accepted 
that the preparatory work outlined in the report should proceed.

The meeting commenced at 1.00 pm and concluded at 2.50 pm

CHAIRMAN

Page 7



REPORT TO THE NORTH WALES ECONOMIC AMBITION BOARD
15 NOVEMBER, 2019

TITLE: North Wales Growth Deal Update Report 

AUTHOR: Colin Everett, Lead Chief Executive – North Wales Economic Ambition Board

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1.1. The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the development of the North Wales Growth 
Deal. The report is structured according to the key activities. 

2. DECISION SOUGHT

2.1. Members are asked to accept this update report on the development of the North Wales Growth 
Deal. 

3. REASONS FOR THE DECISION

3.1. As set out in the report.

4. HEADS OF TERMS

4.1. Representatives from the NWEAB joined the Welsh and UK Governments to sign the Heads of 
Terms on 04/11/2019. The Heads of Terms confirm the overall investment of £240m in the seven 
strategic programmes for the North Wales Growth Deal. 

4.2. The NWEAB released a joint press release with UK and Welsh Government, additionally an internal 
statement and F&Qs document was shared with all NWEAB partners. 

5. PROGRAMME OFFICE

5.1. 5 appointments have been made to the Programme Office. The Digital Programme Manager will 
start in post on the 18th of November, the Energy Programme Manager on the 9th December, and 
the remaining 3 posts (Programme Director, Operations Manager and Land and Property 
Programme Manager) will start their posts on 1st January 2020. 

5.2. The Programme Office will evolve over time, and capacity for this will be included within the 
application for ESF Funding. 

6. GOVERNANCE AGREEMENT 2

6.1. Officers attended a Workshop led by Pinsent Masons on Governance Agreement 2 on 23rd of 
October 2019. During the workshop Officers worked through key high level partnership and 
governance elements. Pinsent Masons will now work on the draft Governance Agreement 2. 

Page 8

Agenda Item 5



7. 5 CASE BUSINESS MODELS

7.1. The Programme Office will lead on the development of the 5 Case Business Models for the Growth 
Deal Projects, the budget includes funding to appoint Consultants to support with developing the 
Business Cases. This work will commence once the Programme Office staff are in post. 

8. WORK PROGRAMME AND RISK REGISTER

8.1. Following the discussion at the previous meeting, Officers are working on reviewing and updating 
the Work Programme, a revised version will be presented to the NWEAB during December. 

8.2. The Executive Officers Group are managing the active risks within the Risk Register, the Executive 
Group will task the Programme Office to review the Risk Register during the New Year. 

9. FUTURE MEETING DATES

9.1. Below is a list of the proposed meeting dates for 2020: 

January 24th 2020
March 20th 2020
June 12th 2020
31st July 2020
2nd October 2020
11th December 2020

10. CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN

10.1. The Work Programme and Risk Register was discussed by the Executive Officers Group on 25th 
October, 2019. 

STATUTORY OFFICERS RESPONSE:

i. Monitoring Officer – Accountable Body:

“No observations to add from a propriety perspective”

ii. Statutory Finance Officer (the Accountable Body’s Section 151 Officer):

“I confirm that I have agreed the report’s content with the author.  Further comments, as 
necessary, will be presented orally at the Board meeting.”

Page 9



REPORT TO THE NORTH WALES ECONOMIC AMBITION BOARD
15 NOVEMBER, 2019

TITLE: ESF Institutional Capacity Building Application

AUTHOR: Nia Medi Williams - Senior Executive Officer, Cyngor Gwynedd
Barbara Burchell – Principal European Project Development Officer, Conwy County 
Borough Council

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1. The purpose of the report is to outline the Business Plan proposal by the NWEAB to WEFO for 
funding from the ESF Institutional Capacity Building Priority of the European Structural and 
Investment Funds.

2. DECISION SOUGHT

2.1. Delegate authority for Gwynedd Council acting as Host Authority to prepare and submit the 
Business Plan to WEFO on the basis set out in the report. 

2.2. Delegate the authority to the Chief Executive of the Host Authority in consultation with the 
NWEAB Lead Chief Executive and the Host Authority Section 151 Officer to accept a WEFO grant 
offer based on 50% of the total project cost (£5.4 million) for the period July 2018 up until June 
2023. 

2.3. Confirm that the NWEAB accepts that it will contribute match funding at 50% primarily by a 
combination of capitalisation of project costs and core budget (from partner contributions).

3. REASONS FOR THE DECISION

3.1. As set out in the report.

4. BACKGROUND AND RELEVANT CONSIDERATIONS

4.1. Background

4.1.1. The Executive Support Group have been working on a European Social Fund (ESF) application to 
design and build the necessary capacity for delivering the North Wales Growth Vision. 

4.1.2. The initial stage of the application, the Operation Logic Table (OLT) has been completed, and WEFO 
confirmed that the NWEAB could move forward into the Business Planning Stage.

4.1.3. The Executive Officers Group have developed the detail for the Business Plan (ESF Application). 
The draft Business Plan will be submitted to WEFO following approval of this report by the NWEAB. 

4.2. ESF Funding

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



4.2.1. Priority Axis 5: Public services reform and regional working

4.2.2. The funding application is for the Priority 5: Public services reform and regional working. 

4.2.3. This Priority Axis is focussed around Thematic Objective (11) – Institutional Capacity Building). The 
justification for the priority axis is as follows: There is an increasing evidence base pointing to the 
importance of institutional capacity as a factor affecting the relative success of regional 
investments (OECD). Having the right capacity in place can therefore magnify the effect and impact 
of regional investments; with ineffective arrangements having a negative effect. As such, a lack of 
capacity in Welsh regions risks undermining investments made across the entire suite of European 
Structural and Investment (ESI) programmes in Wales and beyond. Effectively operating regional 
arrangements can better integrate investments in places and improve the effectiveness and impact 
of those investments both collectively and individually.

4.3. NWEAB Growth Vision Enabler Business Plan

4.3.1. The ESF Funding will provide funding to progress the development and delivery of the Growth 
Vision, through the establishment of a Programme Office. 

4.3.2. The Programme Office will be responsible for supporting the activities of the North Wales 
Economic Ambition Board and progressing key elements of the Growth Vision. The Programme 
Office model will be flexible and agile in its design and operations, which will evolve over time. 
This allows us to make a change by building regional capacity, to develop new ways of working 
that can underpin and deliver regional collaborative working into the future. 

4.3.3. The funding will allow the NWEAB to design and build the necessary capability and capacity at a 
regional (North Wales) level. This will support the shift towards regional governance and delivery 
of key functions to meet the ambitions of the North Wales Growth Vision and the Welsh 
Government through its own emerging Regional Framework. 

4.3.4. Initially the Programme Office will have key personnel part-funded through ESF grant to provide a 
backbone to the structure. To date the following have been appointed: Programme Director, 
Operations Manager, Digital Programme Manager, Energy Programme Manager and Land and 
Property Programme Manager. These key individuals will then be in a position to build further 
capacity in terms of improved collaborative working as the work of the Programme Office develops 
over time. 

4.3.5. The ESF funding application does include additional posts, namely Programme Managers (Skills, 
Transport and a General post), Programme/Project Officers (Skills, Digital, Energy, Regeneration, 
Transport, Land and Property), PR and Marketing Officer, Operational Officer, ESF Project 
Manager, and Project Support Officer. 3 of the posts listed will be graduate or higher 
apprenticeship posts.  

4.3.6. The majority of the appointments to the Programme Office will take place after signing the Final 
Growth Deal, for the purpose of the funding application we have estimated that the majority of 
the posts will be appointed to during January 2021. 

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1. The funding start date will be back dated to July 2018, and the funding end date will be June 2023. 
Back dating the start date to July 2018 will allow the region to claim retrospection for the Lead 
Director seconded to the NWEAB, and support by the Senior Executive Officer and Administrative 
Support. 

Page 11



5.2. The funding application to WEFO is as follows:

Cost Heading Cost
Staff Costs £3.9 million
Simplified Costs (40%) [to cover all other expenditure 
within the programme office]

£1.5 million

Total Project Cost £5.4 million
 

(Refer to 4.3.4, 4.3.5 and 5.1 above for details of the staff costs)

5.3. The NWEAB will submit regular financial claims to WEFO to draw down the ESF grant funding. 

5.4. The figures within this report are based on the eligible staff costs including eligible redundancy 
costs, and in accordance with WEFO grant conditions a standard amount calculated as 40% of the 
staff costs to cover all other expenditure within the project (training, indirect management costs, 
claim support costs, etc.), or for match funding, these are known as Simplified Costs.

5.5. The total project cost will be £5.4 million, of which £3.9 million are staff costs and £1.5 million 
simplified costs (i.e. to cover all other expenditure within the programme office). The ESF grant for 
the project will be £2.7 million (50% grant rate), with the remaining £2.7 million required as match 
funding provided by the NWEAB. The NWEAB match funding will primarily be a combination of 
capitalisation of project costs and core budget (from partner contributions). 

5.6. Redundancy costs will be applicable for this project, if staff employment contracts aren’t extended 
beyond the ESF Funding. The staff costs include the eligible redundancy costs for staff whilst 
employed in the programme office. There could be additional redundancy costs for the employees 
when taking into consideration their service from previous posts, the NWEAB should consider 
setting aside funds in a reserve for this purpose. 

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1. The applications for the funding and the acceptance of any offer of grant will be actioned by 
Gwynedd in its role as the host authority/accountable Body acting on behalf of and in 
accordance with the requirements of the NWEAB under GA1.

7. STAFFING IMPLICATIONS

7.1. As noted in the report. 

8. IMPACT ON EQUALITIES

8.1. None.

9. CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN

9.1. The Business Plan and the proposed staffing structure was discussed and approved at the 
Executive Officers Group on 25th October, 2019. 

STATUTORY OFFICERS RESPONSE:

Page 12



i. Monitoring Officer – Host Authority:

“The report appropriately sets out the key matters around progressing the application for 
ESF funding and the nature and implications of the proposed funding.”

ii. Statutory Finance Officer (the Host Authority’s Section 151 Officer):

“I have worked with the author in preparing this report and can confirm the accuracy of 
financial aspects of the content.”

Page 13



REPORT TO THE NORTH WALES ECONOMIC AMBITION BOARD
15 NOVEMBER, 2019

TITLE: North Wales Skills and Employment Plan 2019-2022

AUTHOR: David Roberts, Chair of North Wales Regional Skills Partnership
Sian Lloyd Roberts, Skills Programme Manager

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1. The North Wales Skills and Employment Plan 2019-2022 (included in Appendix 1) has been 
developed to inform Welsh Government’s strategic approach to the delivery of skills and 
employment provision in the region.

1.2. It has been produced by the North Wales Regional Skills Partnership after consultations with 
regional stakeholders, providers, and industry from April – July 2019. 

2. DECISION SOUGHT

2.1. To endorse the regional Skills and Employment Plan and the three priorities as set out in the 
plan.

3. REASONS FOR THE DECISION

3.1. To report to the North Wales Economic ambition Board on the Regional Skills and Employment 
Plan.

4. BACKGROUND AND RELEVANT CONSIDERATIONS

4.1. Purpose and Approach

4.1.1 The North Wales Regional Skills Partnership (RSP) has been given a key role by Welsh Government 
in their mission to help break the cycle of low skills, low wages and low productivity. The RSP’s role 
is to identify skills gaps and skills shortages in the region by better understanding the opportunities 
and investment pipelines and drawing on intelligence of regional employers and stakeholders. 

4.1.2. The Regional Skills Partnership receives an annual contract and funding from Welsh Government 
to undertake specific tasks and work packages.  The RSP is contracted to deliver a regional 
employment and skills plan to Welsh Government as well as a regional outline plan template which 
recommends increases or decreases in skills provision for post 16 Further Education and Work 
Based Learning in line   with data and labour market intelligence. The contract schedule from 
Welsh Government also contains requirements for the RSP to maintain regional skills observatory, 
develop employer networks, work closely with Enterprise Zones and hold regional skills summits 
to disseminate their regional recommendations and outcomes.

Page 14

Agenda Item 7



4.1.3 For 2019-20, the RSP has been tasked by Welsh Government to produce a 3 year Regional 
Employment Plan. The RSP team have been working with employers and regional stakeholders/ 
providers over the summer. In developing the plan, the RSP carried out a comprehensive review 
of economic and policy context, analysis of labour market intelligence along with primary 
intelligence, which was mainly gathered through our North Wales Employer Skills Survey. The 
survey was completed by 238 businesses across all sectors in the region.

4.1.4 To further bolster our survey responses, we held focus groups, workshops and one to one 
meetings with employers from across our sectors. Over 350 businesses from across the region 
took part in the consultation process and helped shape the priorities of the plan. 

4.1.5. Following this period of consultation, the Skills and Employment plan for the region was submitted 
to Welsh Government for approval and was endorsed and adopted at the Regional Skills 
Partnership meeting at the end of September. 

4.1.6. We recently received approval for the Skills Plan from Welsh Government and Minister Ken Skates 
will be launching the plan at our Skills Summit on 28th November, 2019. 

4.2. Overview of the Plan

4.2.1 The plan gives an overview of our economy, labour market and skills landscape as it currently 
stands, and addresses some of the key challenges that the region will need to tackle in order to 
have a sustainable skills system.

4.2.2 One of the key chapters in the plan is an overview of what employers have told us are the key skills 
issues and challenges for their businesses and the region as a whole. The data and information 
that we received and analysed showed that recruitment is the biggest challenge facing our 
employers in the region, ahead of economic/financial challenges and making a profit. 71% of 
employers in the region are having difficulty in recruiting for specific roles and 61.1% of employers 
are also facing a skills gap, which has an impact for their business.

4.2.3 More widely, the evidence from our consultation has indicated the changing nature of the labour 
market and the different skills set that will be needed to satisfy employer needs. This includes:

 Agility and Resilience to respond to different employment opportunities and different 
tasks and demands within jobs as organisations become much flatter in structure;

 IT and Digital Skills across all sectors and occupations in light of technological advances;
 STEM skills;
 Enterprise, entrepreneurial and marketing skills;
 Work ready and employability skills, including problem solving, critical thinking and 

creativity.

4.2.4 The Plan also focuses on the 7 key and growth sectors in the region and the ‘Spotlight on our 
Sectors’ chapter. This section of the plan details the skills challenges, issues and priorities that are 
facing each of the sectors. 

4.3 Priorities of the Plan

4.3.1 The last section of the plan brings together our vision, priorities and actions for the region. These 
priorities and recommendations will dictate the RSP’s activity over the next three years. The 
priorities are captured in three of the most pertinent themes identified throughout the Plan. 
Underpinning all issues and priorities is the need for more robust Labour Market Intelligence:

Page 15



Priority 1 Building our Future Workforce and Attracting Talent – Building a future skills pipeline 
that aligns to future growth opportunities in our economy:

 Ensuring that training provision and facilities meet current and future needs of businesses, 
individuals and the wider economy;

 Reduce Skills shortages facing businesses in growth sectors by growing and attracting 
talent;

 Develop innovation skills for businesses growth.

Priority 2 Skills for an inclusive North Wales – Reduce full range of labour inequalities and 
improved results in terms of job access, quality and sustainability:

 How we shape programmes to help unemployed people and economically inactive adults 
to move into work, sustain and progress into employment;

 Forecast labour market opportunities and shape support for people to access pipeline of 
new job opportunities, particularly in growth sectors;

 Improve progression of low-paid workers up the career ladder.

Priority 3 Promote career perceptions, pathways and apprenticeship opportunities – Promote 
clearer progression routes and apprenticeship opportunities

 How we change the perceptions of our growth sectors;
 Support individuals to follow apprenticeship progression routes through provision of high 

quality information and guidance;
 Promotion of apprenticeship opportunities, including progression to higher-level and 

degree apprenticeships;
 Improve employers’ awareness and access to apprenticeships.

4.4. Next Steps

4.4.1 The next stage for the RSP will be to develop these priorities and recommendations into a more 
specific and detailed action plan, which will be a shared delivery plan for the region for the next 
three years. The priorities articulated here will be further refined and delivered in a number of 
different ways, to make the most of resource capacity and partnership working.

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1. No request from RSP for NWEAB to finance their mainstream function, although subsequent 
projects may have a resource implication.

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1. None at this stage.

7. STAFFING IMPLICATIONS

7.1. None at this stage.

8. IMPACT ON EQUALITIES

8.1. None identified.

Page 16



9. CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN

9.1. Consultation has taken place with the Executive Officers’ Group, the North Wales Business 
Delivery Group, the North Wales Regional Skills Partnership and employers and providers over the 
summer 2019.

APPENDICES:

Appendix 1 North Wales Skills and Employment Plan 2019-22

STATUTORY OFFICERS RESPONSE:

i. Monitoring Officer – Host Authority:

“The report provides an explanation of the context of the work of the Regional Skills 
Partnership in preparing the Plan and the journey to adoption. I have no specific 
comments to add in relation to propriety.”

ii. Statutory Finance Officer (the Host Authority’s Section 151 Officer):

“I confirm that paragraphs 4.1.2 and 5.1 of the report above accurately reflect the RSP’s 
financial position.”

Page 17



NORTH WALES
Skills & Employment    
Plan

2019–2022

North Wales
Regional Skills Partnership

DRAFT (October 2019)

Page 18



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

1

Foreword
It is a pleasure to present our new Skills and Employment Plan for North Wales 2019–
2022. This is a three-year strategic Plan that will provide an insight into the supply and 
demand of the skills system in the region, and crucially, what employers are telling us 
are their needs and priorities. 

It is an exciting time for North Wales, with recent 
positive figures showing growth in our 
employment rate and productivity. Despite this 
positive trajectory, there are many challenges, 
uncertainties and opportunities that lie ahead. 
As a region, we need to ensure that our people 
and businesses are able to maximise 
opportunities like the Growth Deal and 
technological changes, and minimise the 
impact of potential difficulties and 
uncertainties, like the risk of a no-deal Brexit.

Skills are fundamental to our continuing 
economic success. Increasingly, it is skills, not just 
qualifications that employers look for first.  We 
need to make sure that the people of North 
Wales are equipped with the correct skills to get 
a job and progress in work, and that employers 
have the right skills is a key priority for the region. 

We recognise that as a region we need to do 
more to improve the skills of our people by 
creating a better match between what our 
employers are looking for and what the system 
provides. This includes ensuring stronger links 
between industry and education, and 
enabling everyone to understand how the skills 
needs of our region are changing as the 
economy changes. Responding effectively to 
employers’ skills needs and strengthening their 

role in the education and skills system is central, 
and will continue to be a cornerstone of our 
work. 

We have focussed on building intelligence on 
the demand for skills at a regional and sectoral 
level, and encouraged employers to shape the 
solutions that will enhance North Wales’ skills 
performance. As well as putting forward 
priorities in support of specific sectors, the Plan 
also sets out the key challenges that face us 
and what actions are needed to encourage a 
change in our skills system. 
The North Wales Regional Skills Partnership (RSP) 
and its partners in the region are committed 
and will continue to get the North Wales skills 
system working harder and better at filling 
employers’ skills gaps and equipping 
individuals with the skills that will enable 
them to secure jobs, now and in the future. 
As an established partnership with support from 
employers and providers, we collectively aim to 
create clearer, focussed pathways into 
employment. 

We look forward to working with colleagues 
across the region to implement the collective 
ambitions set out in this Plan and create a skills 
system which underpins a strong, inclusive, and 
outward-looking economy. 

Page 19



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

2

Executive Summary

A Resilient North Wales

Our Vision is:

“To create an inclusive, outward looking skills system which is agile, resilient 
and can adapt to opportunities and challenges that emerge from our 
trends.” 

The North Wales Regional Skills Partnership (RSP) Skills and Employment Plan has been 
developed to inform Welsh Government’s strategic approach to the delivery of skills and 
employment provision. This year, Welsh Government have asked the RSP to take a more 
strategic, long-term view of the skills system by producing a three-year Skills Plan. This Plan 
informs a Regional Outline Plan for the Further Education and Work Based Learning offer across 
the region up to 2022.

The aim of the Plan is to get the North Wales skills system working harder and better at filling 
employers’ skills gaps and equipping individuals with the skills that will enable them to secure 
jobs, now and in the future. The people of North Wales are at the heart of this Plan, from inspiring 
and enthusing young people about future careers, lifelong learning, equipping the workforce 
with the right skills and careers advice to enabling in work progression and training in our labour 
market. 

In developing this Plan, we have engaged with over 350 businesses across the region, through 
a Skills Survey (238 respondents) and focus group/consultation sessions. We’ve also undertaken 
a comprehensive review of other intelligence and data sources to further bolster our findings. 

North Wales’ economy is performing well, with a solid and positive growth in productivity and 
employment over recent years. There are many opportunities that lie ahead, with the potential 
of creating 4,298 jobs in high growth sectors through the North Wales Growth Deal, and other 
capital investments including inward investment. In order to ensure that we can maximise these 
opportunities, we need to ensure that the people of North Wales are equipped with the right 
skills and that we have a skills pipeline in place. However, we also face some deep-rooted 
challenges that need to be addressed if we are going to ensure an inclusive region. 

North Wales Skills Challenges

 Stubborn economic inactivity rates;
 Growth (GVA) is not dispersed evenly across the region;
 Inclusive growth is not extended across the region, with pockets of deprivation, and 

earnings below the Wales average in some counties, which leads to in-work poverty;
 Demography of the region with a higher than average number of over 65 year olds 

leads to replacement demand issues, especially in some sectors;
 Skills under-utilisation is higher in this region, which could reflect the mismatch in our 

labour market;

Page 20



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

3

 Skills shortages and gaps reported across most of our key sectors, and recruitment cited 
as one of the biggest challenges facing our North Wales employers;

 Lack of STEM skills, including take up of STEM subjects post GCSEs;
 Changing skill set requirements, such as digital skills and SMART technology, due to 

technological drivers;
 Work-ready & employability skills;
 Current workforce not ‘agile’ or ‘resilient’ enough to deal with shocks to the economy;
 Perception of  some sectors is a barrier to recruitment and retention;
 Qualifications that are fit for purpose;
 Enabling and mainstreaming lifelong learning; routinely upskilling and provision of in 

work retraining or upskilling;
 Need to drive innovation and enterprise skills;
 Brexit implications on our key sectors.

In order to address these challenges, and in response to enabling our vision, this Plan provides 
a starting point to define specific priorities and activities that are required to support sector 
growth over the next three years, and address the needs of our businesses and residents. The 
priorities and recommendations will drive the RSP’s activities for the next three years, and will 
also inform an action plan which will be co-produced with our partners in autumn 2019. 

These priorities have been shaped through our consultation with stakeholders, Employer Skills 
Survey responses, data analysis and policy influences. 

The priorities are captured in three of the most pertinent themes identified throughout the Plan:

Priority 1: Building our future workforce and attracting talent

Priority 2: Skills development for an inclusive North Wales

Priority 3: Promote career perception, pathways and apprenticeship opportunities

We have also considered our 8 key sectors in the ‘Spotlight on our sectors’ section. The 
information in these sections on skills challenges has been informed by our Skills Survey and 
focus groups with the sectors, in the main. A synopsis of these priorities includes:

Energy & Environment
 Increase STEM learners/pathways to ensure a future workforce for the sector;
 Equip and upskill the workforce with skills for implementation of new SMART technologies, 

and low carbon;
 Expand apprenticeship opportunities in response to replacement demand issues.

Construction
 Upskill current workforce and new entrants with digital skills and SMART technologies, 

especially our small and micro businesses;
 Replacement demand is an issue within this sector and promoting apprenticeship 

opportunities for young entrants is key;
 Update the perception of the sector and encouragement of more female entrants.

Page 21



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

4

Advanced Manufacturing
 Succession planning is needed in light of the age profile of the current workforce and 

replacement demand;

 Need to encourage apprenticeships, especially higher-level apprenticeships and degree 
apprenticeships with clear progression routes.

Creative & Digital
 Industry has indicated their appetite to help shape some of the course content and 

consider shared apprenticeship opportunities;
 Post-16 provision needs to reflect the current employer demand, rapid changes in 

technology and an increased and diverse offer of digital skills across all sectors, in order to 
keep up-to-date with how quickly industry 4.0 is currently utilising these skills;

 Careers information and guidance for young people is crucial to understanding the 
transferrable skills developed and navigate career choices in a more holistic way.

Financial & Professional
 The current supply of higher-level skills cannot meet the demand. Increasing the 

opportunities for businesses and individuals to upskill, train and retrain via short courses at 
levels 4+ with professional examinations and status is required to fill current vacancies.

Tourism & Hospitality
 Recruitment is a crucial issue for the sector and this could be exacerbated by Brexit;
 Outdated perception of the sector could be one of the biggest barriers to growth and 

there is a need to raise awareness of the breadth of career opportunities and raise 
aspiration;

 Need to promote the value of apprenticeship opportunities.

Health & Social Care
 Recruitment and retention of workforce and need to upskill the workforce for statutory 

requirements;
 Recruitment and retention of the workforce, including updating the perception of the 

sector;
 Retain and upskill leadership and management roles;
 Increase and update digital skills. 

Food & Farming
 Upskilling the sector in line with the digitalisation potential to mainstream digital 

connectivity and digital skills that will deliver efficiency savings, smarter decisions, potential 
new growth and diversification.

The priorities articulated here will be further refined and delivered in a number of different ways, 
to make the most of resources, capacity and partnerships.

This Plan is a living document which changes in both ambition and action as time passes. It 
should not be static, or unchanging. Page 22



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

5

Page 23



CONTENTS

OUR PURPOSE AND APPROACH 1

POLICY LANDSCAPE AND REGIONAL DRIVERS 1

NORTH WALES OVERVIEW: OUR ECONOMY, LABOUR MARKET AND SKILLS LANDSCAPE 1

WHAT DID OUR EMPLOYERS SAY? 1

SPOTLIGHT ON OUR SECTORS 1

SKILLS CHALLENGES 1

OUR PRIORITIES AND ACTIONS: WHERE DO WE WANT TO BE IN 2022? 1

Page 24



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

7

Our Purpose and Approach

Our Purpose

The North Wales Regional Skills Partnership (RSP) has been given a key role by Welsh Government 
to help break the cycle of low skills, low wages and low productivity. The RSP’s role is to identify 
skills gaps and skills shortages in the region by better understanding the opportunities and 
investment pipelines, and drawing on the intelligence of employers and stakeholders. Full RSP 
membership is attached in Annex 1.

This year, Welsh Government have asked the RSP to take a more strategic, long-term view of the 
skills system in the region by producing a three-year Regional Employment and Skills Plan 2019–
2022. This Plan will provide a strategic direction for post-16 education and training providers 
through an indication of skills needs of employers in the region and influence the economic 
relevance of post-16 provision. In addition to the Plan, we are required to complete a Regional 
Outline Plan for Further Education (FE) and Apprenticeships, with recommendations for changes 
to provision over a three-year period. 

The aim of this Plan is to get the North Wales skills system working harder and smarter to meet 
employers’ skills gaps and equipping individuals with the skills that will enable them to secure jobs, 
now and in the future. We are seeking to build on the successes of the region’s skills system and 
challenge weaknesses to ensure the best outcome for our citizens. 

Our approach has been to analyse the strengths and weaknesses of North Wales’ labour market 
today, and assess the demand and supply trends that will affect the market through to 2022. This 
Plan is evidence-based and articulates the main skills issues for North Wales, along with priorities 
and actions for our regional and national partners to work collectively. 

Page 25



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

8

Our Approach

North Wales 
Skills Plan

Secondary 
Intelligence

Primary 
Intelligence

In developing our approach, we have carried out a comprehensive review of the economic 
and policy context in which the RSP operates. Analysis of the labour market intelligence has 
identified the key challenges that we have to address and the opportunities that we must 
exploit. We have consulted widely on the issues that we should be addressing and priorities for 
the region have emerged.

Primary Intelligence

This year, for the first time, we conducted a North Wales Employer Skills Survey. This survey has 
given us an insight into key skills issues that affect our employers, and has enabled us to better 
understand current recruitment challenges and the impact of skills shortages and gaps. The 
survey was completed by 238 businesses across the region and a breakdown of responses per 
sector can be seen below. The results have provided us with a baseline of key intelligence that 
we will continue to strengthen and develop to ensure that our intelligence and evidence is 
robust.

The table below provides a breakdown of survey responses acquired during our consultation 
phase:

Sector Total

Advanced Manufacturing 36

Construction 26

Energy & Environment 24

Creative & Digital 16

Food & Farming 18

Financial & Professional 17

Health & Social Care 41

Page 26



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

9

Tourism & Hospitality 44

Third Sector 16

Total:  238

A large proportion of micro and small businesses responded to our survey:

29%

33%

24%

14% Micro – Fewer than 10 
employees

Small – Between 10 and 49 
employees

Medium – Between 50 and 
249 employees

Large – More than 250 
employees

Size of businesses responding to the RSP Employer Skills 
Survey (2019)

In order to bolster the survey responses, we held focus groups, workshops and one-to-one 
meetings with employers from across our sectors and geography.  These meetings were used 
to ‘test’ our evidence and help shape the direction of the plan with more qualitative 
discussions, narrative and case studies. We have also conducted telephone interviews with our 
Regionally Important and Anchor Companies. We’ve consulted directly with over 350 
businesses. A full list of all businesses who took part in our consultation is attached in Annex 2. 
One of our key commitments over the next year is to fully implement our Employer Engagement 
strategy to strengthen and build on our current baseline/contact with employers and Industry. 

Additional meetings and workshops were held with our providers and stakeholders, including 
an RSP workshop with the Board to discuss skills challenges, priorities and outcomes. 

Secondary Intelligence

We have conducted an extensive review of relevant reports on North Wales’ labour market, 
the skills system and current and future skills needs. We have also conducted original 
quantitative analysis of large scale data-sets to inform this plan. The main source of data that 
underpins this Plan is acquired through Welsh Government-published Regional Labour Market 
Intelligence reports. Data from the following sources was analysed to provide baseline 

Page 27



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

10

information on demand for skills from local employers and the local supply of education and 
training:

 Annual Population Survey, ONS
 StatsWales
 NOMIS
 EMSI Analyst
 Think Tank reports (NESTA, IWA)
 Sector Body report (SEMTA, Cogent, National Food and Drink Academy)
 Apprenticeships and Further Education Data (Stats Wales, LLWR)
 Higher Education statistics (HESA)

Furthermore, we commissioned a North Wales analysis of the National Employer Skills Survey 
(which surveyed over 1,500 businesses in the region). We’ve also gleaned information from 
Federation of Small Businesses (FSB): A Skilful Wales Survey (2018), Business Wales contacts, 
North Wales and Mersey Dee Business Council, North Wales Business Delivery Group and 
West Cheshire and North Wales Chamber of Commerce quarterly survey.

Limitation factors

 Skills underpin the whole economic development structure. We need to be clear that 
skills intervention on its own will not improve the quality or value of local jobs – skills 
needs to be seen as part of the “success mix” which will require Business Development, 
Investment and Infrastructure - inputs that are all part of the longer-term economic 
development aim for the region. 

 Our Sector Profiles, in the main, reflect what businesses have told us as part of our 
consultation process – survey, focus groups and one-to-one meetings. 

 This plan should be seen as a live document that will be reviewed regularly.

Page 28



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

11Page 29



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

12

Policy Landscape and Regional 
Drivers

Before  we cons ider  the fact  and f igures  about  Nor th  Wales ,  i t  
i s  impor tant  to  cons ider  the w ider  s t rateg ic  and po l icy  context ,  
and po l i t ica l ,  techno log ica l  and soc ieta l  d r ive r s .  
Cons iderat ion  w i l l  a l so  be g iven to  our  reg iona l  d r ive r s  that  w i l l  
c reate  fu tu re  employment  oppor tun i t ies  in  Nor th  Wales  that  
w i l l  have an impact  on our  sk i l l s  sy s tem.  

Welsh Government Strategy and Policy Drivers

The sk i l l s  landscape at a regional level  i s  profoundly affected by decis ions 
made by Government.  I t  i s  worth,  then, sett ing out some of the pol icy and 
economic context in which the plan is  set.  This  does not seek to be exhaust ive 
or comprehensive, as the context i s  so broad, but highl ight some of the pol icy 
areas that di rect ly affect our sk i l l s  system.

Welsh Government’s Prosperity for All:  economic action plan  emphasises 
the need to grow the economy inclus ively and promote wel l -being. This  
approach is  at the heart of what we are try ing to achieve with this  plan. 

Sk i l l s  and Employabi l i ty play an integral  role in the economic plan with an 
emphasis  on ensur ing that al l  indiv iduals are equipped with the r ight sk i l l s  for  
a changing wor ld.  I t  sets out a new approach of support ing businesses to take 
advantages of new forces such as decarbonisat ion, automation, art i f icial  
intel l igence  and other forms of digital isat ion  –  al l  of  which have impl icat ions 
for our regional sk i l l s  system and for this  P lan.

Innovation and foster ing entreprenur ial  culture is  a key component in ensur ing 
a more inclus ive economy. There is  an emphasis  on research and innovation 
faci l i t ies that support businesses,  and we consider that there is  a key role for 
our Higher Education Inst i tut ions in helping to take this  forward. M-SParc in 
Anglesey is  a pr ime example of how to br ing innovative businesses together in 
a creat ive and support ive environment,  and help them grow. There are st rong 
l inks with schools,  col leges and univers i t ies and is  testament to the fact that 
dr iv ing innovation in the region wi l l  ensure better,  h igh- level job opportunit ies.  

Page 30



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

13

The Wales Employability Delivery Plan (2018)  aims to s impl i fy the support 
offered to people wanting a job, as wel l  as those who need help in gett ing a 
job. There is  a focus on reshaping the employabi l i ty support for  both people 
who are job ready and those furthest away from our labour market.  

The North Wales RSP has worked closely with Welsh Government on key 
act iv i t ies related to this  del ivery plan, including the set up and del ivery of 
Working Wales  in the region. Through our North Wales Advisory Group, we 
have worked col laborat ively with Careers Wales and other partners to ensure 
improved partnership working to reduce the number of people who are 
unemployed/economical ly inact ive. We have also developed an 
Employabi l i ty Pathway in the region, which aims to co-ordinate the efforts  of 
our partners.  We wi l l  cont inue to work col laborat ively with Welsh Government 
and our partners in the region to ensure a successful  del ivery of the Job 
Support Wales programme, which wi l l  s tart  in Apr i l  2020. 

We are also about to embark on an excit ing t ime in our education system, with 
the development of the New Curriculum for Wales .  This  development is  the 
f i rst  and one of the most crucial  bui lding blocks in ensur ing a future workforce. 
The curr iculum wi l l  provide young people in Wales with higher standards of 
l i teracy and numeracy, as wel l  as better digital  and bi l ingual competency. The 
North Wales RSP act ively supports the introduction of the new curr iculum and 
consider i t  to be play a pivotal  role in al leviat ing some of the key issues facing 
our employers when recruit ing their  workforce. The role and input of businesses 
in shaping the curr iculum has been emphasised, and the RSP is  act ively 
working with GwE North Wales Educational Consort ia and employers in the 
region to ensure that their  voices are heard.

Al ingning apprent iceships with the needs of the Welsh economy is  at the 
centre of Welsh Government’s sk i l l s  pol icy.  The  Apprenticeship Plan  has seen 
Welsh Government sett ing a clear target to del iver 100,000 al l -age 
apprent iceships al igned to the needs of the economy and to ensure that 
workers are equipped with high- level technical and profess ional sk i l l s .  
Apprent iceships in Wales are current ly organised through more than 120 
f rameworks across a range of job roles and sectors,  but there is  a move to 
reduce this  number to 20 in the near future. Focus has been on nat ional and 
foundation sectors,  and an increasing focus is  on higher- level  apprent iceships 
at level  3 and above and ensur ing clear progress ion routes for indiv iduals who 
enrol l  on apprent iceships at a lower level .  

Page 31



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

14

A key development has seen Degree Apprenticeships  being introduced 
fol lowing the recommendation of the Diamond review (2016).  These are set at 
level  6 and have included Digital  and Advanced Manufactur ing and 
Engineer ing Frameworks.  The RSP would welcome the introduction of more 
degree apprent iceships in other pr ior i ty areas for the region, and our 
employers are also keen to understand more about these opportunit ies.  

There is  now a clearer progress ion route for indiv iduals who take the 
apprent iceship pathway, however more can be done to ensure that young 
people are aware of vocational opportunit ies and pathways that lead to a 
career in our region.

Taking Wales Forward 2016-2021  recognises that Wales’ future prosper i ty 
and stabi l i ty depends on the sk i l l s  and values of the people of Wales and that 
al l  c it izens deserves the opportunity to achieve their  potent ial ,  at any age. 
This  pol icy recognises and promotes adult  learning as a key resource to support 
the development of sk i l l s ,  improve health and wel lbeing and act as a catalyst  
for  social  engagement and integrat ion. The vis ion in the pol icy document 
complements our Sk i l l s  P lan and North Wales Growth Deal,  as wel l  as a cross-
cutt ing message and contr ibut ion to the Welsh Government’s sk i l l s  pol ic ies and 
intervent ions.

‘A Wales where learning is  at the core of al l  we do; where part ic ipat ion in 
learning is  encouraged and rewarded; and where people have equal 
opportunit ies to gain the sk i l l s  for  l i fe and work that they need to prosper.’

Employment law has extended the working age of people, which has 
increased the need for resk i l l ing, upski l l ing and l i fe long learning investment by 
employers to ensure their  staff  and productiv i ty are up-to-date and del iver ing 
the outputs needed.

The Well-being and Future Generations Act 2015  has an inf luence and 
effects al l  aspects of post-16 sk i l l s  pol icy in Wales and underpins al l  act iv i t ies 
in this  P lan. Our approach as a region to bui ld a ‘Resi l ient North Wales’ and 
promote growth in a scaleable, inclus ive and integrated way is  recognised by 
the Act.

There are also some areas that we consider as cross-cutt ing  themes across al l  
pol icy areas of Welsh Government,  and our Sk i l l s  P lan,  as detai led below:  

Page 32



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

15

Prosperity for All: A Low Carbon 
Wales

This  plan out l ines Welsh 
Government’s approach to cut 
emiss ions and transit ion to a low 
carbon economy in a way which 
maximises wider benef its  for  Wales.  
The North Wales Growth Deal are 
developing a Low Carbon Energy 
Programme,  and the RSP wi l l  play a 
role in consider ing the del ivery of low 
carbon related sk i l l s  needed at a 
regional level  and wi l l  work with 
partners to take this  agenda 
forward.

There is  no doubt that the low carbon 
sector and green growth is  core to 
the del ivery of inclus ive growth. As a 
region, we wi l l  be posit ioning 
ourselves as one of the leading UK 
locations for energy generat ion and 
energy-related supply chain 
Investment,  with an expert ise in low 
carbon technologies and processes.  
As such, this  P lan wi l l  s tart  to scope 
some of the sk i l l s  that are required in 
the future, as art iculated by 
employers in the region. I t  wi l l  also 
consider some of the major 
programmes and projects afoot as 
part  of the North Wales Growth Deal 
and Vis ion.

Inequalities

Gender

As recent research undertaken by Chwarae 
Teg demonstrates, £13.6 billion could be 
added to GVA forecasts by 2028 if Wales 
were to achieve full gender equality. A clear 
need has been articulated to create a 
Wales where women can achieve and 
prosper by ensuring that the potential 

female workforce is maximised in the region. 
Women are often under-represented in 
some sectors that are forecast to grow, and 
by not putting steps in to alleviate this trend, 
there is a risk of pushing them out the labour 
market altogether.

The gender pay gap per local authority, as 
of 2018: 

Anglesey – 25.5%

Gwynedd - -0.20%

Conwy - -8.70%

Denbighshire – 9.40%

Flintshire – 19.1%

Wrexham – 14.9%

Disability

Welsh Government is committed to 
improving employment opportunities for 
disabled people. Compared to non-
disabled people, a much greater number 
of disabled people are unable to secure or 
sustain employment for a variety of reasons, 
with just 45% of working age disabled 
people (Wales figure) currently in 
employment. One of the key commitments 
set out in Welsh Government’s Employability 
Plan is to increase the number of employers 
who create inclusive and supportive 
workplaces for disabled people and those 
with long-term health conditions. The North 
Wales RSP are keen to ensure the success of 
programmes such as  ‘Access to Work’ and 
‘In Work Support’, and the recent Inclusive 
Apprenticeship offer by Welsh Government. 
We would like to work closely with Welsh 
Government and our partners on this 
agenda to ensure that disabled people in 
the region are given the opportunity to find 
and stay in work.

 

Page 33



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

16

Welsh Language

The RSP are fully supportive of the Welsh 
Government’s ambition in Cymraeg 2050 to 
achieve a million Welsh speakers by 2050. 
The Welsh language is a key part of the 
region’s vibrant culture across workplaces, 
learning institutions and in our towns and 
villages. As employers place a greater 
emphasis on bilingual skills, the ability to be 
able to communicate confidently through 
the medium of Welsh and English can be 
seen as a strong advantage in the labour 
market.

In the region, as well as being the first 
languages in many workplaces, demand for 
Welsh language skills is increasing across all 
sectors. These include health and social 
care, food, tourism and creative and digital 
sectors. 

Last year, the RSP produced a ‘Welsh 
language in the workplace’ plan (2018) 
which considered the landscape across 
schools, FE, work based learning, higher 
education and adult learning. We have 
been working on delivering some of the key 
recommendations made in that plan.

The RSP is an active member of GwE’s Welsh 
Language in Education Strategic Board, 
contributing to the development of the 
Regional Strategy for the Welsh language in 

North Wales, set up in response to Welsh 
Government’s Cymraeg 2050 ambition; also 
taking this opportunity to voice the skills 
agenda relevance and regional economic 
importance of the Welsh language as an 
asset to North Wales’ economic priority 
sectors.

Employers are increasingly aware of the 
benefits of bilingual skills, and in the public, 
private and third sectors, evidence does 
suggest that a number of posts which 
require bilingual skills have increased. 

The RSP are working with Coleg Cymraeg 
Cenedlaethol on the delivery of the Further 
Education and Apprenticeships Action Plan 
which was launched in January 2019. The 
plan is ambitious and will enable all learners 
to maintain or develop their Welsh language 
skills. A better coordinated approach to 
marketing and promotion of bilingual post-
16 provision is required, along with ensuring 
that our FE and work based learning partners 
have teachers and lecturers who are 
bilingual and can deliver bilingual teaching 
and learning experiences across a wide 
range of subjects. Anecdotal evidence from 
FE and HE partners indicates that there is a 
shortage of qualified teachers and lecturers 
in some sectors, with particular shortage in 
the secondary education sector in STEM 
subjects and bilingual STEM secondary 
teachers.

“We need to bridge the gap between education and the world of 
work in order to increase the number of Welsh speakers.”

Aled Roberts, Welsh Language Commissioner, August 2019

Page 34

https://www.eventbrite.co.uk/e/bilingualism-at-work-dwyieithrwydd-ar-waith-tickets-65406573823


Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

17

Although the focus of this Plan is on skills, it is important to consider the other key 
drivers that potentially impact on the economy of the region, which can act as 
enablers or constraints to successful implementation.

Political Drivers

Brexit

This poses the most immediate threat in the broader skills landscape. The impacts of a Brexit Deal 
(including No Deal) are likely to be far-reaching and will affect the region in three ways:

 Economy – trade agreements and regulations;
 Labour market – Changes to free movement with a potential number of EU workers 

returning/moving to other EU economies;
 Skills system – Due to the high number of EU students and staff and loss of EU Structural 

Funds. Our skills system currently receives a large proportion of funding, be it for funding to 
increase research and innovation to our HE institutions in the region or to help those 
individuals furthest away from the labour market

The WLGA-produced Brexit dashboards note the following key data for North Wales:

 Compared to other regions of Wales, North Wales has a higher proportion of its population 
who were born in the EU, at 3.33% compared to Wales at 3.03%.

 Within the region, Wrexham has the highest proportion of its population born in the EU, at 
5.84%, whilst the lowest is in Anglesey (1.45%)

 Across the region, there are varying levels of vulnerability to Brexit. Denbighshire has the 
highest score on the vulnerability index, with notably high levels of deprivation and high 
proportion of population employed in elementary occupations.

The UK Government Immigration White Paper (2018) details migration policy after Brexit. Although 
proportional reduction in migration will be higher in Wales than the UK, the overall impact on Wales 
will be less. It also notes that the changes will not just impact “low-skilled” workers and their 
employers, but those with immediate skills, particularly in manufacturing will be affected, as would 
the care sector. According to 2017 figures, we have 14,300 EU nationals currently working in North 
Wales. 

The proposals included in the White Paper could have a significant effect on our sectors that are 
reliant on a low-skilled migrant workforce.  

Brexit is potentially very concerning for businesses operating across North Wales. Primary research 
gathered by the RSP indicates that few businesses wholly feel that Brexit will be a positive change 
for them. The majority of respondents indicated that increased costs were a main consideration, 
followed by exporting/importing difficulties and funding. We will provide further detail on what 
employers told us about Brexit in our Sector Snapshot section.

Page 35



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

18

Technological Drivers

It is a widely held view that the world is entering what is being described as the 
fourth industrial revolution – Industry 4.0 – with its reliance on technological 
advancements. There is no doubt that digitalisation will transform and change our 
occupational and skills landscape across the region and Wales as a whole. New 
digital technologies, such as Artificial Intelligence, the Internet of Things and new 
SMART Technologies, are bringing with them skills levels and competencies not 
seen before.

IPPR Research (Lawrence et al, 2017) noted that 46.4% of jobs in Wales have a high potential for 
change through automation. Accommodation and food services, as well as wholesale and retail, 
have the highest proportion of jobs with high potential for change through automation. Notably, 
it’s these sectors that make up a large proportion of the North Wales economy – the foundation 
sector. 

Work undertaken by Professor Phil Brown on the Review of Digital Innovation Wales (2018) argues 
that the transformation of work is most important, rather than the prospect of mass joblessness 
through automation. We will need to ensure that the workforce is agile and resilient to respond to 
these changes.

A new set of ‘metaskills’, building on self-management, social intelligence and innovation, will be 
needed to thrive in this increasingly complex environment. These skills will enable individuals to 
learn continually, and be resilient and adaptive to change, but will also be used to create new 
technologies and drive change. 

The major requirement now is to fully develop our understanding of how to create 
these skills, not only in young people coming through our schools and education 
system, but also our existing workforce who will need to transform quickly in order 
to retain and create a competitive edge. 

Societal & Demographic Drivers

Global demographic shifts mean that we have an ageing population structure, with the balance 
between those of working age compared to those of retirement age continuing to fall over the 
next decades. This is a particular issue in our region with predictions of an increase in over 65 year 
olds and a decrease in our working age population. This will have an impact on skills in some sectors 
more than others. We will consider these changes in later sections of this Plan. 

Page 36



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

19

North Wales Growth Vision and Growth Deal

The Growth Deal wil l  deliver clean growth, support 6% 
GVA uplift, 4,298 new jobs and £1bn total investment. 
£511m of the direct investment wil l  be private sector 
investment, £247m wil l  be public sector investment and 
the aim is to attract £280m from the Growth Deal.

Major capital  investment and infrastructure schemes under our 
Growth Vis ion & Deal wi l l  generate a high volume of employment 
opportunit ies which presents both a chal lenge and great   
opportunity for the region.  

The Strategy for the region recognises and bui lds on some of the key areas of 
growth for our economy and aims to:

 Promote the region as one of the leading locations for low carbon energy 
generat ion;

 Become the hub of innovation and technology excel lence and a leader in 
developing digital  business clusters,  with the aim of putt ing the region at 
the forefront of art i f ic ial  intel l igence and data revolut ion; 

 Develop the reputat ion of North Wales as a centre of excel lence for high-
value tour ism.

Further information on these 
programmes and projects can 
be found in the Growth Deal 
Implementat ion Plan.

L ist  of Potent ial  Growth Vis ion 
Projects (These wi l l  be phased 
over the next few years)

 Trawsfynydd Power Station
 Morlais Project
 Smart Local Energy Networks
 Nuclear Energy Centre of Excellence

Page 37



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

20

 Enterprise Engineering and Optics Centre Project
 Centre of Environmental Technology and Industrial Accreditation Project
 Glynllifon Rural Economy Hub Project
 Llysfasi Carbon Neutral Farm
 North Wales Tourism and Hospitality Centre of Excellence 
 Regional Land and Property Joint Venture
 Holyhead Gateway Programme
 Digital Connectivity Project
 Digital Signal Processing Centre
 Regional Transport Decarbonisation

The initial estimate is that the Growth Deal will help to create over 4,298 jobs. To maximise the 
impact of the Growth Deal and employment and skills opportunities for local residents, in line with 
the strategic drive of regional economic strategy, a number of actions will be required to:

 Identify Growth Deal projects whose effective implementation will require specific actions 
on skills;

 Identify Deal projects which offer significant employment potential for local people if they 
can be appropriately skilled to take advantage of them;

 Put in place plans to raise awareness of the opportunities and skills development capability 
to help recruit local people into the skills pipeline;

 Ensure community benefit procurement is effectively mobilised to work in synergy with skills 
development.

A sustainable skills base to ensure that this happens is integral to the success of the Deal and 
underpins the strategy and mission. The Skills and Employment programme forms one of the 
enabling strategic programmes within the Growth Deal and Growth Vision. The projects that 
fall within this programme are a critical part of the group of inter-related and co-dependant 
projects to deliver the Growth Vision.

The programme includes 5 projects, which the RSP, along with key partners, have been 
developing over the past months:

 Information and Advice Gateway – working with Working Wales on a regional delivery and 
also considering a brokerage service;

 Employability Pathway ;
 Regional STEM Region;
 Digital Skills for North Wales;
 North Wales Health and Social Care project.

Other Potential Job Generating Investments 

In addition to, and building on the prospective Growth Deal investments, there will 
be a number of other large-scale capital investments in the region which will present 
further opportunities for our workforce:

Page 38



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

21

Regional Housing & Regeneration Projects

 The North Wales Regional Regeneration plan identifies 3 thematic projects (Empty 
Properties, Housing Renewal and Important Buildings) and 4 priority Town centres (Rhyl, 
Bangor, Colwyn Bay, and Wrexham) as priorities for 2018-22. Some projects that form part 
of this strategy include Bangor Property & Investment scheme and the Rhyl Regeneration 
programme. The RSP and partners will be working closely with our regional Regeneration 
projects in the area to encourage apprenticeship opportunities and employability ‘taster 
days’ for various sites.

 There are many housing projects currently in development, including Strategic Housing and 
Regeneration in Flintshire which will deliver 500 new homes in the area by 2021, and the 
West Rhyl Housing project Pennaf Housing Group phase 1 which aims to transform a 
number of properties in the area and undertake comprehensive refurbishments of existing 
properties. 

21st Century Schools Education Capital Projects

Our FE and HE institutions are also planning major capital investments on their sites. These include 
the following investments (please note that this list is not exhaustive):

 Wrexham Glyndŵr University – New build and extensive refurbishments of existing buildings 
including Plas Coch campus, Regent Street Campus and Wrexham Northop Campus. 

 Coleg Cambria Yale Campus re-developments 

 Grŵp Llandrillo Menai’s plans to move their Bangor Ffriddoedd site to Parc Menai in Bangor 

Enterprise Zones

Our Enterprise Zones are also developing many key investments, with the focus in Anglesey on 
developing a low carbon/hydrogen island. From Canolfan STeM by Grŵp Llandrillo Menai, and M-
SParc in Gaerwen, its focus will be on harnessing low carbon energy.  Deeside’s focus on 
manufacturing includes aerospace, electronics, food and sustainable energy. The flagship AMRC 
Cymru on the Broughton site will be ready to open its doors in the coming months and is an exciting 
development in the area. Snowdonia Enterprise Zone is currently developing the Trawsfynydd SMR 
project (part of Growth Deal projects), and the Llanbedr Aerospace Centre.

Growth Track 360

Growth Track 360 has been launched to secure £1bn of rail improvements, which would transform 
the North Wales and Cheshire regional economy and deliver 70,000 new jobs over 20 years. 
Transport investment will act as a key enabler to help link North Wales into the wider economy of 
the Northern Powerhouse and European routes, allowing us to expand the potential economic 
offer. If successful, it will lead to a massive boost to the North Wales, Cheshire and Wirral economies, 
linking them with other planned rail improvements between London and the North of England. The 
combination of employers and investment from our flagship regional projects, key economic and 
growth sectors, our enterprise zones, and SMEs across the region require an increasing suite of 
demands in terms of skills and employment that meet their needs and support ambition and 
opportunity for the area. 

All the above projects/programmes/major capital projects are expected to become significant 
economic drivers in our region. Projects change on a regular basis and it’s likely that a number of 
projects mentioned in this section will change over coming months and years. This only serves as a 
guide to help determine what our future priorities should be in addressing skills needs and gaps. 

Page 39



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

22Page 40



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

23

North Wales Overview: Our economy, 
labour market and skills landscape
 This section will consider the broader economic and labour market 

context for the region by examining the current state of the North Wales 
economy. It will provide a snapshot of both our economy and education/skills 
landscape as it currently stands, and some key challenges for the region will be 
highlighted. This is a crucial context for our Skills Plan and will help us focus on 
what our priorities should be.  

Economic Performance & Productivity

Despite recent setbacks to the region’s economy, such as the pause to Wylfa Newydd and closure 
of Rehau on Anglesey, the economy is performing well. There has been solid and positive growth 
in productivity and employment over recent years. Gross Value Added (GVA) is the best economic 
performance metric. 

GVA per head in North Wales was £20,800 in 2017, up 4.4% over the year and up 80.2% since 1999. 
In comparison, Wales GVA per head was £19,899 which was an increase of 2.7% over the year and 
increase of 74.1% since 1999. 

Even though this growth is positive, it is not inclusive and this could be seen as a risk. This growth is 
not evenly distributed across the region, with GVA per county getting weaker in North West Wales. 
Flintshire and Wrexham have been the engine of regional growth through their manufacturing 
activities. 

GVA per head per county in North Wales Figure (2017)

Anglesey £13,951

Gwynedd £19,793

Conwy & Denbighshire £16,916

Flintshire & Wrexham £25,294

North Wales £20,800

Wales £19,899

The economy of the region is diverse and is underpinned by Manufacturing, Energy, Tourism, as 
well as the Public Sector.

Page 41



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

24

Business Base, Enterprise & Innovation

There were 25,070 VAT/PAYE-registered enterprises in North Wales in 2017, 94.3% of these in micro 
size bands (0-9 employees), and 98.5% of enterprises in North Wales employing under 50 
employees. Only 0.2% were classed as large enterprises (more than 250 employees). North Wales 
is reliant on micro and small enterprises and there seems to be a barrier to grow these businesses 
beyond 50 employees and attract larger enterprises to the region. This is particularly important to 
remember when considering the skills system. When larger/capital investments come to the area, 
we need to ensure that the supply chain of smaller businesses has the right skills pipeline.

When looking at measures of innovation, an estimated total of £744 million was spent on R&D in 
2017 in Wales; this was an increase of £33 million (5%) compared with 2016. These figures are not 
broken down per region in Wales, but we do know that skills and human capital are vital 
ingredients for successful innovation in firms. Research findings show a positive correlation between 
the presence of STEM graduates in the workforce and high levels of innovation in firms.  Graduate 
retention and pathways is important if we are to continue to foster innovation.

Skills and human capacity are vital ingredients for innovation success, in 
particular STEM skills.

Innovation and enterprise skills are crucial if we are to increase the productivity of our economy. 
Innovation skills can be articulated as a set of competencies including the ability to think 
creatively, complex problem solving, critical thinking and effective thinking – all of which are in 
demand by our employers. This is a foundation skill taught in primary education that should be 
harnessed and focussed on throughout secondary education as a life skill and of real employability 
value.  

Innovation cuts across all sectors in our economy, but is particularly important in 
the following sectors, which are all priority sectors in our region:

 Energy & Environment (including Low Carbon) 
 Advanced Manufacturing
 IT and Digital Economy

If we are to drive and embed innovation as an integral part of our regional 
economy, these activities needs to be delivered jointly by universities, further 
education, business, industry, public and third sector (HEFCW: Research & 
Innovation – The Vision for Wales, May 2019).  Innovation is therefore a key feature 
of the RSP’s priorities.

Sectors

The largest employing sectors across the region (2017 figures) are:

 Public admin, defence, education, and health (87,700) 
 Wholesale, retail, transport, hotel and food (76,500). 

These figures show the significant dependence on public sector jobs in our region, but it also shows 
that a large proportion of our employment is in what is classed as the Foundation Economy.  

Page 42



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

25

Occupations         

Across these sectors, the greatest numbers of job roles (2019), in descending order 
are in: 

 Professional Occupations (49,676) 
 Elementary Occupations (42,756) 
 Associate Professional and Technical Occupations (33,547) 
 Admin & Secretarial Occupations (32,056). 

Together, these four occupational groupings account for 49% of all job roles across the region.

Labour Demand by Occupation

Considering economic projections made by Emsi, overall, there is a greater emphasis on higher-
level skills in occupations, but the situation up to 2022 is more complex than this:

 There is a predicted 2% growth in management and professional occupations, as well as 
skilled trades.

 1% growth is also projected for sales and customer services jobs and a range of elementary 
occupations.

 Process, plant and machine operatives are projected to see the least growth across the 
region, but, will still require a total of 6,000 people to fill the positions of those leaving or 
retiring from the sector. Source: Emsi data (August 2019)

Much more significant than the growth and decline in sectors and per occupational area is the 
notion of replacement demand. Even if an occupation is in decline, due to workers retiring, 
migrating or leaving the occupational area, there will still be vacancies to be filled over the next 5 
years. We will be considering replacement demand issues per sector in the next section.

Employment, Unemployment and Economic Inactivity

The employment level is the total number of people (aged 16+) that are in employment and 
employment rate is the percentage of working age (16-64) people in employment. It is the best 
overall measure of participation in the labour market. In our region, the latest figures (year ending 
31 March 2019) are captured below:

75.4% 4.0% 18.0%
311,600 13,900 68,500

Employment rate Unemployment rate Economic Inactivity 
(excluding students) 

(Population aged 16-64)  (Age 16+) (Age 16-64)

Source: Annual Population Survey, Office for National Statistics – StatsWales

North Wales had the highest employment rate in Wales in the year ending June 2018, and was also 
the region with the smallest range in both employment rate and employment levels. This means 
that employment levels are distributed more evenly across the region. 

Since 2001, the region’s employment rate has increased by 6.1 percentage points, faster than the 
Wales increase of 5.5 percentage points. However, the region faces some challenges:

 This growth in employment rate is not evenly distributed across all local authorities.

Page 43



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

26

 Less than 59,000 people were employed in ‘high value’ sectors such as Energy & 
Environment, Digital and Advanced Manufacturing, which presents a challenge for the 
region if we are looking to improve the productivity and competitiveness of the region.

 Reliance on jobs in traditionally low paid sectors.

Workplace Employment Data (2017) gives us an insight into the percentage growth in workers over 
the 10 year period 2007–2017. This data shows that the Information and Communication sector 
saw the largest percentage growth in workers in this period, whilst the greatest change in level of 
employment was in professional, scientific and technical activities, which grew by 8,200 people.

Flintshire and Wrexham have a higher proportion of the workforce employed by 
larger employers, and rural areas of Gwynedd, Conwy and Anglesey are much 

more reliant on SMEs.

For the year ending March 2019, the number of people in employment in North Wales was 
311,600 an increase of 0.4% compared with the previous twelve months.

Unemployment and Economic Inactivity

For the year ending March 2019, the number of people who were unemployed in North Wales was 
13,900. This was an increase of 1,700 people (13.5%) compared with the previous twelve months. 
However, the current unemployment rate stands at 4.0%, which is lower than Wales (4.5%)

Looking longer term, North Wales has seen a bigger improvement in employment and 
unemployment rate compared to Wales for the last 18 years. 

But, we have not seen vast improvements in economically inactive rates.

As of March 2019, the current economic inactivity rate (including students) stands at 21.3%, which 
is below the Wales average (23.3%) and UK average of (21.5%). Inactivity rates in Conwy and 
Denbighshire were above the Wales average. The key message here is that even though our 
economic inactivity rate as a region is below the Wales average, the figure has remained static 
over many years, higher in some counties, and this indicates a challenge for the region to reduce 
this figure. 

Average Earnings

The picture for earnings and income in the region is diverse. 

2017 figures show that Gwynedd has the lowest average full-time weekly earnings (£421.00) and 
second lowest in Wales. Anglesey and Conwy’s weekly average full-time weekly earnings are also 
lower in comparison with the Wales average (£509.00). This could indicate in-work poverty for the 
North West region in particular. 

However, at the opposite end of the region, Flintshire’s average earnings (£535.00) fare higher 
than that of Wales, and slightly below the UK average (£569.00). 

In 2018, the average weekly earnings in North Wales are down by 2.4%.

Page 44



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

27

There is a need to ensure inclusive growth across the region and address social and spatial 
irregularities/inequalities within the region. 

Growth needs to be dispersed and scalable.

There is a drive in the region not just to create jobs, but good quality, better paid jobs. Better jobs 
are jobs that enable progression that avoid the social and economic challenges of low pay and 
in-work poverty. Skills development plays a key role in enabling that progression.

Deprivation

The Welsh Index for Multiple (WIMD) deprivation is the Welsh Government’s official measure of 
relative deprivation for small areas in Wales. It is designed to identify those small areas, known as 
Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) where there are the highest concentrations of several different 
types of deprivation. This recognises income and employment deprivation but also takes into 
account other factors such as environment and access to services, which are all significant factors 
around a region’s decline.

North Wales has a number of areas that are within the top 10% most deprived areas in Wales. These 
are predominantly located across the North Wales coastal and border areas. Two North Wales 
LSOAs are ranked as the second and third most deprived in Wales (in Rhyl and Wrexham 
respectively).

Applying cluster analysis methodology to this data enables the identification of those towns 
across North Wales that have the greatest concentration of residents living within the top 10% 
most deprived communities in Wales:

 Rhyl
 Wrexham Town
 Bangor
 Colwyn Bay & Llysfaen
 Caernarfon
 Holywell
 Shotton
 Llandudno
 Denbigh
 Holyhead

The form of that deprivation can be recognised in a number of ways, rural deprivation, areas 
that are ranked in the 10-20% decile in the WIMD, or those areas that have high scores in 
individual poverty and deprivation indicators. All are critical to the wellbeing of the communities 
affected, but must be viewed in a regional context.

Rurality

North West Wales (Anglesey, Gwynedd, Conwy and Denbighshire) are classed as rural areas. This 
rural sub-region is characterised by a business base made up of small and micro businesses and 
supply chain reliant on the foundation economy. Many of the most deprived areas in Wales are 
based in our rural areas in North Wales, which further emphasises the need to ensure inclusive 
growth across the whole economy. As indicated in the GVA section, North West Wales counties 

Page 45



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

28

have lower GVA per head than our urban counties. Furthermore, our rural areas are also 
characterised by an ageing population and outward migration of young people. 

Accessibility to services and training has also been highlighted as an issue, along with lack of 
infrastructure – be that travel or digital connectivity. People living in rural areas have to travel 
further to access services such as shopping, health, education and employment. This in itself can 
be an extra challenge for our residents in rural areas, and this is particularly important when we 
consider availability of skills provision. 

 However, many exciting and innovative solutions are being applied to the challenges facing our 
rural economy through LEADER (Rural Development Programme), with some exciting pilots in areas 
of low carbon and digital as well skills development and graduate retention, such as the Arfor 
Project. 

The Arfor Innovation fund will target support in areas where there is a high percentage of 
Welsh speakers and an inflow of older people and outflow of younger people. It will focus on 
those areas where the foundational and agricultural economy are of vital importance and in 

market and university towns where low incomes remain an issue.

This innovative programme aims to test out new approaches to promote entrepreneurship, 
business growth, community resilience and skills development, with a focus on the use of 

Welsh language. This programme will help guide future activity in areas where we know the 
rural and foundation economies are of paramount importance, our Welsh speaking and rural 

heartlands.

Cross-Border Economy 

The A55 expressway is a critical artery across North Wales linking to the M56, A494, A483 and other 
major road networks, that is used to promote routes and pathways for skills, employment, culture, 
science, and innovation.

However, it also links the emerging centres of excellence being developed to support skills in both 
the workplace and academia across North Wales and across the border. Extending from the 
Menai Science Park (M-SParc) and new Canolfan STeM on Anglesey, to the potential suggested 
developments of a Tourism & Hospitality Academy in Conwy to the  flagship Advanced 
Manufacturing Research Institute (AMRC Cymru) at Deeside. This snapshot of the facilities and 
centres of excellence across the region from east to west can then be further promoted with cross-
border opportunities and the potential for the Cheshire Science Corridor and Thornton Science 
Park to be an additional extension of our regional offer and skills. 

With strategic sites promoting employment and high-level skills across North Wales and into 
England, the skills and employment offer for this wider geography should not underestimated with 
its proximity to Liverpool, Manchester, and wide Northern Powerhouse geographies.

£22bn

is the GVA for the cross-
border area known as the 

Mersey Dee

27,000

companies are based in the 
cross-border area stretching 
from Flintshire to the Wirral

380,000

jobs currently in this area, with 
50,000 new jobs to be 

created by 2040 

Page 46



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

29

The mobility of skills and the labour market within North Wales continues to develop, and this 
mobility is likely to further increase with further employment opportunities resulting from regional 
transformational projects. Within the region, people will travel up to 90 minutes to access well-paid 
employment opportunities. Mobility of jobs and labour within the region is a key message for our 
young people to be made aware of.

Whilst the cross-border area is not eligible to proceed with its own Growth Bid or City Deal, both 
the North Wales Growth Bid, and the Cheshire & Warrington Growth Deal, are looking to mirror key 
components on either side of the border, to further enhance the synergy supporting skills, 
employability, and transport and infrastructure, that are critical to our employers, labour market, 
and students for whom there is no barriers or borders to movement and progression. We have also 
been working closely with the Mersey Dee Alliance Skills Group to develop an investment 
programme for cross-border skills issues which will be developed further over the coming months. 
One of the key areas that will be considered in more detail in gaining greater clarity for businesses 
and stakeholders about how to navigate the policy differences related to apprenticeships cross 
border.

Cross-border differences between provision and funding regulations seems to create issues for 
some employers in North Wales and more so with the levy payers. These issues are around 
alignment and portability of qualifications. A number of employers are frustrated at the lack of 
funding available in Wales at a Level 6 and above and the lack of flexibility for the apprentice to 
study within a college in England if this is geographically the best option for the employer and 
the apprentice. 

Travel to Work Area

It is estimated that 80% of the working age population reside within the cross-border area. Data 
tells us that 28,600 travel from North Wales into England to work, whereas 32,400 people make the 
opposite journey. It is also clear from ONS data that the distance travelled to work by people with 
level 4+ qualifications tends to be much higher than is the case for people with lower 
qualifications, suggesting that the likelihood is that many of these commuters are North Wales 
graduates. 

Population & Demography 
The region has a resident population of 690,300 and is characterised by an ageing workforce.  The 
population is expected to increase by 1.2% between 2018 and 2023, adding 8,126 people to our 
education and skills pipeline.

Wrexham’s population is projected to grow the most by 2028. Meanwhile, Anglesey’s population 
is projected to contract by 0.5% by 2028 and by 2.4% by 2038 relative to the 2018 population 
projection. The populations of 2 authorities, Conwy and Flintshire, are projected to grow over the 
next ten years, and then contract in the following ten years.

Across North Wales, the population of adults aged 65 and over is projected to grow to 189,500 by 
2028, an increase of 16.6% on the projected figure for 2018. By 2038, this figure is projected to 
increase to 214,600, an increase of 32.0% on the projected figure for 2018. 

The population of adults aged 65 and over is projected to grow at a higher rate 
than the total population during this period, which is a challenge for a region 

and the health, medical and social care sector. 
Page 47



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

30

This figure could be exacerbated if there is a reduction in the number of EU workers employed in 
the region. These figures are particularly pertinent to our skills planning going forward as 
replacement demand will become an increasing issue, especially in some sectors of the economy.

The demography of young people 14-18 years old has remained flat for the past 9 years, but, from 
this year onwards, we will be seeing an increase in population across the 6 counties for this age 
range, which will be a key consideration for post-16 curriculum planning and potential good news 
for hard-to-fill vacancies and skills gaps. 

Coupled with an ageing population across the region, and the talent drain with outward 
migration of graduates, we need to make full use of the potential workforce including those 

with lower employment rates. 

There is a real challenge in how to address a workforce replacement demand gap.

Welsh Speakers

According to census data, there were 204,406 Welsh speakers aged three and above in the region 
in 2011. Data from the Annual Population Survey shows that in the year ending June 2018, 
Gwynedd was the authority with the highest number of Welsh speakers both in North Wales and 
Wales as a whole, with 76.4% of residents aged three and over saying that they could speak Welsh. 
Flintshire had the lowest rate of Welsh-speaking in North Wales at approximately 23.3%. On a 
regional level, North Wales had the highest proportion of Welsh speakers in Wales, at an estimated 
42.7% (June 2018). This has important implications for our skills system, and in the next section we 
will be considering what businesses have told us about Welsh language skills.

Working Age Population with No Qualifications / Higher 
Qualifications

The percentage of working age (18-64) people in the region with no 
qualifications stands at 7.0% (2018) which compares favourably with the Wales 
average of 8.4%. The number of people with no qualifications is on a positive 
trajectory and has shown a steady decrease over a period of time. However, 
there are variances across the region, and this data shows us that Flintshire’s 
proportion of working age people with no qualifications (8.8%) was higher than that of Wales. 
Turning to the higher end of the qualification spectrum, 36.3% of the working age population have 
a level 4+ qualification in comparison with Wales (37.8%).

Again, there are variances in each county across the region:

Page 48



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

31

Working Age Adults Qualified to Level 4 or above in North Wales % (2018)

Anglesey 40.3

Gwynedd 39.4

Conwy 38.8

Denbighshire 35.5

Flintshire 31.4

Wrexham 35.6

North Wales 36.3

Wales 37.8

Source: Annual Population Survey, Office for National Statistics – StatsWales

Projections for demand by Qualification Level

According to Working Futures projections, overall in North Wales, there will be a large increase 
from 2014 to 2024 in those qualified at a higher level -  QCF level 4-6 (+58.9%) and 7-8 (+17.7%). 
Overall, there will be a significant decrease in those with no qualifications (-66.7%) and those 
qualified at QCF level 1 (-21.5%). 

Page 49



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

32

Current North Wales Education & Skills Landscape

Our current provision:

Pre-16 Post-16 18+

347 Primary Schools 54  Secondary schools

2 Further Education Colleges:

 Grŵp Llandrillo Menai
 Coleg Cambria

3 HE Institutions:

 Bangor University
 Glyndŵr University
 Open University in Wales

There are 9 Special  Schools and 2 Middle Schools in the area.

Further Education Colleges

Both of our further education colleges – Grŵp Llandrillo Menai and Coleg Cambria – are classed 
as two of the largest FE institutions across Wales.

During the last 4 years there has been a clear and consistent focus on reducing the number in non-
priority provision across North Wales, and that the current provision for both FEIs reflects the 
demand needs of our labour market, and our past RSP Skills and Employment Plan.  

 

17,060 enrolled at Grŵp Llandrillo Menai in 
2017/18 (including FE,HE & WBL, all levels)

5,655 full time

8,445 part time

2,960 WBL

16,675 enrolled at Coleg Cambria in 2017/18 
(including FE & WBL, all levels)

6,275 full time

6,160 part time

4,235 WBL

Source: Lifelong Learning Wales Record, Welsh Government – StatsWales

Grŵp Llandrillo Menai continues to expand facilities at all of its sites across a wide geography, with 
its latest Canolfan STeM on its site in Llangefni, featuring some of the highest quality, most state-of-
the-art equipment in Wales. This Centre offers facilities that will help to meet the requirements of 
the energy, engineering and manufacturing sectors in the region, with workshops available across 
a range of disciplines including automation and robotics, CAD/CAM, and flow loop simulator. This 
Centre is a very important part of the jigsaw when it comes to promoting STEM subjects in the area. 
There is also an intention to move the Bangor campus to the Parc Menai site in Bangor, which will 
create a creative and digital hub.

Coleg Cambria also has some of the best teaching, learning and training facilities in Wales and 
the UK which includes a Centre of Excellence for Engineering, University Centre, a state-of-the-art 
Sixth Form, a STEM Centre, and Cambria Business School. Bersham Road has also undergone a 
£8.5m investment to provide a new state-of-the-art Engineering Technology Centre. Work is also 
underway on the £20m redevelopment to Coleg Cambria buildings at Deeside, Northop, and 
Bersham Road. 

Page 50



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

33

Both our FEIs have been involved in shaping and developing this plan and the planning and 
funding template. There was a general agreement on some of the challenges and issues that 
are facing the region’s skills system, including perceptions of sectors and the importance of STEM 
and digital skills. Changing young people’s perception of careers in specific sectors is key in 
changing the take-up of some courses, especially those geared towards our key sectors in the 
economy. They also agree that it’s important to provide young people, and their parents, with 
the right information on learning routes and progression to various levels – vocational and work 
based learning, in order to ensure that they are able to make informed decisions about their 
choices.  

Apprenticeships & Work Based Learning

We have seen a steady increase in apprenticeships and work based learning opportunities in the 
region over the last 3 years. There were 11,450 apprentices in North Wales 2017/18, with 6,250 
apprenticeship programme starts. There has been a steady increase in levels 2, 3 and 4+ 
apprenticeships in this time; however, there are variances according to the sector and learning 
programmes with highest numbers in Healthcare and Public Services, Business Administration, 
Engineering and Construction. This is in line with the needs and growth in our economy.

The majority of the apprenticeships were offered at Foundation Level (level 2), slightly less at level 
3 and less again at level 4+. 

There has been a 46.9% increase in apprenticeship programmes started in North Wales 
between 2014-18

Pr ivate training providers are also a st rong del ivery asset for apprent iceships and 
work based training in North Wales working closely with employers and individuals 
across a broad range of sectors and geographies to support staff  f rom operat ional 
entry level  to senior and managerial  levels .  

Mir ror ing the sectors,  there are stark gender dif ferences on apprent iceships 
programmes, with f igures for females enter ing Engineer ing and Construct ion 
apprent iceships very low in comparison to Health and Social  Care and Business.  
This  has impl icat ions when we consider how we tackle STEM issues and widen 
part ic ipat ion across al l  sectors.

Higher Education

Our HE institutions play an important regional, national and international role 
when reflecting our current and future skills demands. For North Wales to thrive 
as a productive, innovative, high-skill economy we recognise the key role played 

by our HE partners to build a strong and dynamic knowledge base. Without it, we cannot sustain 
the growth of the high-performing sectors that will deliver our economic prosperity. Employers that 
our universities work with, and the research and innovation expertise of the universities, see 
research collaborations and industrial partnerships across Wales and wider. 

Page 51



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

34

Both Bangor University & Glyndŵr University are anchor institutions in our region: major providers of 
full-time higher education, aligned to growth sectors, continuing professional development for 
regional employers, provide graduate start-ups and scale-up support, and knowledge exchange 
for high-growth companies. Bangor University has a growing specialism in Nuclear and Low Carbon 
Energy R&D, with the proposed location of the UK National Nuclear Thermal Hydraulic Facility (£40 
million major research and testing facility) in Gaerwen, linked to the Low Carbon Centre of 
Excellence Growth Deal proposal. Glyndŵr University has a particular specialism in harnessing optic 
technologies at its OpTIC centre in St Asaph. 

Research and Development uplift in the region cannot happen without the skills 
pipeline and the role of our HE institutions in harnessing these higher-level skills are 

integral. 

Our HEIs are also playing a key role in encouraging graduate start-ups in the region, but the RSP 
are keen to explore this even further with a regional incubation start-up programme which will play 
a crucial role in ensuring that our graduates stay and work in the region. We want to work 
collaboratively with our HEIs and other research institutions to develop greater business–HE 
engagement, thus driving innovation and the scale-up of the economy. 

In 2017/18 there were approximately 17,290 students studying at our higher education institutions 
at Bangor and Glyndŵr. The Open University in Wales also has a number of part-time students in 
north Wales and has seen a significant increase in student numbers since the inception of the 
Diamond funding in 2018/19.

Over 70% of provision within both Bangor University and Glyndŵr University are aligned to the key 
and growth sectors identified within previous annual Skills and Employment Plans. 

Both regional universities and the OU have put a significant amount of resources into developing 
degree apprenticeship programmes for Engineering and digital, with the identification and 
development of facilities and approaches in line with the WG and HEFCW approach. This included 
as a region, with our HEIs supported by the RSP, developing the projected outcomes of the two 
pilots which ranged from an additional 200+ STEM based graduates from the region by 2024, to 
the associated developments with employers in developing bespoke complimentary support 
packages in addition to the degree apprenticeships. As an RSP, we actively support the creation 
and take-up of higher and degree apprenticeships, and the development of clear progression 
routes through FE to HE.

Graduate Destinations (Bangor University, Glyndŵr University and University of Chester)

A mapping exercise was conducted of graduate destinations over a five-year period from the two 
traditional universities in North Wales and the University of Chester against the priority industry 
sectors. The study identified how many of the universities’ graduates stayed in the region and what 
proportion of them were employed in key sectors, whilst comparing with the picture outside the 
region. 

Of those graduates who stayed in the region, 61% have found work within sectors deemed to be 
our priority sectors for future economic growth. 

When we zoom in on the data and map where our graduates go if they stay in the region, and if 
they work in what’s deemed to be priority sectors, it emerges that the distribution of graduates 

Page 52



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

35

across the sectors are not even. The top 4 sectors are Life Sciences, Health and Social Care; Retail, 
Tourism and Hospitality; Financial and Professional Services. However it’s important to note that 
Education and Public Services do underpin the wider economy and are large graduate-level 
employing sectors.

‘Brain Drain’ of graduates has been a long standing challenge for the region, and Wales as a 
whole. A report by think tank Resolution Foundation in 2017 indicated that Wales attracted 23,807 
graduates between 2013 and 2016, but 44,335 left – a difference of 20,528. This, coupled with a 
high proportion of graduates in jobs that do not require a degree (skills under-utilisation), is an issue 
for the region. Many schemes have seeked to address this issue in the past, such as the Llwybro – 
Routes Project (WDA), and, more recently, the Darogan Network. This is a challenge that the region 
will need to tackle, and the encouragement of graduate start-up programmes and further 
links/work experiences with businesses in the region could help us address this issue.  

Careers Advice & Guidance

The RSP recognises the crucial role that Careers Wales play in providing impartial careers 
information and guidance to young people and adult customers across the region, as well as the 
support they provide to parents and teachers as key influencers. The perceptions children have 
about certain jobs and careers are formed at a young age and this is highlighted in the annual 
survey carried out by Careers Wales with young people in Key Stage 4. The RSP is committed to 
further developing our working relationship with Careers Wales in ensuring that the skills mismatches 
are highlighted to key influencers and that young people have access to up-to-date LMI and 
employer engagement activities. We fully support the need for Careers and Work Related 
Experiences (CWRE) to be embedded in all 6 Areas of Learning within the new curriculum and that 
children in primary schools are introduced to careers related experiences.  

Career Check Data

Career Check is the name given to a diagnostic questionnaire that Careers Wales uses with 
mainstream pupils in year 10, as a diagnostic tool on their options and ideas after year 11.  The 
Career Check occupational choice indicates their 1st, 2nd or 3rd choice of career/job (as rough 
ideas in year 10) and consists of a list of 30 occupational choices.

The analysis of data from the Career Check survey is an indication that young people’s knowledge 
and perceptions of occupational choices is narrow at that age and that Careers Education needs 
to be introduced at an earlier age in order to broaden young people’s career ideas and 
aspirations, based on regional needs and growth sectors, where the jobs will be. Also, if young 
people are going to be making apprenticeship choices at age 16, schools need to provide young 
people with a robust careers education programme with a focus on developing their 
employability skills.

The RSP has undertaken a 3-year data analysis of the Careers Wales Career Check survey for North 
Wales pupils.

The total year 10 cohort in North Wales annually is approximately 6,700 mainstream Year 10 young 
people. From this potential total cohort number in the North, an average 85% response rate has 
been captured over three years, which is an excellent response rate.

Page 53



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

36

The most popular first choice occupational area of interest for North Wales pupils over the three 
years is Leisure, Sports and Tourism. The three-year trend analysis shows that young people have 
quite traditional career ideas with very similar patterns of response despite different messages 
coming from the labour market and employers. According to Career Check, the occupational 
choices of young people in year 10 have remained fairly stagnant over the three years. However, 
in 2017 there was a sharp increase in year 10 pupils indicating that having an apprenticeship after 
year 11 was their first choice. 

The highest ranking apprenticeships as first choice occupations were engineering, construction in 
second place, and leisure, sports and tourism in third place. This rise could be a good indication 
that young people, teachers and parents are being influenced by the media marketing and 
careers advice of the benefits of apprenticeships. If this trend continues, or remains as high as this, 
employers will need to increase the number of apprenticeship vacancies available in order to 
meet the supply of potential labour. Also, if young people are going to be making apprenticeship 
choices at age 16, there needs to be better careers education and preparation in terms of young 
people's employability skills and their perception of certain sectors.

There are indications that young people are choosing careers in the growth and priority sectors, 
however not across the board and this is something we are keen to tackle across the region.  

STEM Skills 

There is widespread awareness of the importance of STEM and digital skills as jobs and sectors 
evolve in our economy. STEM has been highlighted as a key challenge during our consultation on 
this Plan, and if we are to develop our STEM workforce we need a sufficient flow of secondary 
school students who are interested in, and have a grounding in, science and maths. 

STEM 
Skills

Food and 
Drink

Energy & Low 
Carbon

Creative 
Industries

Construction

IT & Digital

Advanced 
Manufacturing

Page 54



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

37

When looking at the numbers of individuals in school studying maths and science, the results 
suggests that North Wales’ capacity to develop more STEM skilled workforce is limited by falling 
participation in year 12 science and maths. In the case of women, this is impeded by an alarmingly 
low participation. The figures are similar for apprenticeship participation in these subjects/sectors 
also. There is a pressing need to reverse these trends in order to overcome these limitations.

Data released for the region on achievements at GCSE Level in 2018 show that across the region’s 
54 secondary schools, 6,259 pupils were entered for GCSE examinations in STEM subjects.

An indicative average achievement rate of 58% of pupils achieved grades.

A*-C in GCSE Mathematics, 58% A8-C achievement in ICT and 57% in CDT.  Single science subjects 
achieved higher results per subject than double awards. It is difficult to have an accurate regional 
average measure and these are indicative figures only. There are vast variations between 
individual schools, and not all schools deliver each subject.

Sector reviews of Qualifications (Construction and the Built Environment, 2018, & Delivering Digital: 
Sector Review 2018) note that qualifications do not sufficiently cover working with new 
technologies. IT and ICT skills are used in many qualifications and sectors, but are usually outdated, 
used infrequently and the lack of digital/ICT apprenticeship frameworks has led some employers 
and work based learning providers to direct apprentices towards business administration 
apprenticeships. GCSE and AS/A Level ICT qualifications still include outdated content and do not 
cover some important topics relevant to the digital industry. Some of the other barriers noted are 
insufficient numbers of Welsh-medium resources available, outdated equipment used in 
educational establishments, and the need for teachers/lecturers to have better access to more 
up-to-date CPD. Work is being scoped on a digital skills project for the region, which will form part 
of a solution. 

If we are to respond regionally with a future workforce that is qualified and skilled to meet the 
future STEM based opportunities across the region, we need a greater co-ordinated approach 
and careers advice and guidance to help steer individuals towards some of these opportunities 
at an earlier age.

A key and consistent message from micro and large employers alike is the 
struggle to recruit apprentices and a workforce with STEM skills. Providers also tell 

us that there is a lack of young people interested in STEM subjects. There is a 
clear mismatch here that needs to be addressed. 

Work is  current ly ongoing in the region to develop a STEM statement,  which wi l l  
see a framework developed between schools, FE, HE and employers in a bid to inspire and 
enthuse individuals about future careers in STEM related industr ies.  There is  an 
appetite within the region to create a ser ies of wor ld class STEM hubs which would 
help to al l ieviate some of the recruitment issues facing our employers.     

Page 55



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

38Page 56



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

39

What did our employers say? 
This section focusses specifically on what 

employers bring to the analysis of the skills offer in our region. 
The focus of our consultation was on identifying their 
perception of key skills issues for their business/sector/region. 
Here, we will draw on the consultations and employer survey 
that we’ve undertaken as a Regional Skills Partnership. We will 
also draw on other employer consultations in the region, 
including the biennial UK Employer Skills Survey, the FSB’s A 
Skilful Wales Survey, and intelligence & data from other sources 
including Emsi and Working Futures projections.  

Overall, our employers report facing skills shortages and skills gaps across all sectors. In our Skills 
Survey, we asked about the main challenges currently facing them. The top 5 were:

Main Challenges %

Recruitment 56.41

Economic/Financial Challenges 41.03

Making a Profit 31.20

Developing Staff 30.77

Perception of Sector 27.35

When we asked a specific question about the skills challenges facing our employers, the following 
issues were flagged by the majority of respondents:

Main Skills Challenges

Gaps in specific skills needed to undertake their role 

Work-ready skills and employability skills and the need for an agile and resilient 
workforce

Shortage of  workforce with STEM & digital skills

Succession planning & replacement demand

Qualifications do not always fit industry needs

Apprenticeship frameworks don’t meet industry needs

Enterprise & innovation skills

Work experience

Page 57



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

40

Skills-shortage Vacancies

Skills-shortage vacancies arise where employers are unable to fill vacancies because of no or 
insufficient applicants with the required skill sets. This has a direct effect on businesses’ profit and 
productivity levels. In our survey, 56.41% of businesses cited recruitment as their biggest challenge.  

From a wider perspective, a skills shortage also represents a lost opportunity for graduates from 
colleges or university who do not match employer needs, as well as unemployed people who are 
looking for work. 

Over a quarter of vacancies in North Wales (30%) were proving hard to fill due to applicants lacking 
the necessary skills, qualifications or experience. This is up from 27% in 2015 and is also above the 
Wales average. 

Employer Skills Survey 2017: Skills-shortage vacancies by region 

Region
Number of skill-shortage 

vacancies (2017)
Density (% of 

vacancies)

Wales 10,000 27%

North Wales 3,000 30%

Mid Wales 1,000 29%

South East Wales 4,000 25%

South West Wales 2,000 28%

Evidence from our employer survey noted that Tourism and Health and Social care businesses 
reported the most difficulties in filling vacant positions. Evidence from employer surveys has shown 
that difficulties in recruiting and filling vacancies are mostly due to an insufficient quality and 
number of applicants.

Skills Gaps

Skills gaps arise when a proportion of employers report at least one of their employees are 
operating below the require competency in their job role. Our survey shows us that 61% of all 
businesses are currently facing a skills gap, and this figure increases/decreases depending on the 
sector. We will visit the differences per sector in our next section.  

There are a range of reasons to explain why employers are experiencing skills gaps, including that 
recruits are new to the role, or that they are not up to speed with new responsibilities/regulations. 
This has been highlighted by the Employer Skills Survey 2017, IFF Research (North Wales figures), 
where 75% of businesses indicated that the main cause of a skills gap was that staff are new to the 
role. Skills gaps have the following impact on our businesses:

Page 58



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

41

Employer Skills Survey 2017: Impact of Skills Gaps in North Wales

Impact 2017

Increase workload for other staff 53%

Higher operating costs 32%

Difficulties meeting quality standards 27%

Lose business or orders to competitors 22%

We also asked businesses in the region which occupational areas were proving a challenge for 
them in terms of recruitment issues and skills gaps:

North Wales RSP Employer Survey 2019: Challenges per occupation

Occupation 2019 

Skilled trades occupations 38%

Caring, leisure  and other service occupations 29%

Professional occupations 25%

* Evidence from North Wales RSP Employer Skills Survey (2019)

71% of employers in the region are having difficulty in recruiting for specific roles*

Changing skill set requirements

More widely, the evidence from our employer survey, focus groups and consultations have 
indicated the changing nature of the labour market and the different skill sets that will be needed 
to satisfy employer needs: 

 Agility and resilience to respond to different employment opportunities and different tasks 
and demands within jobs, as organisations become flatter in structure and more responsive 
to change;

 Greater use and application of IT & digital skills across all sectors and occupations, 
including programming, network development, software engineers, cyber security, and 
coding;

 STEM skills to respond to advancements made in the engineering, digital and advanced 
manufacturing sectors in particular;

 Enterprise, entrepreneurial and marketing skills, particularly within the creative and digital 
sectors where self-employment and contract work is prevalent;

 Leadership and management skills to help organisations of all types to respond effectively 
to future economic opportunities and uncertainties, identify and adopt new product and 
process innovations to help raise the region’s productivity levels;

 Complex problem-solving skills, critical thinking, creativity and emotional intelligence.

Page 59



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

42

Skills Under-utilisation

This reflects the situation whereby employees are in roles or carrying out tasks which do not take 
full advantage of their skill sets and qualifications. 

In North Wales, 38% of employers report staff whose skills and qualifications are more advanced 
than their current job (Employer Skills Survey, 2017). This is the highest in Wales, and is higher than 
the Welsh average (36%). It is also another example of mismatch in the labour market: the market 
is not creating jobs that use these skills to the best result.

It is important to consider employers’ future employment intentions as part of the whole picture. It 
is clear that employers are intending on taking on more staff across Wales (FSB: A Skilful Wales). It 
should be noted however that only 36% of businesses in North Wales had intentions to increase 
employment – the lowest in Wales. This, coupled with the uncertainty that Brexit brings, should be 
considered in the bigger picture and the trajectory for the region.

“The lack of skills and work experience, along with reducing workforce numbers 
and Brexit creates a perfect storm. This prevents growth and ambition.” 

RSP Survey Respondent (June, 2019)

Work-ready and Employability Skills

During our analysis and consultations, work-ready and employability skills have been emphasised 
as something that needs to be addressed in the region. The respondents were clear that they want 
more focus on the development of transferrable employability skills. Better employability skills will 
help people find work and progress in those jobs, benefitting people across the region. This 
message is picked up by the CBI/Pearson Education and Skills Annual Report (2018), which shows 
that over half of employers value broader skills such as problem solving. 

Employability skills from an employer perspective consider the ‘work ready’ aspect, such as 
communication skills, and basic literacy skills, and what could be classed as ‘soft skills’. Generally, 
21% of employers questioned as part of our survey noted that they felt that recruits were ‘not work 
ready’ and 56.9% noted that ‘it varies’. 

The main reasons attributed to these results include poor attitude and motivation (49%), lack of 
resilience and communication skills, and 50% noted work experience as the main issue.

 “Having good communication skills and having the correct attitude is key for us. 
We find that new recruits often lack these skills. Developing these skills through 

work experience and other activities could help.” 
RSP Survey Respondent (June, 2019)

Page 60



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

43

Secondary evidence is showing that analytical skills and creative thinking are in demand from 
employers. Our survey supports this notion, and we are seeing much more of an emphasis on what 
is classed as ‘soft skills’. There is evidence to suggest that work experience can provide individuals 
with work-ready skills.

Employability skills are also key in the broader context of ensuring inclusive growth and ensuring 
that people are able to access jobs. It is important to recognise those who need help and support 
in getting into employment – many are not job ready and/or have too many barriers in their way. 
To support these people on their journey to employment, there is a need to respond locally with 
bespoke support. The Employability Pathway group is currently considering this matter, and 
working with our North Wales Advisory Group (Steering Group for implementation of Working Wales 
in North Wales), they have developed a framework/5 step pathway to ensure co-ordinated 
support to help people into work and encourage collaboration and alignment between providers. 
Priority actions have been identified for this work, along with a short/medium and longer-term plan 
to take this work forward. Presently, the focus is on trialling the pathway with 2 of our key sectors – 
Health & Social Care, and Construction.  

The RSP has developed good partnership work and delivered projects with the regional education 
consortia, GwE, to explore ways of embedding regional employers’ messages within the current 
pre-16 education provision. With the welcome development and introduction of the New 
Curriculum for Wales, the RSP is keen to explore more ways to harness this opportunity that can 
potentially align the economic needs with the pre-16 education system in schools. 

Brexit

From the 189 businesses who answered our question on Brexit in our survey, it is clear that loss of 
staff and loss of skills are not the biggest challenges:

What challenge does the prospect of Brexit pose for your business? %

Increased costs 43.92

None 31.22

Funding 29.63

Procurement 17.46

Loss of staff 14.81

Loss of skills 14.29

Relocate outside the UK 3.17

However, Brexit is a concern for some sectors more than others, with the Food and Farming, 
Manufacturing, Leisure & Tourism and Health and Social Care sectors expected to be significantly 
affected. We will consider what employers have told us about Brexit in the next section.

In a time of political and economic uncertainties, there is an even more pressing need to ensure 
that our skills system is flexible and responsive to deal with potential ‘shocks’ to the economy. 

Page 61



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

44

Welsh Language

Our Skills Survey indicated that 48.2% of businesses say that their workforce need and use the Welsh 
language (based on 222 responding to that question). 14.39% of the business surveyed cited ‘oral 
Welsh language’ skills as a skills challenge. In addition, only a further 11.0% suggested that ‘written 
Welsh language’ skills were a skills challenge for them.

Following discussion with various employers, it is clear that the level of importance of Welsh within 
different sectors varies significantly. For instance, the Health and Social Care sector indicated that 
the language is incredibly important for them, so much so that a recommendation has been made 
to develop bilingual provision within the subject. In addition, the Creative Industries recognise the 
importance of the language and indicates that it is difficult to recruit individuals with the desired 
linguistic skills.

Gender

44% of our survey respondents noted that their workforce is relatively gender-balanced, but the 
situation does vary according to sector, with a higher representation of females in the Health and 
Social Care and Financial and Professional sectors, and less in the Construction, Advanced 
Manufacturing and Energy and Environment sectors. Further detail will be provided on gender 
variances in each sector overview. 

Page 62



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

45

Spotlight on our sectors
 In this section, our aim is to provide a deeper analysis per sector, which will 
include a sector profile snapshot, skills challenges, and issues and priorities, as 
specified by our employers as part of our consultation. Evidence for this section 
includes our employer survey, workshops, consultation sessions and telephone 
interviews. We have also, where possible, referenced other evidence/data 
sources to enhance our findings. 

Our Sectors

 Energy & Environment 
 Construction
 Advanced Manufacturing
 Creative & Digital
 Financial & Professional
 Tourism  & Hospitality
 Health & Social Care
 Food & Farming

The sector infographics can be seen in Annex 3.

Energy and Environment

Sector Snapshot 

The Energy and Environment sector is a key employer in North Wales. The energy 
cluster is a key driver and, as it continues to expand, businesses will need to be 
well-equipped to exploit opportunities, especially as new technologies come on 
board. 

The low carbon economy in particular is at the forefront of wider changes in the 
labour market, driven by a merging of traditional sector skills and a drive towards energy 
efficiency. There is a drive to position North Wales as one of the leading UK locations for low carbon 
energy generation and energy-related supply chain investment. As a result, there is a need to 
ensure that our skills system is aligned with energy priorities to help provide a workforce with 
capabilities to support energy transition in North Wales. 

Regionally, Flintshire, Gwynedd and Anglesey have the largest share of businesses operating in this 
sector, with the likes of Minesto, Morlais and Parc Adfer Deeside listed as some of the key businesses 
in the area.

Growth 

The sector is changing and skills system will need to keep up with the changing needs and 
requirements. According to Emsi data, the sector is expected to grow by 1.5% from 2019 to 2022. 

Page 63



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

46

On a regional level, there are plans afoot to develop a Regional Energy Strategy and Delivery 
Plan, which aims to ensure maximum local economic and social benefits from the transition to a 
low carbon, clean growth economy, by becoming a net exporter of renewable electricity and 
harnessing cross border regional cooperation. The low carbon economy in particular faces a 
range of pressures and skills supply driven by new technologies, and a changing national policy 
landscape (Wales Policy). 

With major new infrastructure investment in low carbon economy areas, including energy 
generation, there is a pressing need to ensure the availability of skilled employees. Energy and 
Environment is therefore identified as a key sector for our economy, because of the role it is 
envisaged to play in the future. Some of the key future priorities include:

 Off-shore wind and solar and sustainable marine renewables – Morlais and Minesto are 
currently at the forefront of development of tidal energy technology in Anglesey;

 Clean transport and the rollout of electric vehicles. SP Energy Project Charge is a £38.5m 
trailblazer trial in the region as a pilot;

 Exploring the potential of alternative fuels such as hydrogen;
 Rural low carbon heating.

Other Growth Deal projects also need to be considered, with the Trawsfynydd Small Modular 
Reactors (SMR) for nuclear industry and the nuclear energy Centre of Excellence that aims to 
establish world-class facilities and expertise on sustainable energy with a strong nuclear focus.

 “Deep Green Technology potential is so huge, this will be the 
new coal industry for Wales – with one sigificant difference – 
it’s going to last forever.”

Dr Martin Edlund, Chief Executive, Minesto

The Workforce

The Energy and Environment sector directly employs approximately 16,789 in specialist energy and 
environmental companies across the region, not including the other indirect and supply chain 
employment it creates.  

The majority of businesses in this sector are in the micro-small category (under 50 employees), and, 
according to our survey, the majority of the workforce are in the 55+ age, which implies the need 
to consider replacement demand issues. The older age of the workforce heightens the importance 
of succession planning.

Skills Challenges

Our survey indicated that 50% of businesses are currently facing skills challenges in the sector, with 
a high percentage in the Professional, Technical and Skilled Trade occupations. It’s important to 
note here that the sector has a diverse mix of occupations and requirements, but it’s fair to note 
that the skills required in this sector are rooted in the Manufacturing and Construction sectors. 

Page 64



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

47

Feedback indicates that employers are looking for high-quality craft and technical skills at level 3 
to meet demand. In addition to these skills, employers have noted a distinct need for good-quality 
project managers and health and safety operatives. 

The sector is particularly diverse and is going through a rapid process of change, driven by 
technological innovation and shifting regulatory environments. There is a growing need for 
specialist IT skills to predict and improve the delivery of heat and power, and also requirements in 
cyber security. 

As we move towards implementing the North Wales Energy Strategy and Welsh Government’s 
policy drive, we will need to ensure that we have the right skills set in the region for the adoption 
of hydrogen, electric vehicles, offshore and wind technologies, and energy efficiency. STEM skills 
are crucial for careers in this sector, and we currently know that there is a lack of young people 
studying these subjects. 

Some of the other major challenges that have been highlighted by the sector are the lack of 
career progression and also the perception of the sector, especially amongst females. This 
correlates with our findings on STEM skills. If we are going to address these issues, we need to ensure 
career progression.

Recruitment

The majority of respondents indicated that they are experiencing difficulties in recruiting for specific 
roles, and these include engineering and conservation roles in particular, but also a need for 
qualified electricians, gas fitters and mechanical engineers.

Employers have told us the implementation of new technologies, especially in low carbon, is also 
creating a new demand for technical skills in efficient and renewable energy use. 

According to Working Futures (2014–2024), changing occupational compositions in the sector 
demonstrate a considerable increase in demand for high-level occupations such as managers, 
professional and associate professionals. Skilled trades occupations will continue to have the 
largest share of employment. Qualification levels are following the same trend, with an increase 
for level 4-6 and sustained demand for levels 2 and 3. 

Post-16 Provision & Apprenticeships

Apprenticeships are an important route into the energy and low carbon economy, which are 
tailored specifically to employers’ needs. Our survey shows that most employers in the sector are 
employing apprentices at level 3. With degree apprenticeships offered in Engineering at level 4+, 
employers have told us that there needs to be a clear progression across apprenticeships with a 
progression to higher qualifications.

In 2017/18 we had 560 starts in Engineering and Manufacturing, with the majority at level 3, and 25 
at level 4+.

Priorities for the Sector

 Increase STEM learners/pathways to ensure a workforce for the sector
 Gear the workforce with skills for implementation of new SMART technologies, especially 

low carbon
Page 65



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

48

 Expand apprenticeship opportunities in the sector in response to replacement demand 
issues

Construction

Sector Snapshot

The Construction sector continues to be of importance in the region, due to high levels of 
employment and GVA. The sector is diverse, and encompasses many skills and trades which work 
across a variety of disciplines and specialisms and a variety of projects, including major 
infrastructure work and housing needs. It’s fair to note that this industry in particular is highly 
responsive to boom times and downturns in the economy. The industry in this region is 
characterised by micro and small businesses.

The Construction Skills Network report for Wales (CITB) shows that, with work on Wylfa Newydd 
being suspended, the annual average growth rate for the sector in Wales has been revised down 
to 0.5% between 2019 and 2023. Modest growth is forecasted for private housing (1.3%), public 
non-housing (1.4%) and housing and repair work (1.8%). 

In terms of job creation, the level of output growth in Wales gives an annual increase of 0.1% in the 
construction workforce. This means that a workforce of nearly 111,700 at the end of 2018 is set to 
show a slight increase to 112,400 by the end of 2023. 

Growth

The recent suspension of Wylfa Newydd has severely hampered construction growth across Wales 
in terms of its annual expansion. However, modest growth is still expected over the next few years, 
and this owes in the main to the expansion of private housing output and the recovery in the non-
public housing sector. 

There are many construction opportunities on the horizon for the industry over the coming years; 
most will be connected to the North Wales Growth Deal package of projects, where it is 
anticipated that 6,230 Construction jobs will be created up to 2024 (there is a caveat on this figure 
if the Growth Deal timescales change). There are also opportunities linked to regeneration projects 
across the region, and other major capital builds:

The below lists some of the significant Glenigan projects in North Wales (CITB Data):

Project Value (£m) Start Date End Date Project Type

Housing/Commercial 
and Retail 
Development – 
Flintshire

235.6 2019 2028 New housing, 
Private 
Commercial, 
Private Industrial

Construction 
Framework - 
Denbighshire

142.0 2018 2022 Public Non-
housing

Page 66



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

49

Tidal Lagoon, Conwy 100.00 2022 2025 Infrastructure

Bypass – 
Bontnewydd, 
Caernarfon

65.5 2018 2021 Infrastructure

New Build 
Framework, 
Gwynedd

23.6 2019 2023 New housing

The Workforce

Data tells us that the majority of the workforce in this sector are male and in the 40-55+ age range, 
which indicates the need to ensure replacement demand in the sector over the coming years. 
Our Skills Survey results confirm this finding; 71.4% employed in sector in North Wales are male. 

Working Futures data for the sector in the region indicates that the gender gap will widen further 
up to 2024, with male employment increasing from 17,000 (2014) to 23,000 (2024). Female 
employment on the other hand sees no change, in contrast to national projections, remaining at 
a total of 3,000.

There is a key message here for gender and perceptions of the sector, an issue that is currently 
being tackled by CITB in the form of various initiatives, such as ‘Go Construct’, and an annually 
organised event marking International Women’s Day where CITB engage with schools across 
Wales to invite Year 8 and above female pupils to a number of events, where they can engage 
with local construction employers to learn more about opportunities within construction.

The employers who responded to our survey also noted that 57.14% of their workforce need and 
use the Welsh language.

Our survey also tells us that 58% of the workforce are currently experiencing barriers to training, and 
66.7% of those are having difficulty finding training providers to deliver the training needed. Some 
of the areas noted that could benefit from investment to upskill include site management, 
communication skills and groundworks.

Skills Challenges

The main challenges facing employers in this sector, according to our survey, are:
1. Recruitment (71.4%)
2. Developing staff (57.14%)

Our survey indicated that 78% of businesses are currently facing skills challenges in the sector, with 
a high percentage of those in Skilled Trade, Associate Professional and Technical and Professional 
occupations. Recruits lack specific skills in the following areas:

Professional Occupations:
 Architects
 Civil Engineers
 Surveyors

Page 67



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

50

 Construction Project Manager roles

Skilled Trades:
 Electrical trades
 Bricklayers
 Painters & Decorators
 Fencing

Some of the other challenges noted are that recruits also lack work-ready skills to perform their role 
such as communication, problem-solving, and numerical skills. 

Another key challenge to the future of the sector is the need to upskill the current workforce, and 
new entrants with digital skills. The introduction of new technologies and materials means that 
employees will need to be adaptable and possess high-level IT skills, including 3D modelling. 
Building Information Management and CAD and SMART technology will become increasingly 
important, and the sector will increasingly need to ensure that the workforce have these digital 
skills. A recent report by CITB in 2018, ‘Unlocking construction’s digital future: A skills plan for 
industry’, echoed this in terms of the need for construction leaders to drive digital transformation 
within the sector. Digital technologies will improve efficiency and productivity, but the construction 
industry has lagged behind others who are reaping the benefits of this transformation. Small and 
medium-sized employers in particular find it hard to introduce digital solutions.

The main challenges are:

 A lack of understanding of the business opportunities digital transformation brings; 
 The leadership required to spell out why the investment is needed, identify and adapt 

digital technology for their business, and to make it happen.

Without this digital leadership, construction companies are likely to struggle to keep up with 
technological advances and to compete with their rivals. To meet this challenge, CITB launched 
a commission to fund £1m on projects across the UK to support the sector to achieve digital 
transformation.

Post-16 Provision & Apprenticeships

In 2017/18 there were 4,790 learning opportunities in Construction in the region, and the upward 
trend in the number of learning activities at level 2 continues. Working Futures data demonstrates 
a continued demand for professional and skilled trades, with a decline in non-skilled and 
elementary occupations. This mirrors the information received in the employer survey. Level 1 
provision is recognised as an important entry point for the sector, and this was reinforced during 
our consultations. 

However, Working Futures data also confirms the increase in level 4-8 and, as noted, employers 
have also indicated problems in recruiting architects, civil engineering and surveyors. In 2017/18, 
there were no full-time first degree students enrolled in architecture, building and planning. 

Apprenticeships are an important route into the construction sector. In 2017/18, there were 1,055 
apprenticeship programmes in construction in North Wales, 560 of which were at level 2, 490 at 
level 3 and 10 higher apprenticeships. Our survey shows that 66.7% of employers in the sector are 
employing apprentices, mostly at levels 2 and 3, and few higher-level apprenticeships. For those 

Page 68



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

51

who didn’t employ an apprentice, they noted the main reason to be that the apprenticeship 
frameworks do not meet their needs. 

Increasing the number of apprenticeships remains of key importance to the Construction sector, 
particularly in lieu of an ageing workforce. For CITB, it forms one of their ‘Big Six’ objectives in 
respect to their 2019–2021 Business Plan setting a goal that, by 2025, they will deliver a 63% increase 
in the number of apprentices joining construction and a 110% increase in the diversity of 
applicants. To support this, the CITB increased attendance and achievement grant rates from 1st 
April 2019 and have further plans to provide additional help for travel and subsistence from 
September, as well as launching a pilot to help SMEs take on apprentices.

Brexit

The main issue that employers in the sector flagged with us was the increased cost, in relation 
specifically to exporting and importing. The second highest issue was that of procurement of 
services. Interestingly, only a small proportion reported loss of skills and staff as their 
issues/challenges with Brexit. 

Priorities that need to be addressed

 Upskill the current workforce and new entrants with digital skills and SMART technology – 
especially our small and micro businesses;

 Replacement demand is an issue within this sector and promoting apprenticeship 
opportunities for young entrants is key;

 Perception of the sector and encouragement of more female entrants.

Advanced Manufacturing

Sector Snapshot

Advanced Manufacturing (AM) makes a vital contribution to the regional and national economy. 
In North Wales, the top AM activities are Aerospace, Medical and Dental instruments and supplies, 
Metal Products, Veneer sheets and wood based panels, Pharmaceutical preparations, Food and 
Drink, Chemicals, Automotive, Electronics, and Precision Engineering.

Regionally, 57% of the industry is based in Flintshire, and these are mostly large employers such as 
Airbus, ConvaTec, Tata Steel Europe, Toyota, UPM-Kymmene, Kingspan and Ardagh Group.  These 
large companies support a number of smaller supply chain companies in the region which are 
vital for the economy. The North East is well known for this industry cluster; however, there are 
advanced manufacturing companies located across the whole region, with some significantly 
important employers in the counties further West, such as DMM and SIEMENS Healthineers in 
Llanberis, ISC in Bangor, Joloda Hydraroll in Anglesey and Ifor Williams Trailers in Denbighshire. The 
majority of AM companies in the region employ up to 50 people, and a third of these are micro 
businesses employing up to 9 people.  Conwy experienced the greatest increase of 23.5% in new 
AM enterprises during the three-year period, 2014–2017. 

The sector is currently buoyant and strong in the region, with a steady increase in GVA since 2015, 
an increase in gross weekly earnings, and great examples of expansion and innovation.  For 
example, the Hawarden-based company Cokebusters have expanded into the Middle East after 
securing a £7.5m contract. The family-run Ruth Lee Ltd business in Corwen is a world leading 

Page 69



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

52

provider of realistic manikins used to train rescue experts across the globe.  They are on track to 
record sales approaching £3m, thanks to exports. 

The next 10 years for the sector will see significant continuing structural change within the industry, 
driven by automation and digitalisation of processes and increasing reliance on a higher technical 
and professional workforce. Our regional anchor companies, large employers and their smaller 
supply chains will need to be prepared to rise to this challenge and invest in the opportunities 
ahead. There is an expectation and opportunity for regional partners such as FE and HE providers, 
Business Wales, FSB and SEMTA to support employers through this period of change.

Growth

The Advanced Manufacturing sector has been, and still is, a strong regional driver in terms of 
productivity. The sector is predicted to grow by 1.5% from 2019 until 2022.

The confidence in expertise and strength of the sector in the region has brought the flagship 
Advanced Manufacturing facility to the region, the AMRC Cymru. The Advanced Manufacturing 
Research Centre’s aim is to encourage and support the sector to the next level of innovation to 
enable growth, by increasing productive collaboration between industry, academic partners and 
entrepreneurs. It will engage with businesses to adopt Industry 4.0 technologies and demystify and 
de-risk the processes through research, collaboration and knowledge. Projections suggest that the 
facility could drive up Welsh GVA by as much as £4bn over the next 20 years. Airbus has been 
officially confirmed as the first tenant when the facility opens its doors in autumn 2019. The AMRC 
will be able to collaborate with public and private sector partners to create the step change 
already afoot in the sector, and provide the confidence and leadership needed to navigate the 
current and future technological challenges.  

The Workforce

The Advanced Manufacturing sector directly employs approximately 36,000 people in North 
Wales, not including the other indirect and supply chain employment it creates. North Wales is an 
area of national significance for the sector, with 27.4% share of Wales’ manufacturing industry 
being based in North Wales.

However, there is a risk to the sector due to the current age profile of the AM&M workforce across 
the region, where 38% are aged 50+.  

This ageing workforce is a challenge for the region in terms of replacement demand, thus creating 
a skills shortage and demand replacement of an average 30% across all levels in the sector. 
Investment in upskilling the current workforce and succession planning is a key message for 
employers as well as regional education and training providers to support the sector to achieve 
this.   

Skills Challenges

Employment forecasts are mixed for the sector, with a projected increase in demand for higher-
level skills, according to Working Futures. Our survey indicates that the biggest skills challenges 
faced by the sector are in the Professionals and Associate Professionals & Associate occupations. 
Approximately 580 will be required at these levels per annum up to 2023. These professionals 
include project managers, quality control specialists, process engineers, lean management, 
logistics management, and engineering drawings. Page 70



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

53

There is also a demand for skilled trade occupations, which include vehicle and trailer 
manufacturing and machinery manufacturing.

The main challenges faced by our employers, as reported in our survey, are:

 Specialist skills or knowledge needed to perform the role
 Problem-solving skills
 Communication skills
 Advanced or IT specialist skills

Recent employer consultation by SEMTA in North Wales indicated that postgraduate and MEng 
level qualifications were needed by the sector to keep up-to-date with the demands and 
competition of technological changes. However, the region’s current skills shortages reported by 
the RSP employer survey and SEMTA are also in the mid-level skilled trades occupations and lower-
level process, plant, and machine operatives. For example, there were 203 vacancies posted for 
production workers in North Wales in 2018-2019, the highest job postings recorded, followed by 136 
postings for welders/solderers. The changing composition of occupations in the sector will be a 
challenge in order to keep up with, and ahead of, technological changes already taking place.   

Employers in the sector responding to the recent RSP survey also noted that recruitment, staff 
development and succession planning were key challenges currently facing their business.  There 
are also challenges and difficulties in attracting new applicants and candidates into their business 
due to lack of interest or perceptions. The impact of skills shortages is increased workload for other 
staff, losing staff to other organisations, missing tight production deadlines and increased operating 
costs. For the SMEs in the sector and micro businesses in particular, the impacts of skill shortages 
pose a higher risk to the continued operation of their business and hinders their confidence to grow 
and expand.

The perceptions and knowledge that is needed to inspire young people about the Advanced 
Manufacturing sector are robotics and automation, augmented and virtual reality (VR), additive 
manufacturing, data analytics, Artificial Intelligence (AI), Cyber Security and the Internet of Things 
(IoT).

“We need to encourage young people with a good work ethic 
into semi-skilled factory work. Last year 3 new recruits were 
children of current staff! Manufacturing has an ‘image 
problem’ in schools.”

RSP survey respondent, May 2019 

Post-16 Provision & Apprenticeships 

There was a positive response to the regional survey, with 65% reporting that they employ 
apprentices.  Most are at level 3 but also levels 2 and 4+. 

Page 71



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

54

There are some employers reporting that the apprenticeship framework does not suit their needs. 
Regionally, specialist apprenticeships in manufacturing have decreased slightly to 345 
programmes being available across the region in 2017. Most of these programmes were at level 2, 
but the demand is to increase availability at levels 3 and 4 and higher apprenticeships.  There is 
also a need to ensure a clear progression to higher-level provision and postgraduate courses. 

Working Futures trends also show an increase demand for qualifications at level 4-6. As 
technologies within the industry, apprenticeship frameworks also need to respond in a timely 
manner to this change that the merger of digital technologies has on the sector. A statement from 
the World Economic Forum that ‘nearly 50% of the subject knowledge acquired during the first year 
of a 4-year technical degree will be outdated by the time the students graduate’ is a case for a 
paradigm shift in the perceptions associated with choosing an apprentice (at age 18). This increase 
in apprentice take-up could be one of the key contributors to driving and sustaining higher-level 
skills and alleviating the pressures of succession planning for the future replacement demand in 
the region.

Brexit

According to the recent RSP survey, when asked about Brexit, the main challenge for employers 
in AM&M was exporting/importing difficulties, closely followed by increased costs. Loss of skills and 
staff were not a worry for the sector, according to our survey. 

Priorities to be addressed

 Succession planning is needed in light of the age profile of the current workforce and 
replacement demand;

 Need to encourage higher-level apprenticeships and degree apprenticeships with a clear 
progression route.

Creative and Digital

Sector Snapshot

The traditional cluster of the ‘Creative and Digital sector’ is in fact two sectors. In its simplest 
definition, digital skills specialise in computer programming and information services.  Creative skills 
specialise in publishing, film, TV, radio, advertising and design. Also, creative and digital jobs are 
found in other sectors, e.g. marketing in manufacturing, programming in education, advertising in 
retail, etc.

Wales’ Creative and Digital industry generates a GVA of half the national average across all 
industries. According to research by NESTA, the UK will need 1 million new creative jobs by 2030. As 
the world changes to more digital platforms to design, test, buy, sell, manufacture, train, recruit 
and support staff and products, there is an increase in demand for digital skills across the board, 
as well as being a specialist area on its own. All sectors should be digital!  Digital skills are an 
essential skill for all jobs.

In 2017, 25.3% of businesses in the creative industries in North Wales were based in Flintshire, and 
20.9% were in Gwynedd. Flintshire (+23.5%), Anglesey (+20%) and Denbighshire (+20%) have seen 
the strongest growth in this sector in North Wales between 2014 and 2017. The sustainability and 

Page 72



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

55

future growth in the sector is highly dependent on excellent digital connectivity and availability of 
high-level skills.

The demands of the sector for high-level skills and qualifications is reflected in the higher than 
regional average gross weekly earnings at £569.20 for the creative industries, being the third 
highest out of the 8 regional sectors. 

Innovation is a major driving force in the industry, especially the need for ‘diagonal thinking’ that 
brings creativity and entrepreneurship together. The Welsh Creative Media companies operate in 
a global marketplace and the industry sees this as a great opportunity, as well as a challenge in 
terms of finances, funding and competition.

Growth

The Creative and Digital sector is an innovative growth sector employer within the region, and 
therefore is continued to be recognised as one of our key growth sectors. North Wales already has 
an increasing number of companies specifically supporting the wider digital economy, with 
expertise within digital intelligence from industry software and innovation, to video games 
development.

The Gogledd Creadigol/Creative North Wales network has been developed to meet the growing 
needs of the sector and represent the voice of industry. The RSP have undertaken regular 
consultations with this network whilst developing our Plan. 

Growth areas for the North Wales Creative and Digital sector include:

 Innovation
 Understanding intellectual property
 Globalisation
 Welsh Television production

In the ICT and Digital sector, according to Emsi figures, we are likely to see a growth of 6% in the 
Digital sector from 2019 until 2023, and employment in the following roles are forecasted to grow:

 IT specialist mangers
 IT business analysts, architects and system engineers
 Programmers and software development professionals
 ICT and telecommunications professionals 

Recently the Welsh Government invested £30m in the development of film and television projects 
in Wales between 2014 and 2019, and at the recent North Wales Creative Industries Conference, 
the keynote, Lord Dafydd Ellis Thomas, Deputy Minister for Culture and Tourism pledged further 
investment and strategic plans for the Welsh Creative Industries to grow.  

The Workforce

Taking the Creative and Digital sector’s broad definition and diversity into account, it isn’t surprising 
that there are 20,000 people employed in the sector. 57% of employers in the sector are micro 
sized, employing less than 10 people.

Page 73



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

56

There are more positive messages about this industry which should help attract people, such as 
the RSP survey results which showed staff retention for the industry was high, with 86% of employers 
indicating this wasn’t an issue. NESTA research forecasts state that creative jobs will be more 
resistant to automation and artificial intelligence. 87% of creative workers are at a low or no risk of 
automation. Also, jobs in arts, crafts and design occupations are generally associated with higher 
levels of wellbeing. 

Across Wales, 68% of the Creative workforce has a degree level qualification.  This trend of higher-
level skills for the sector is set to continue, with Working Futures projections forecasting steady 
demand for high-level occupations and skills in the Creative Industries in North Wales up to 2024. 
These forecasts indicate that there will be a 43.8% increase in those qualified at QCF level 4-6 in 
the Creative Industries in North Wales between 2014 and 2024. Also, professional occupations in 
the creative industries will see the greatest increase in employment levels, with around 2,000 
people in North Wales in 2024, and a replacement demand for 1,000 people to fill the positions of 
those leaving or retiring from the sector up to 2024.

Skills Challenges

According to our survey, 51% of businesses were experiencing skills challenges across the following 
occupation areas:

• Associate Professional and Technical Occupations 
• Skilled Trades Occupations 
• Sales and Customer Service Occupations 

Furthermore, the employers in this sector indicated that skills in written Welsh, specialist skills and 
knowledge to perform their role and advanced IT and specialist skills were particular challenges 
for them.

There are 160 companies in the TV, media and film sub-sector, with a strong cluster of Welsh 
language broadcasting companies based in Gwynedd. Sector consultation and responses to the 
RSP survey indicate that higher-level skills and qualifications are required and that the ability to be 
creative, digitally competent and bilingual is essential for this cluster.  

Recruitment

The RSP survey found that 29% of employers in the Creative Industries reported difficulties recruiting 
for specific roles: high-level technical and digital skills; IT; Art Department; Costume Department; 
Production Department; Sound Technicians.

This is exacerbated by niche demands in this industry, which is an emerging pattern for many 
sectors. The recruitment and skills challenges come from the need to find people with a multi-
disciplinary mix of science and arts. This unique combination is precisely what Creative and Digital 
businesses are crying out for. According to IT employers in the region, one of the largest specialist 
computer programming, web developers and resource developers in the region, the ‘User 
Interface’ and ‘User Experience’ of mobile devices and games need creativity as well as scientific 
ability. The unique features of UI and UEx are the key to selling products. 

Post-16 Provision and Apprenticeships

Page 74



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

57

There are a number of learning activities on offer by the regional FEs, with 3,300 learning activities 
in the region relating to Information and Communication technology and 3,785 learning activities 
available in the Arts, Media and Publishing sector.    

There were 34 creative first degrees offered at Bangor and Glyndŵr Universities in 2018, with 1,040 
students studying these courses.

Bangor, Glyndŵr and the Open University are offering the new degree apprenticeship programme 
in Software Engineering which started in  2019, and the success of this will be further provision in this 
area. There is a call for the industry to engage in the detail of the content and delivery of these 
new apprenticeships to ensure they meet the current and future needs.

Recent consultation with the TV, media and film clusters indicates concern that some of the 
education and apprenticeship offer does not meet their industry standards.

Developing and delivering apprenticeships in the Creative Media sector is proving to be 
challenging for the region, with a limited number of apprenticeships offered in the TV, media, film 
sub-sectors. Employers have indicated that there is an appetite in the region to explore and 
develop this offer, with shared apprentices being an option, as well as a revision of the current 
offer to tailor to employer needs.

Brexit

In the recent RSP survey, employers noted that Brexit poses a threat of increased costs and a 
possible lack of funding streams and opportunities to help their business grow. The sector is 
operating a strong partnership and professional support network in the region through the Digital 
and Creative partnership ‘Gogledd Creadigol/Creative North Wales’. Welsh Government’s 
membership on this forum is key to introducing and supporting initiatives.

Priorities to be addressed

 The industry has indicated their appetite to help shape some of the course content and 
consider shared apprenticeship opportunities.

 Post-16 provision needs to reflect the current employer demand, rapid changes in 
technology and an increased and diverse offer of digital skills across all sectors, in order to 
keep up-to-date with how quickly industry 4.0 is currently utilising these skills. 

 Careers information and guidance for young people is crucial to understanding the 
transferrable skills developed and navigating career choices in a more holistic way.

Financial and Professional

Sector Snapshot

The Financial and Professional Services sector makes a substantial contribution to the region, both 
directly as a key source of employment allied to employment in the Foundation Economy, but also 
indirectly as a key source of employment and investment by providing specialist services to 
businesses across all sectors.

Page 75



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

58

The sector is one in which there is significant competition, but is underpinned by a pool of highly 
qualified people who need to be supported by advanced infrastructure and supply chains where 
operational.

The primary areas of business activity within the sector include accountancy, insurance, legal 
services, corporate and ‘head office’ functions, human resources and other professional services. 
It’s a relatively balanced sector in terms of the need to use the Welsh language, and gender split, 
and has a high number below the age of 50.

Growth

In 2017 there were 11,385 businesses in the sector in North Wales. Micro businesses dominate the 
sector, with 95% of businesses in this category employing less than 10 people. In North Wales, we 
are expecting to see a modest growth of 1% in this industry from 2019 until 2022. 

43.7% of businesses in the finance and business services sector were based in Flintshire and 
Wrexham. Large companies such as MoneySuperMarket, Moneypenny, HSBC, Development Bank 
of Wales, and HM Revenue and Customs are based in these two counties. Despite this cluster, 
Denbighshire saw the highest growth in the region for this sector between 2014 and 2017, 23.4%, 
higher than the national average of 22.7%.

FinTech (Financial Technology) is a cross-disciplinary subject that combines Finance, Technology 
Management and Innovation Management. Global investment in FinTech companies was worth 
US$24.7 billion in 2016, and the FinTech sector is expected to create thousands of new jobs in Britain 
with the next two years.  

The FinTech sector is set to increase globally and regionally, with an increasing number of 
opportunities to grow by embracing digital technologies and better connectivity being developed 
in the region to enable this.  The FinTech industry is a relatively new specialised industry capitalising 
on the development of digital technologies to enable a niche growth area and ensuring its survival 
in a global marketplace.

The first undergraduate degree in Financial Technology in the UK was launched at Glyndŵr 
University in 2018. A report by Innovate Finance, a Fintech trade group, suggests the sector will be 
creating around 1,000,000 jobs by 2020.

The Development Bank of Wales opened its HQ in Wrexham in 2018. Wales’ first ever Development 
Bank invested nearly £70M in more than 280 Welsh businesses in 2017/2018 – creating or 
safeguarding 4,000 jobs nationally.

The Workforce

The sector employs approximately 23,000 in the region, with almost 7,000 of these based in 
Wrexham. Administrative and secretarial occupations have the greatest share of employment in 
the industry, with approximately 9,000 people employed across the region.  This large group of 
employees are a key workforce to focus on and invest to upskill and keep pace with the digital 
technologies in this industry.

Skills Challenges

Page 76



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

59

44% of employers in this sector are currently experiencing skills challenges, mostly in sales and 
customer service, but also in managerial and professional occupations. Administrative and 
secretarial occupations have the greatest share of employment in the industry with approximately 
9,000 people employed across the region. Digitalisation and automation is a threat to any job 
which is currently seen as routine and repetitive, business administration jobs are no exception. 
Therefore, this large group of employees, and the sector as a whole, need to embrace digital 
innovation and upskill working practices and expectations for the 21st century. 

Recruitment

43% of employers in the recent RSP survey were anticipating that up-to-date digital skills were a 
future skills challenge for their business. In other surveys for the sector across Wales, recruitment 
agencies such as Supertemps and Adele Carr report that skills shortages in payroll management, 
accounting and finance have been widely reported, with a clear demand for suitably qualified 
professionals not just in Wales but in the UK as a whole. Audit and risk is a particular area rising in 
demand, due to businesses seeking to mitigate the risk of cyber-attacks. The workforce relies on a 
highly-skilled and up-to-date workforce to deliver services which demand knowledge of many 
complex changes to legislation possibly due to Brexit. It is anticipated that the finance and legal 
professions will be in increased demand to navigate many companies through Brexit implications.

According to Working Futures 2014–2024, projected occupational composition in the Financial and 
Professional Services sector, from 2014 to 2024 in North Wales, shows considerable growth in high-
level occupations, such as managers, professionals and associate professionals. The number of 
managers, directors and senior officials doubles from 2,000 in 2004 to 4,000 in 2024. Professional 
occupations also double, from 3,000 to 6,000. Associate professionals increase from 4,000 to 7,000. 

Post-16 Provision & Apprenticeships

There has been an overall decrease in the number of learning activities at the two regional FE 
colleges relating to business administration, particularly at lower levels.  There is a focus on higher-
level skills and higher-level courses, with employers demanding an increase at Levels 3 and 4.

Bangor University’s banking related courses are consistently ranked as one of the top 25 institutions 
in the world for research in the field of Banking (RePEc, as of May 2017), as well as being one of 
only 8 UK universities to hold the Chartered Banker Institute 'Centre of Excellence' status.

There has been a decrease in level 2 generic business administration apprenticeships, in line with 
the need to deliver higher-level skills programmes in the sector. A slight increase has been 
introduced at levels 3 and 4, but more focussed employer engagement is required to increase the 
take-up and opportunities for levels 3 and 4+ apprenticeship training with particular emphasis on 
the finance roles.  

Priorities to be addressed

 The currently supply of higher-level skills cannot meet demand. Increasing the opportunities 
for businesses and individuals to upskill, train and retrain via short courses at levels 4+ with 
professional examinations and status is required to fill current vacancies.

Page 77



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

60

Tourism and Hospitality

Sector Snapshot

The tourism and hospitality sector is recognised as a key contributor to the economy of North 
Wales. Tourism and hospitality contribute £2bn annually to the North Wales economy, employing 
40,000 people and supporting 3,340 tourism businesses. Increased investment and expansion are 
expected as the sector matures from a seasonal industry to a year-round industry. This has a 
positive impact on other economic sectors, such as the food and drink industry and the transport 
industry.

Demand is growing for tourism and the nature of the demand is changing. The sector is developing 
from a service deliverer to an experience stager. Families and individuals are now seeking 
experiences rather than simple relaxation. These experiences may include immersion in new and 
different cultures, adventures, or an element of thrill seeking. Such trends are reported by and 
commented on by industry journalists. In North Wales this change is evident in the growth in 
popularity of quality restaurants, water-sports activities, mountain recreation, and businesses such 
as Adventure Parc Snowdonia and Zip World. North Wales offers a superb location to fulfil the 
changing demands of tourists.

UK Hospitality has identified the workforce as the biggest uncertainty in the future. It points to 

“an unprecedented range of factors combining to create this sense of the unknown – Brexit, 
the cost of employment, technological advances, education and training changes and much 
more. The workforce of the future is going to look very different to how it does today – as all 
these issues intertwine over time.”

Growth

One of the key challenges in the region is to grow through innovation and business development. 
There is an increased need to support the development of sustainable and high-value tourism jobs 
by supporting those already employed in the industry and those wishing to enter the industry. 

The tourism industry forms a part of the North Wales Growth Deal; the North Wales Tourism and 
Hospitality Centre of Excellence is proposed to be based at Coleg Llandrillo in Rhos-on-Sea. The 
project aims to support the growth of the tourism industry in North Wales, supporting the 
development of sustainable high-value tourism jobs and addressing the skills shortage in the sector. 
The project proposes a private and public sector partnership providing training through a ‘hub and 
spoke’ model. 

The primary skills excellence hub will be a purpose-build new facility at Coleg Llandrillo in Rhos-on-
Sea, in partnership with tourism and hospitality businesses across the region. The hub and spokes 
will provide training, exhibitions, taster sessions and real work experience to several cohorts 
including: school pupils, full-time post-16 learners, apprentices and those who are not in education, 
employment or training. Each spoke will potentially develop a different area of training, and 
operate a high-quality apprenticeship scheme in partnership with local businesses. The project 
aims to achieve 45 new junior apprenticeships and 50 new apprenticeship opportunities, with 480 
hospitality and tourism level 1 to 3 qualifications available at the Hub and Spokes across North 
Wales. The total anticipated cost of the project is £16.25m.

Page 78



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

61

The Workforce

According to Welsh Government priority sector statistics, in North Wales in 2017, there were 
approximately 32,100 people working in the tourism industry (25.2% of the total workforce in tourism 
in Wales), which represents 10.8% of the total workforce in the region or just over 1 in every 9 jobs. 
This is greater than the proportion across Wales of 9.4%, or just under one in every 11 jobs, which 
demonstrates the importance of tourism to the local economy. 

According to the RSP survey, on average 22.6% of the tourism workforce was aged 16-24; 26.6% 
was aged 25-40; 25.6% was aged 40-55; and 25.2% was aged 55%. Regarding the Welsh language, 
48% said they need and use Welsh at work; 41% said they did not need and use Welsh at work; 
and 11% said they need and use Welsh only as a social skill with colleagues.

Our conversation with businesses shows they recognise that labour shortages are going to become 
more acute. They have stated that the sector is currently at a critical point and have highlighted 
the following issues to address, if the sector is to further develop in the region:

 The need for the region to continue to innovate and pioneer within tourism product 
development;

 The need to bring more people into the sector as a consequence of a diminishing 
workforce in the context of Brexit;

 The need to plug specific skills gaps within the regional tourism sector;
 The need to raise awareness of the breadth of career opportunities within tourism and raise 

the aspiration around tourism as a career choice;
 The need to provide tailored support to tourism businesses to enable them to grow and 

thrive.

Traditionally the structure of the sector in North Wales has been dominated by family-run SMEs. As 
demand increases, labour supply diminishes and the tourism and hospitality offers changes. The 
current structure of the sector cannot alone deliver the workforce of the future. This amounts to a 
market failure and measures must be put in place to correct this. It will be the responsibility of 
businesses to manage their workforce, but future service provision will not be delivered by the 
private sector as they cannot make a profit on the services required by the tourism and hospitality 
sector to meet needs and wants.

According to Working Futures, 5,000 job openings are projected for elementary occupations in 
tourism from 2014 to 2024. In addition, there are predicted to be 2,000 job openings for managers, 
directors and senior officials. A 105.5% increase is expected in those qualified at QCF level 4-6 in 
tourism from 2014 to 2024 in North Wales, and a 36.4% increase at levels 7-8.

Skills Challenges

The majority of respondents (60%) in the leisure and tourism industry reported experiencing skills 
challenges, with these challenges being most prevalent within Caring, Leisure and Other Service 
Occupations; Sales and Customer Service Occupations; and Skilled Trades Occupations. The top 
3 skills challenges in tourism are:

1. Specialist skills or knowledge needed to perform the role 
2. Communication skills
3. Problem Solving 

Page 79



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

62

According to the RSP survey, the top 5 challenges currently facing businesses in the leisure and 
tourism industry are: 

 Recruitment 
 Seasonality
 Making a profit 
 Perception of the sector
 Poor transportation links

Recruitment

At 69%, a high percentage of employers in the sector experienced difficulties in recruiting for 
specific roles. Amongst the specific roles mentioned were: chefs; front of house; reception; spa, 
beauty; media; sales; food and beverage assistants; business management; customer service; 
general labourers; bar staff; and tourist guides.

Staff retention was an issue for 32% of businesses in the leisure and tourism industry. The main 
reasons given were: 

1. Not enough people interested in doing this type of work
2. Long/unsocial hours 
3. Geographic location 
4. Travel to work on public transport a problem/too difficult
5. Wages offered are low in comparison to similar organisations 

Post-16 Provision and Apprenticeships

In 2017/18, in further education in North Wales, there were 1,810 learning activities in Hospitality 
and Catering; 1,405 in Sport, Leisure and Recreation; and 150 in Travel and Tourism. Overall, courses 
in Leisure, Travel and Tourism have decreased slightly over the past three years, from 1,625 courses 
across North Wales in 2014/15 to 1,555 in 2017/18 (-4.3%). Courses in Hospitality and Catering have 
experienced a large decrease, from 4,380 in 2014/15 to 1,810 in 2017/18 (-58.7%). 

In the north west of the region, Travel and Tourism and Hospitality and Catering courses are 
primarily delivered in Bangor, Dolgellau and Rhos-on-Sea, with no courses delivered on the Llŷn 
Peninsula. Demand from our employers show an increased need for level 3 across the region for 
general Travel & Tourism courses, and an increase for levels 2 and 3 in courses such as Professional 
Cookery. 

There are no courses at Higher Education level.

Only 28% of respondents in tourism reported employing apprentices, with the majority at levels 2 
and 3. For those not employing apprentices, the main factors were: ‘Apprenticeship frameworks 
do not meet business needs’; ‘Unsure of process in relation to offering one’; and ‘Difficulty 
recruiting suitable candidates’. This suggests that there needs to be close liaison with employers 
when frameworks are developed to ensure that they are fit for purpose. 

In 2017/18, in North Wales there were 450 apprenticeship programmes in Leisure, Sport and Travel, 
and 725 in Hospitality.

Brexit

Page 80



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

63

The main challenge posed by the prospect of Brexit as chosen by respondents in the tourism 
industry was increased costs. This was closely followed by ‘None’ which can be considered positive 
on one hand, but could also suggest that respondents are unsure about what it could mean for 
them.

Priorities that need to be addressed

 Recruitment is a crucial issue in this sector;
 Perception of the sector could be one of the biggest barriers to growth;
 Need to increase FE and apprenticeship opportunities.

DISCOVER TOURISM
This resource is a new and exciting, bilingual, online teaching resource, launched in May 
2019, with accompanying regional film aligned with the New Curriculum. Aimed at upper 
primary school pupils, and for teachers to deliver, the New Curriculum themes focus on the 
wealth and diverse opportunities that the tourism sector offers in Anglesey by using real 
employer scenarios. Led by the North Wales Regional Skills Partnership and developed by a 
perfect partnership of committed and enthusiastic employers from Anglesey, Welsh 
Government, the third sector, pupils and teachers of Ysgol Gynradd Amlwch, this resource 
can be further developed for other sectors and areas across the region and beyond. 
The RSP saw an opportunity to showcase one of the region’s priority sectors to a younger 
audience in an educational and meaningful way that can potentially influence more 
inspirational perceptions and messages of the tourism sector, as well as meet the New 
Curriculum requirements of teaching and learning with thematic focus and pupil 
participation. The roll out of the resource in autumn 2019 will realise the benefits of a well-
coordinated education engagement project, with employers that adds value to wider 
policy areas such as the Welsh language, a sense of place, culture, the New Curriculum, 
skills, achievement and progression.
Go to the website for more information! https://discovertourism.co.uk/  

Page 81

https://discovertourism.co.uk/


Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

64

Health and Social Care

Sector Snapshot

The health and social care sector in North Wales comprises two main sub-sectors: 
1. NHS via  Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (BCUHB);
2. Social work and social care provided by the six local authorities, and the health 

and social care services they commission to the independent sector.

The strategic importance of the sector was recognised in the publication of Prosperity for All: the 
national strategy. The sector is described as having “the greatest potential contribution to long 
term prosperity and well-being” and contributes to addressing worklessness and poverty. 
Whilst not directly referenced within the Growth Vision for the region up to 2035, its 
components as a sector are clearly identified as contributing to well-being, collaboration, 
inclusion, and prevention.

The gross spend on social services in North Wales was £460m in 2017/18.  BCUHB employs 16,700 
staff directly, not including the work of 84 GP practices and the commissioned NHS and private 
services provided by dentists, opticians, professions allied to health and pharmacists in North Wales. 
A key feature of the region is that micro businesses are a key employer, and within this sector also. 
The largest share of business in the micro size bands are based in Gwynedd and Conwy 
specifically.

The sector is going through a period of change with the developments above and the regulation 
and professionalisation of the social care workforce driven by the Regulation and Inspection of 
Social Care (Wales) Act 2016. The social care workforce will become a fully registered workforce 
over the next decade, for the first time with qualification requirements at all levels. This will help to 
give this essential workforce the status and recognition it deserves, but comes with a number of 
challenges around skills shortages and gaps; workforce patterns and flow. 

Growth

The sector is a growth sector with a 4% per year growth projection required in social care alone 
until 2032 according to Emsi figures, with over 2000 replacement jobs required over the next three 
years. 

The economic value of adult social care in Wales has recently been estimated at £1.2bn GVA to 
the Welsh economy, 1.9% of total GVA in 2016-171 (£26.7m in North Wales). The total direct, indirect 
and induced value of the adult social care sector in North Wales was estimated to be over 29,000 
jobs and over £500 million. Comparable GVA figures indicate that only manufacturing and real 
estate activities gross more GVA than this sector in Wales.

In demographic terms, it is certain that the population aged over 65, and especially people over 
70 with more complex needs such as dementia, will increase in absolute terms, and as a proportion 
of the population over the next two decades.

1  https://socialcare.wales/cms_assets/file-uploads/The-Economic-Value-of-the-Adult-Social-Care-Sector_Wales.pdfPage 82

https://socialcare.wales/cms_assets/file-uploads/The-Economic-Value-of-the-Adult-Social-Care-Sector_Wales.pdf


Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

65

The North Wales Growth Deal offers an opportunity for the sector to develop further by focusing 
on the niche expertise required in clinical and nursing competence in homes and residential care. 
As well as the development of therapeutic child care for residential care workers and youth 
workers to support mental health and emotional well-being. This project is currently being scoped 
by strategic sector representatives and the Regional Skills Partnership.

The ageing population increases the demands of the sector and continued increase and growth 
in service provision. There is a continued staffing and skills shortage and a projected 500 new jobs 
needed to be filled each year over the next 10 years. Overall employment in the sector continues 
to grow, increasing to a projected 51,000 workforce by 2024, as well as a high replacement 
demand of 20,000 within the same period. According to the Care Forum for Wales, representing 
the private care providers, it is estimated that North Wales is facing an estimated shortfall of 7,000 
by the year 2026.

The Workforce

This sector is one of the largest employers in the region employing over 44,900 workers, 11% of the 
total workforce. In early years there are around 1,100 settings, providing child care from self-
employed childminders with services delivered in their own homes, to large nurseries employing a 
total 5,400 people. According to our survey, the majority of the workforce are female, and 66% of 
the workforce need and use the Welsh language at work.

North Wales indicates that male employment in health and social work will increase slightly from 
8,000 in 2004 to 10,000 in 2024. Female employment will expand significantly from 31,000 to 40,000. 
The occupational breakdown in Working Futures shows that male employment in health 
professional occupations in North Wales is projected to increase to 4,000 in 2024, while female 
employment will rise from 7,000 to 12,000. Male and female employment in health and social care 
associate professional occupations will both double to 2000 and 4000 respectively by 2024. In 
caring personal service occupations, male employment will grow to 2,000 by 2024, while female 
employment will increase from 13,000 to 17,000.

Skills Challenges

One of the highest response rates to this year’s RSP survey came from the health and social care 
sector, and the findings were further explored and confirmed at two regional consultation events. 
The key challenges facing employers from the survey correlate with national data and research, 
reported as:

 Recruitment
 Perception of the sector
 Retention
 Reduced Funding

Skills shortages (workforce numbers) are acute in the health and social care system and this is a 
critical issue which urgently requires both immediate and longer-term action. Latest findings 
indicate that recruitment is a key challenge for the social care sector. Domiciliary care services 
were particularly likely to say they had found recruitment difficult in the last year (72% very difficult), 
followed by 54% of residential care services (54% very difficult or fairly difficult) and 41% of 

Page 83



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

66

residential homes for children (41% very difficult or fairly difficult).2 This means ongoing and 
increased investment for both initial qualifications and on-going career and skills development is 
essential.

According to our survey, 57% businesses are currently experiencing skills challenges in the health 
and social care sector. According to these employers, recruitment and retention 
challenges are largely due to the initial attraction of people into the sector, unsociable 
hours, salaries and the impact of the benefits ‘trap’. 

Top occupations in demand in health and social care were noted as:
 Caring, Leisure and Other Service Occupations 
 Professional Occupations
 Manager, Directors and Senior Officials 

A resounding 73% of employers in the sector are having difficulty recruiting for specific roles. These 
include:

 Care Workers
 Nurses
 Care assistants
 Care home management roles

Challenges around recruiting managers and ensuring that mangers have the knowledge and 
skills to lead these challenging new expectations remain across the sector, including 
compassionate leadership. 

The North Wales Regional Partnership Board published a Workforce Strategy and Action 
Plan to address some of their challenges, including recruiting and upskilling managers and ensuring 
that mangers have the knowledge and skills to lead these challenging new expectations remain 
across the sector, including compassionate leadership. This will also feature in the North Wales 
Growth Deal skills project for the sector. Succession planning and management recruitment is a 
cross-cutting theme for many employers and sectors across the region. 

29% of employers reported in the survey and consultation events that new entrants were 
‘not work ready’, with 58% indicating that this varies. Specifically there was lack of work 
specific skills, lack of work experience, lack of qualifications and poor attitudes and 
motivation. Just over half of employers currently offered work experience to school/FE or 
University students. Stronger strategic links in the region between the sector and DWP, Careers 
Wales, schools, colleges and training providers could have an effect on work readiness. The 
findings relating to work readiness and employability, or soft skills, are a cross cutting 
theme and is a common concern for many employers in all sectors across the region. 

The impact of national and global digital developments will have an effect on the health 
and social care sector, requiring timely response, upskilling and investment to keep up-
to-date with, and opportunities to participate in, the introduction of new innovation and 
technologies in the sector. Innovation in technology is currently experimenting with 
telemedicine and implants that could eliminate the effects of epilepsy and Alzheimer's; 

2  https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/statistics-and-research/2019-03/implications-brexit-social-care-and-
childcare-workforce.pdf Page 84

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/statistics-and-research/2019-03/implications-brexit-social-care-and-childcare-workforce.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/statistics-and-research/2019-03/implications-brexit-social-care-and-childcare-workforce.pdf


Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

67

even bio-printers that will be able to print new organs. There are experiments to develop 
an electronic pill that keeps our health in check and personalised medication from a 3D 
printer, ready while you wait. In Japan, robotics are already assisting in elderly health 
care.

Recruitment

A National Recruitment and Retention Campaign for social care and early years called ‘WeCare’ 
was launched in March 2019 to address the need for a further 20,000 social care and early years 
workers over the next 3 years. The importance of Welsh language skills across health and social 
care is already clear within the ‘Mwy na Geiriau/More Than Just Words’ campaign. 

The development of new post-16 qualifications aims to drive better links between education and 
training and employment possibilities, and provide a more coherent pathway through the learning 
environments to employment in health and social care. The new recruitment campaigns in the 
sector also aim to combat reports that poor and outdated perceptions exist, as well as a lack of 
up-to-date knowledge of the sector amongst young people, teachers and parents, are possibly 
having an effect on the take up of post-16/17/18 vocational courses and training, in specific areas 
and roles within the sector. There needs to be stronger strategic links in the region between the 
sector and JCP, Careers Wales, schools, colleges and training providers, which could influence 
positive perceptions over time.

BCUHB also has a strategic recruitment plan (Train Work Live) that provides a clear direction 
of travel for all attraction, recruitment and retention activity across the organisation. This includes 
addressing the current nursing vacancy rates of 10.4%, a GP vacancy rate of 47.7% and a medical 
staff vacancy rate 6.4%.

Post-16 Provision & Apprenticeships

Health and social care provides nearly a third of all apprenticeships across Wales, with over 19,500 
starts last year, around 5,460 in North Wales. This investment in skills is vital to the sustainability of this 
crucial sector, addressing the recruitment and retention agenda of health and social care and 
meeting the government’s agenda for the foundation economy. The Qualifications Wales review 
of Health, Social Care and Childcare in 2016 has brought wholesale change to the qualification 
landscape of the sector, providing more relevant and up-to-date qualifications in schools, colleges 
and work based learning. Most of these will be ready for delivery in September 2019, but the 
infrastructure to deliver these qualifications will need to be supported with the timely upskilling and 
CPD requirements for lecturers, teachers, tutors and assessor staff. There is a sustained demand by 
employers for domiciliary care staff trained at levels 2 and 3 in line with regulations.

A postgraduate programme in Adult Nursing was introduced by Bangor University in 2018. It offers 
graduates of life and social science a fast-track two-year route to registration with the Nursing and 
midwifery Council. However, even though these postgraduate courses meet the growing 
demand, according to the Deputy Director of Nursing at the Royal College of Nursing the numbers 
graduating still won’t match up to the number of those leaving the profession. Since 2013, 2,218 

Page 85



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

68

nurses have left BCUHB (including retirement) whilst in the same period the replacement 
recruitment was 1,470. 

Brexit

There was a mixed response in the RSP survey to the implications of Brexit with 53% employers 
reporting that Brexit would not have any effect on their business. Conversely, the other 47% would 
be affected with implications being increased costs, uncertainty around funding, loss of skills and 
loss of staff. According to the Care Forum for Wales, the prospect of Brexit and barriers to overseas 
recruitment will further exacerbate the shortage of nurses and carers.  The uncertainty is already 
leading to a loss of nursing home beds and the closure of care homes at a time when Wales is 
expected to more than double its over 85 year olds in the next 20 years. 

Issues that need to be addressed

 Recruitment and retention of workforce
 Perception of sector
 Retain and upskill leadership and management roles
 Increase digital skills 

Food and Farming

Sector Snapshot

The food and farming industry employs approximately 15,400 people and supports 3,955 food and 
farming business units in the region. 

The 2017 Welsh Government statistics note that employment in agriculture and the food 
manufacturing sector is almost entirely amongst micro businesses (90.6%). 

Economic growth is a key aspiration of the Welsh Government Food and Drink Action plan 2014–
2020 whilst also being recognised as a foundation sector in Welsh Government’s Prosperity for 
All: economic action plan. 

With such high volume of business falling into the micro and SME category, there are clearly 
challenges facing the sector. Potential challenges posed by Brexit require a whole supply chain 
solution in order to promote food security and business resilience.

According to the RSP survey, the top 5 challenges currently facing businesses in the food and 
farming industry are: 

1. Economic/Financial challenges, e.g. reduced funding 
2. Recruitment
3. Making a profit
4. Competition
5. Seasonality

Page 86



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

69

Growth

Emsi data shows a modest growth of 1.0% in the sector from 2019 until 2023. According to Working 
Futures, 1,000 job openings are projected for process, plant and machine operatives in food and 
farming in North Wales from 2014 to 2024, as well as 1,000 job openings for elementary occupations. 
There will be a 69.9% increase in those qualified at QCF level 4-6 in food and farming from 2014 to 
2024 in North Wales. There will be a 16.1% increase at levels 7-8.

The food and farming industry is part of the North Wales Growth Deal; the Glynllifon Rural Economy 
Hub Project is planned for the Coleg Meirion-Dwyfor’s Glynllifon campus. The Hub aims to support 
rural economic development, specifically to stimulate economic growth and create jobs. It will 
comprise a Food Enterprise Park, providing food grade units for both start-ups and established 
producers, and a Knowledge Centre, creating a pool of practical experience to support 
innovation and enterprise growth in the region. The project is expected to create at least 80 new 
jobs and support around 200 businesses. The total cost of the project is £13m.

The Llysfasi Carbon Neutral Farm is a project that aims to create a centre of excellence in 
productive farming and renewable energy technologies that will facilitate growth in the 
commercial agricultural sector in North Wales through the efficient use of digital precision primary 
food production. It will establish a strategic resource in North Wales for innovation in agricultural 
productivity and sustainability. 

The Workforce

According to Welsh Government priority sector statistics, in North Wales in 2017, there were 
approximately 15,400 people working in the food and farming industry, which represents 30% of 
the total workforce in food and farming in Wales. In North Wales in 2017, Gwynedd had the highest 
number of people working in the industry, at 3,600 people, followed by Wrexham at 3,500 people.

According to our survey, 46% of respondents in the food and farming industry said that their 
workforce need and use the Welsh language at work; 38% said that their workforce didn’t need 
and use Welsh at work; and 15% said only as a social skill with colleagues.

Skills Challenges

The majority of respondents (67%) in the food and farming industry reported experiencing skills 
challenges, with these challenges being most prevalent within Skilled Trades Occupations; 
Professional Occupations; and Process, Plant and Machine Operatives. The top 3 skills challenges 
in food and farming are:

1. Specialist skills or knowledge needed to perform the role 
2. Problem Solving 
3. Knowledge of how your organisation works

Recruitment

Page 87



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

70

58% of employers in food and farming reported experiencing difficulties in recruiting for specific 
roles. Amongst the specific roles mentioned were: Quality Assurance and Technical Managers and 
Automation Engineers; Engineering, Technical, Health and Safety and HR; and skilled Horticulturists.

Staff retention wasn’t an issue for 71% of businesses in the food and farming industry. For those with 
staff retention issues, the main reasons given were ‘Not enough people interested in doing this type 
of work’; and ‘Travel to work on public transport a problem/too difficult’.

Post-16 Provision & Apprenticeships

22% of respondents in food and farming reported employing apprentices. For those not employing 
apprentices, the main factors listed were that: ‘Apprenticeship frameworks do not meet business 
needs’; and ‘Unsure of process in relation to offering one’. 

In 2017/18, in North Wales there were 110 apprenticeship programmes in agriculture, 225 in food 
and drink manufacturing. 

Brexit

Brexit is predicted to have a significant impact on the agricultural industry, and this poses a huge 
challenge for the sector in the future. The main challenges posed by the prospect of Brexit, as 
chosen by respondents in the food and farming industry, are increased costs, exporting/importing 
difficulties, funding, loss of staff and loss of skills.

Priorities to be addressed

 Upskilling the sector in line with the digitalisation potential to mainstream digital 
connectivity and digital skills that will deliver efficiency savings, smarter decisions, 
potential new growth and  diversification.

Page 88



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

71

Sector Matrix

The below matrix brings together all challenges, needs, provision and priorities for our key sectors: 

Themes  

Sectors   

Occupational /

Recruitment need

Welsh Language 
Skills

STEM Skills 
(including 
digital)

Low Carbon 
Skills

Provision & 
Apprenticeships

Priorities

Energy & 
Environment

Professional 
occupations; 
Associate 
professional 
occupations; Skilled 
trade occupations

Good quality project 
managers and 
Health & Safety 
operatives

Specialist engineers

Conservation 
managers

Medium High High Focus on high quality 
craft & technical skills at 
Level 3+

Important to ensure 
progression routes for 
individuals with clear 
entry point at level 2 
and upwards to a 
higher levels.

Increase STEM learners and 
achievement rate

Upskill workforce with new 
technology

Expand provision  and 
increase apprenticeship 
opportunities in response to 
replacement demand issues

P
age 89

https://www.slideshare.net/hrishysachan/scope-of-energy-environment-in-india-siib-pune


Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

72

Construction Skilled trade; 
Associate 
professional

Architects

Surveyors

Construction 
managers roles

Low High High Continued focus at 
level 2 full time with 
progression to level 3  
and  level 4 + WBL 
provision.

Upskill current workforce and 
new entrants with digital skills 
and SMART technologies, 
especially our small and 
micro businesses;

Replacement demand is an 
issue within this sector and 
promoting apprenticeship 
opportunities for young 
entrants is key;

Update the perception of the 
sector and encouragement 
of more female entrants.

Advanced 
Manufacturing

Professional & 
Associate 
professional

Project managers; 
quality control 
specialists; 

Process Engineers

Low High High Increased demand at 
level 3+ with particular 
need for Postgraduate 
routes (MEng 
qualifications)

Succession planning is 
needed in light of the age 
profile of the current 
workforce and replacement 
demand;

Need to encourage 
apprenticeships, especially 
higher-level apprenticeships 
and degree apprenticeships 
with clear progression routes.

P
age 90



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

73

Creative & Digital Professional; 
Associate 
professional; Skilled 
occupations

Higher-level IT and 
technical skills; 
Coders; 
Programmers; IT 
analysts

High High Medium Continued focus on 
level 3+ skills with clear 
entry access point and 
progression routes

Appetite to explore 
shared apprenticeships, 
especially in Coding/ 
Software development

Industry has indicated their 
appetite to help shape some 
of the course content and 
consider shared 
apprenticeship opportunities;

Post-16 provision needs to 
reflect the current employer 
demand, rapid changes in 
technology and an increased 
and diverse offer of digital 
skills across all sectors, in order 
to keep up-to-date with how 
quickly industry 4.0 is currently 
utilising these skills;

Careers information and 
guidance for young people is 
crucial to understanding the 
transferrable skills developed 
and navigate career choices 
in a more holistic way.

Tourism & Hospitality Skilled trade 
occupations

Sales and customer 
services

High High High Continued focus on 
levels 2 & 3 courses in 
Tourism and 
Professional Cookery, 

Recruitment is a crucial issue 
for the sector and this could 
be exacerbated by Brexit;

Outdated perception of the 
sector could be one of the 

P
age 91



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

74

Elementary 
occupations

Chefs; Front of 
house; Food & 
beverage assistants

and clear pathway into 
apprenticeships

biggest barriers to growth and 
there is a need to raise 
awareness of the breadth of 
career opportunities and 
raise aspiration;

Need to promote the value of 
apprenticeship opportunities.

Health & Social Care Caring occupations

Professional 
occupations

Management

Domiciliary care 
workers

Care home 
managers

Nurses

High Medium Medium Continued focus on 
levels 2 and 3 provision 
& WBL provision to 
respond to employer 
need and registration 
of domiciliary care 
workers which starts in 
September 2020.

Recruitment and retention of 
workforce and need to upskill 
the workforce for statutory 
requirements;
Recruitment and retention of 
the workforce, including 
updating the perception of 
the sector;
Retain and upskill Leadership 
and Management roles;
Increase and update digital 
skills 

Food & Farming Skilled trade 
occupations

Medium Medium 
(Agritech)

High Diversification is key 
and frameworks for 
WBL should reflect the 
rapidly changing 

Upskilling the sector in line 
with the digitalisation 
potential to mainstream 
digital connectivity and 
digital skills that will deliver 

P
age 92



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

75

Professional 
occupations

Plant & machine 
operatives

technology used in 
agriculture and 
diversification agenda.

efficiency savings, smarter 
decisions, potential new 
growth and diversification

Financial & 
Professional 

Sales & customer 
services

Admin & secretarial

Managers; 
professional & 
associate 
professional

Medium High Medium Increase needed at 
level 3+

Upskill and train via 
short courses

The current supply of higher-
level skills cannot meet the 
demand.  Increasing the 
opportunities for businesses 
and individuals to upskill, train 
and retrain via short courses 
at levels 4+ with professional 
examinations and status is 
required to fill current 
vacancies.

P
age 93



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

76

Skills Challenges 
This section will bring all the key messages from previous sections together to 
outline how we can convert our key challenges into opportunities for our 
regional skills system. 

Some key themes and opportunities are emerging, which, if we are able to address 
collectively as a region, will ensure a step change in our system and will ultimately set us on 
the journey towards a more responsive and sustainable skills system. 

Snapshot of North Wales Skills Challenges 

 Stubborn Economic Inactivity rates;
 Growth (GVA) is not dispersed evenly across the region;
 Inclusive growth in not extended across the region with pockets of deprivation 

across the region, and below Wales average earnings in some counties which 
leads to in-work poverty;

 Demography of the region with a higher than average number of over 65 year 
old leads to replacement demand issues, especially in some sectors;

 Skills under-utilisation is higher in this region which could reflect the mismatch in 
our labour market;

 Graduate retention, especially in rural areas;
 Lack of STEM including take-up of STEM subjects post GCSEs;
 Changing skill set requirements  such as digital skills and SMART Technology due 

to technological drivers;
 Work-ready & employability skills;
 Current workforce not ‘agile’ or resilient to deal with shocks to the economy;
 Perception of sector is a barrier to recruitment and retention;
 Fit for purpose qualifications;
 Need to drive innovation and enterprise skills;
 Brexit implications on some of our key sectors.

Page 94



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

77Page 95



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

78

Our Priorities and Actions: Where do 
we want to be in 2022?

This section brings together our vision, priorities and actions for the region. In 
considering the evidence, data and what employers and stakeholders have 
told us, we have identified priorities for the region. 

These priorities form our recommendations; a more detailed action plan will 
follow in autumn 2019. 

Our vis ion

Our long-term vision is closely aligned to the North Wales Growth Vision:

“To create an inclusive, and outward looking ski l ls  system, which is  agi le,  
resi l ient and can adapt to opportunit ies and chal lenges in our region”. 

Our pr ior i t ies and recommendations

The following priorities and recommendations have been made with this vision in mind and 
will dictate the RSP’s activity over the next three years. The priorities are captured in three 
of the most pertinent themes identified throughout the Plan. These are: building our future 
workforce and attracting talent; employability skills to ensure inclusivity; promotion of 
apprenticeship opportunities; and targeting perceptions and progression in careers. 
Underpinning all these issues and priorities is the need for more robust LMI.

Prior i ty 1:  Bui lding our future workforce and attracting talent

Building a future skills pipeline workforce is a key priority for us. As our analysis demonstrates, 
and as we consider the future growth opportunities in our economy, we need to ensure and 
future-proof our system to consider the following:

1. Ensuring that training provision and facilities meet current and future needs of 
businesses, individuals and the wider economy;

2. Reduce skills shortages facing businesses in growth sectors by growing and attracting 
talent;

3. Develop innovation skills for business growth.

What do we need to do?

 Align RSP activities to deliver on skills pipeline issues for our major capital investments in 
the area, including the North Wales Growth Deal. 

 Deliver on the Skills and Employment Programme projects that form part of the wider 
Growth Vision for North Wales.

Page 96



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

79

 Develop digital skills and a digital-savvy workforce who are able to harness and exploit 
opportunities in the economy by building on the work of the North Wales Digital Skills 
project.

 To extend and better equip the future North Wales workforce in STEM by establishing, 
and maintaining, a North Wales STEM Framework that will enhance and extend 
learners experience of STEM and promote STEM-based careers in North Wales. This 
should be a collaborative process, with both private and public sectors working 
together with the support of local and national government. Linked to this, there is an 
appetite to develop a series of world-Class STEM hubs across the region.

 Proactively support and seek out opportunities to promote Welsh language skills across 
our growth sectors.

 Develop and deliver skills interventions to address problems and grasp opportunities 
arising from Brexit by producing a risk assessment of Brexit implications on our sectors.

 Address the high volume of opportunities generated by replacement demand in 
sectors such as Construction, Energy & Environment, Advanced Manufacturing, and 
Health & Social Care.

 Strengthen our employer engagement strategy and work and establish more robust 
data flow and sharing between partners and Welsh Government. Opportunity to 
consider the best method of consulting with our sectors on their skills needs.

 Improve the quality and accessibility of regional LMI.
 Develop a talent and retention offer with our HE and wider partners to ensure talent 

attraction and retention of our graduates to encourage innovation and enterprise 
growth in the region.

Prior i ty 2:  Ski l ls  development for an inclusive North Wales

Employability skills and progression into the workplace are key for an inclusive North Wales. As 
a region, we want to encourage our young people to develop the right skillsets to be 
successful within our region. We also want to encourage our young people to develop the 
right skillsets to be successful within our region. We also want to ensure that we encourage, 
promote and support adult learners to upskill and reskill to meet the needs of the economy 
and to promote lifelong learning as a key pillar of the plan. There is a regional aspiration to 
reduce the full range of labour inequalities and improved results in terms of job access, quality 
and sustainability for those who are furthest away from the labour market. Further work needs 
to be done to equip individuals with the desire employability/soft skills needed to gain 
meaningful employment. We need to consider the following:

1. How we shape programmes to help unemployed people and economically inactive 
adults to move into work, sustain and progress into employment;

2. Forecast labour market opportunities and shape support for people to access pipeline 
of new job opportunities, particularly in growth sectors;

3. Improve progression of low-paid workers up the career ladder.

What do we need to do? 

 Establish clear remit for our North Wales Advisory Group & Employability Group 
to ensure the implementation of an employability pathway in the region, which 
focusses on aligning opportunities and pipeline, particularly in our growth 
sectors.

Page 97



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

80

 Gain an understanding of the basic employability skills needs of employers and 
how these can be met. 

 Promote lifelong learning, and support adult learners to reskill and upskill 
throughout their lives including part time and distance learning options. 

 Boost programmes which include work experience and industry placements to 
help develop employability skills and transition into work

 Work with Welsh Government, employers and Grŵp Llandrillo Menai to develop 
the pilot for the ‘Personal Learning Account’, which aims to support employed 
adults earning under the Welsh median income to gain higher-level skills, switch 
career or progress to a higher level.

 Promote skills and employability programmes such as placements and paid 
internships

Prior i ty 3:  Promote career perception, pathways and apprenticeship 
opportunit ies

The perception of sectors has been highl ighted as one of the key concerns 
across al l  of  our growth sectors.  Employers tel l  us that they have dif f icult ies 
recruit ing, and perception is  one of the barr iers .  Providers inform us that they 
st ruggle to recruit  onto some courses due to poor perception of that sector by 
learners,  teachers and parents.  There is  also a lack of understanding about 
dif ferent learner progress ion routes,  and this  needs to be tackled i f  we are to 
respond to employer chal lenges.  Apprent iceships are seen as a good route 
into employment,  and could provide a viable response to replacement 
demand in some sectors.  As a region we’ve got more to do to promote this  
opt ion and opportunit ies with schools,  learners and businesses.  Bus inesses also 
f lagged that apprent iceship f rameworks are not always ‘f i t  for  purpose’.  We 
wi l l  need to consider the fol lowing:

1. How we change the perception of our growth sectors;

2. Support more individuals to fol low apprent iceship progress ion routes 
through provis ion of high qual i ty information and guidamce;

3. Promotion of apprent iceship opportunit ies,  including progress ion to 
higher- level  and degree apprent iceships;

4. Improve employers awareness and access to apprent iceships.

What do we need to do?

 Develop an Apprenticeship Strategy for the region that aims to raise awareness of 
apprenticeship opportunities and will include clear pathways and progression to 
higher-level and degree apprenticeships, especially in STEM and Digital subjects.

Page 98



Skills and Employment Plan 2019–2022 

81

 Work with Careers Wales and our partners to ensure that learners are aware of 
apprenticeship opportunities in our region.

 Work with our partners to target perception of our growth sectors and share 
intelligence with relevant stakeholders.

Underpinning the above priorities and recommendations is the need to ensure robust 
intelligence. There is a wealth of intelligence/employer views collected across the region by 
providers, Careers Wales, DWP and Business Wales. As a region, we need to ensure smarter 
working practices that share relevant information effectively across partners.

Conclusion

The next stage will be for the RSP to develop these priorities and recommendations into a more 
specific and detailed action plan, which will be a shared delivery plan for the region for the 
next three years. The priorities articulated here will be further refined and delivered in a number 
of different ways, to make the most of resource capacity and partnership working. 

Page 99



Annex 1– North Wales Skills and Employment Plan 2019-2022: RSP Membership

North Wales 
Regional 

Skills 
Partnership 

Membership 
2019

Welsh 
Govt 

x2

Regional 
Engagement 

Team 

x1
FSB 

x1

Chamber of 
Commerce 

x1

North Wales 
& Mersey Dee 

Business 
Council 

x1

Employer -
Energy

x1

Employer -
Manufacturing

x1

Employer -
Construction

x1

Employer -
Creative & 

Digital 

x1

Employer -
Health & 

Social Care

x2

Employer -
Tourism & 
Hospitality

x1

Employer 
- Food & 

Drink 

x1

Employer -
Financial & 
Professional 

Services

x1

Local 
Authorities 

x1

Third 
Sector 

x1

Careers 
Wales 

x1

Training 
Providers

x1

EPCs & 14-
19 Network 

x1

DWP 

x1

Further 
Education

x2

Higher 
Education 

x3

Schools 
(GwE) 

x1

P
age 108



Annex 2 – North Wales Skills and 

Employment Plan 2019–2022: Employers 

Consulted and Contributed

1st Class Clothes 

A2B Plastics Ltd                            

Abakhan Fabrics, Hobby & Home 

Abbey Dale Care Home 

ACS Wade Ltd                                     

Acuity Products                           

ADC Biotechnology Ltd                    

Adcote House 

Adept Tooling Ltd                   

Adra 

Afron Dwyfor Training 

Aha Consulting 

Aingarth Residential Home 

Airbus                                                    

Akzo Nobel                                        

Alcontrol Laboratories               

Allcare Nursing Agency Ltd 

Alpine Travel 

Alun Hughes Film Music & Nostalgia 

Alunox                                

Amgueddfa Lechi Cymru 

AMRC Cymru 

Andy Newton 

Anglesey Sea Zoo  

Anheddau Cyf 

Animated Technologies Ltd 

Antena Cyf. 

Antur Waunfawr 

Aparito 

Aran Hall School 

Ardal Fenter Eryri 

Autism Together 

Axis Precision Ltd 

Awel Homecare and Support 

Babcock Training 

Bangor University 

Barmouth Properties 

Barnard Engineering  

Betsi Cadwalader University health Board 

Bimeda UK                                 

Bio-Check (UK) Ltd             

Bio-Rad Laboratories Deeside Ltd                                      

Blah Blah Designs 

Bluebird Care 

Bonaprene Products Ltd 

Bonaprene Products Ltd   

Brake Engineering        

Brandified         

Brenig Construction Ltd 

Breton International Ltd       

Brighter Foods 

British Association of Shooting and 

Conservation 

Bronafallen 

Bryngwyn Cymunedol Cyf 

Bryson Recycling 

Business Wales 

Busnes@LlandrilloMenai 

C M Jones & G A Williams 

Page 109



Annex 2 – North Wales Skills and 

Employment Plan 2019–2022: Employers 

Consulted and Contributed

CAB Cylch Conwy Citizens Advice 

Cambrian Training 

Canal & River Trust 

Care First 

Carers Trust North Wales Crossroads Care 

Services 

CareTech Community Services 

Cariad Care Homes Ltd 

Carl Kammerling International Ltd 

Cartref Ni 

Cartrefi Conwy 

Centre of Sign Sight Sound 

Chamber of Commerce – West Cheshire and 

North Wales 

Chateau Rhianfa 

Chwarel 

CeramTEC 

CITB 

Clifford Jones 

Clwyd Agricultural Ltd 

Coastal Homecare Ltd 

Confederate Chemicals 

Conwy County Borough Council 

Cuflink 

CVSC 

Cwmni Da 

Cymen 

Cymorth Llaw 

Cyngor Gwynedd Council 

Cyngor Ynys Mon / Anglesey County Council 

Dafydd Hardy Estate Agents 

Darlun TV 

Deeside Cereals 

Delivery Solutions (Delsol) Ltd 

Delta Taxis  

Denbighshire CC 

Disclosure Services Ltd 

DMR (North Wales) Ltd 

Duct Hygiene Limited 

Dunoon Hotels Ltd 

DWP 

Dynamic Centre for Children and Young 

People with Disabilities 

Ecodek 

Ecological Land Management Ltd 

Edge Transport Ltd 

Em56fly  

Enbarr Enterprises Limited & Enbarr 

Foundation CIC 

English Plus 

Etiquette Labels Ltd 

Flint Group 

Food and Drink National Skills Academy 

Flintshire County Council 

Frugalpac 

FSB North Wales 

Futurim 

Gaia Technologies 

Gap Personnel 

GISDA 

Page 110



Annex 2 – North Wales Skills and 

Employment Plan 2019–2022: Employers 

Consulted and Contributed

Glanbia Cheese 

Glyndŵr University  

Gogledd Creadigol / Creative North Wales 

Grange Residential Care Ltd 

Greenacres 

Griffith, Williams & Co 

Grote Company 

Grŵp Cynefin 

Grŵp Llandrillo Menai 

GT Williams Ltd 

GwE 

Gwin Dylanwad Wine 

Gyrfa Cymru / Careers Wales  

Hallmark Hotels – Llyndir Hall 

Harlech Foodservice Ltd 

Haulfryn Care Ltd 

HMOp 

Home Instead Senior Care 

Holyhead Marine Services 

Hornbill Engineering Ltd 

Huws Gray 

Hoya Lens UK Ltd  

ICCL 

Ifor Williams Trailers Ltd        

Imtex Controls Limited    

Interal Business Support 

International Aqua Tech                            

Ipsen Biopharm Ltd 

Imtex Control Limited 

IR & E Wynne 

Isringhausen GB Ltd                          

Itaconix                                         

IWT Composites Ltd        

J R Biomedical Ltd                                       

Jaspels Anglesey Craft Cider Ltd 

JCB Transmissions 

Joloda International Ltd            

Jones Bros Ruthin Co Ltd 

Jones HSEPM Ltd 

Keating Specialist Cylinders Ltd  

Kellogg’s 

Kent Periscopes                                   

Key Care & Support 

Kier Construction 

Kronospan 

Leader Optec Ltd 

Liberty Group 

Lion Hotel, Tudweiliog 

Loyalty Logistics 

Livability 

Llaeth y Llan Cyf 

Llanfair Hall 

Llangollen Railway PLC 

Llawr Betws Ltd 

Maelor Foods Limited 

Maes Twrog Community Farm 

Magellan Aerospace 

Magnox 

Page 111



Annex 2 – North Wales Skills and 

Employment Plan 2019–2022: Employers 

Consulted and Contributed

Mainetti UK LTD 

Marram Grass 

Maxi Haulage Ltd 

Mental Health Care UK 

Menter Iaith Conwy 

Menter Môn 

MHA Coed Craig 

Mike Scott Associates Ltd 

Milner Engineering Services Ltd 

Minesto 

Moneypenny 

Morlais 

Mostyn Estates Ltd  

Motor Design Ltd 

MSParc 

Mug Run Coffee Roasting 

Murphy and Co Veterinary Practice  

Myrick Training Services 

National Tourism Generation Project  

National Zoological Society of Wales 

Net World Sports  

North Tales Tourism Association 

North Wales Tourism Forum 

North Wales & Mersey Dee Business Council 

North Wales Fire and Rescue Service 

North Wales Tech 

North Wales Tourist Guides Association  

North Wales Wildlife Trust 

North Wales Workforce Development Group  

NTfW 

OBR Construction Ltd 

OCS Care Agency Ltd 

Olif Betws Ltd 

Oriel Môn 

Out of The Kiln Ltd 

Paul Bristow Associates  

Pentre Mawr Country House 

Plas Madryn Care Home 

Plas Newydd, National Trust 

Popty Bakery Ltd 

Prestwood Residential Homes Ltd 

Pristine 

Progression Training Ltd 

Providero Ltd 

Quantum Soup Studios 

Read Construction Holdings Ltd 

RibRide 

Riva (UK) Ltd 

Robertson Geo 

Rondo Media 

Rossett Hall Hotel 

Royal Victoria Hotel Snowdonia 

S2 Recruitment 

S4C 

Samaki 

Sapphire Streams Ltd 

Semta 

Page 112



Annex 2 – North Wales Skills and 

Employment Plan 2019–2022: Employers 

Consulted and Contributed

Serco 

Sgil Cymru 

Siemens Healthineers 

Silver Birch Golf Club 

Solvay 

Split the Difference 

State of Distress  

Sustainable Building Services (UK) Ltd 

Tafarn yr Heliwr 

Tea Rooms at the Pet Cemetery 

The Anglesey Sea Salt Company 

The Bulkeley Hotel 

The CADcentre 

The Deganwy Quay Hotel and Spa  

The Hand at Llanarmon Ltd 

The Learning Collective Group Ltd 

The Mobile Creche Company Ltd 

The National Skills Academy, Food and Drink 

The Outdoor Partnership 

The Regard Group 

The Royal Oak Hotel Limited 

Thornley Leisure Parks 

Treherne Care Group 

Tre-Ysgawen Hall 

TRB 

Tute Education 

Tyn Y Fron 

UCML 

UK Hospitality 

UnimaQ Limited 

V4B Ltd 

Walls Residential Care Home Ltd 

Walshaw Care Homes 

Welsh Government 

Westhaven Care Home 

Whitehall Guest House 

Wholebake Ltd 

Wild Bushcraft Company 

Williams & Denton 

Wild Elements  

Williams Homes (Bala) Ltd 

Wockhardt 

Wrexham County Borough Council 

Wynne Construction 

Y Gymdeithas Stroc / The Stroke Association 

Y Maes Cafe 

Y Pair Iaith 

Ymddiriedolaeth Nant Gwrtheyrn  

Page 113



Highest in North Wales

P
age 114



P
age 115



P
age 116



24.7%

P
age 117



P
age 118



P
age 119



P
age 120



Creative & Digital

WORKING FUTURES

P
age 121



P
age 122



REPORT TO THE NORTH WALES ECONOMIC AMBITION BOARD
15th NOVEMBER, 2019

TITLE: Consultation on the National Development Framework

AUTHORS: Andrew Farrow, Chief Officer (Planning, Environment and Economy), Flintshire County Council
Graham Boase, Corporate Director: Economy and Public Realm, Denbighshire County Council

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1. To consider the draft National Development Framework (NDF) which has been produced by Welsh 
Government (WG) and to agree the content of a response on behalf of the NWEAB to the 
consultation which ends on 15th November, 2019.

2. DECISION SOUGHT

2.1. To amend/endorse the response to the consultation on the NDF as set out in Appendix 2, to 
include any matters arising during this meeting of the NWEAB and submit them to WG by 18th 
November, 2019. 

3. REASONS FOR THE DECISION

3.1. The NDF will be critical to shaping where development is to take place within the region. It is 
therefore vital that the NDF accurately reflects the aims of the North Wales Economic Ambition 
Board, the Adopted Regional Economic Ambition Strategy and the emerging Growth Deal.

4. BACKGROUND AND RELEVANT CONSIDERATIONS

4.1. Introduction

4.1.1 The NDF will be a new national development plan which will set the high level, strategic direction 
for development in Wales from 2020 to 2040 and will replace the existing Wales Spatial Plan. The 
purpose of the NDF will be to drive sustainable growth and combat climate change by guiding 
strategic development over the next twenty years. It will do this by setting the strategy for 
addressing key national priorities through the planning system, including sustaining and 
developing a vibrant economy, decarbonisation, developing resilient ecosystems and improving 
the health and well-being of communities. It will also identify broad geographic areas where we 
should be investing in new infrastructure and encouraging economic development for the greater 
good of Wales.

4.1.2 The NDF will be the highest tier of development plan in Wales, therefore it is focused on issues 
and challenges at a national scale. Because of its strategic nature it does not allocate specific areas 
of land for development or include detailed land use policies. It is a framework that should be used 
to inform Strategic Development Plans (SDPs) at the regional level and Local Development Plans 
(LDPs) at the Local Authority level (i.e. WGs objective is to have 3 tiers of development plan; 
National – NDF; Regional – SDP; Local – LDP). It is the role of LDPs to interpret the NDF and SDPs, 
formulating relevant land use policies and allocating sites for development in response to the 

Page 123

Agenda Item 8



overarching strategic direction of the higher tier development plans. The NDF clearly states that 
decisions regarding the scale and location of growth in individual settlements should be made 
within LDPs.

4.1.3 The NDF consultation period ends on 15th November and any comments will be considered by the 
WG scrutiny arrangements in May to June 2020.  WG then propose to adopt the NDF in the autumn 
of 2020. By responding to this consultation the NWEAB reserves the option of contributing to WGs 
scrutiny arrangements.

4.1.4 There are eleven outcomes that the NDF aims to achieve over the next twenty years.

A Wales where people live.... 

1. and work in connected, inclusive and healthy places
2. in vibrant rural places with access to homes, jobs and services
3. in distinctive regions that tackle health and socio-economic inequality through sustainable 

growth
4. in places with a thriving Welsh Language
5. and work in towns and cities which are a focus and springboard for sustainable growth
6. in places where prosperity, innovation and culture are promoted
7. in places where travel is sustainable
8. in places with world-class digital infrastructure
9. in places that sustainably manage their natural resources and reduce pollution
10. in places with biodiverse, resilient and connected ecosystems
11. in places which are decarbonised

4.1.5 These eleven outcomes are overarching ambitions based upon the national planning policy 
principles and sustainable placemaking outcomes set out within Planning Policy Wales.

4.2. NDF Strategic and Spatial Choices

4.2.1 The NDF broadly identifies where large scale change and nationally important developments 
should be focused over the next twenty years. The Spatial Strategy has three components and sets 
out:

 Where in Wales growth should be focused;
 How growth should be planned and managed; and
 How we should power and heat places using renewable energy and district heat networks;
 There are three main urban clusters in Wales which have historically attracted people to 

live and work due to the industries located there, which include:
- Cardiff, Newport and the Valleys
- Swansea Bay and Llanelli
- Wrexham and Deeside

4.2.2 The NDF recognises these as economically distinctive areas that support a range of businesses and 
enterprises. They are important to the economy in Wales, therefore, the NDF seeks to promote 
their continued growth and regeneration by focusing large scale employment opportunities and 
housing growth predominantly within these areas. Outside these areas, several important 
regional centres have been identified which should seek to retain and enhance their commercial 
and public service base through their relevant SDPs and LDPs, these regional areas are:

 Carmarthen

Page 124



 Pembrokeshire Haven towns
 Aberystwyth
 Llandrindod Wells
 Newtown
 Caernarfon
 Bangor
 Coastal towns from Llandudno to Prestatyn

4.2.3 The NDF also sets out 33 polices to guide the preparation of SDPs and LDPs across Wales.  Not all 
policies within the NDF will apply to North Wales as some relate to the Southern regions. 

4.3. General comments on the NDF

4.3.1 The NDF has been produced in a succinct style and reflects the speed by which WG intend to take 
the document though to adoption (i.e. 12 months from now).  Whilst the principle of an NDF which 
has more of a planning and development focus is welcomed, as a replacement for the Wales 
Spatial Plan, the draft NDF currently represents a series of high level positive Welsh Government 
policy intentions, some of which are portrayed in a spatial manner.

4.3.2 Given the lack of development of SDPs in Wales to date, the NDF is an opportunity for WG to 
require regions to produce SDPs whilst providing clear guidance as to what is expected of such 
plans, as well as how and what relationship there should be between the NDF, SDPs, and LDPs as 
material considerations in guiding how much development takes place and where.

4.3.3 Given the brevity of the draft NDF, it is not clear where the evidence is to support the policy 
ambitions laid out within it. In particular, it is uncertain where the evidence is on viability and 
deliverability for the policy proposals which would provide their soundness – a test upon which 
LDPs are examined.

4.3.4 For example, the use of housing need figures in the NDF is confusing given that these figures bear 
no relationship to the housing requirement figures in LDPs. They appear to be mere predications 
of housing growth based on modelling undertaken elsewhere and now applied to Wales.  Initially, 
these overall figures appear potentially low and unambitious, contradicting several other policy 
areas of the draft NDF which promote growth areas and economic prosperity.

4.3.5 The NDF should also set the context for decisions taken on Developments of National Significance 
(DNS) yet it is silent on this relationship. There also seems to be a lack of reference to the provision 
of sufficient infrastructure to accommodate growth in key areas, as well as the mechanisms and 
interactions with key stakeholders and providers necessary to co-ordinate growth.  By sufficient 
infrastructure to accommodate growth the NDF needs to be clearer in terms of issues such as 
roads, water, electric gas, digital, electric charging infrastructure, schools of a sufficient size and 
standard, hospitals, doctor surgeries, dental practices etc. all things needed to meet the needs of 
a growing population and a developing economy over the next 20 years and beyond.

4.4. Comments relating to the NDF Spatial Strategy

4.4.1 The draft NDF fails to take the opportunity not only provide guidance to the development plan 
levels below the NDF (i.e. SDP and LDP) but also misses the chance to connect with clear regional 
growth visions and agendas, such as the strong economic ambition vision we have here in North 
Wales. Recognition of such linkages would have then provided a meaningful framework to define 
the scope and context of an SDP at the next level down.

Page 125



4.4.2 In a North Wales context, there also appears to be some conflict between recognition of the work 
that has been underway for some time in defining the collective Growth Vision through the 
Economic Ambition Board, the infrastructure investment elements of which are already supported 
by Government funding, and the designation in the NDF of ‘Deeside’ and Wrexham as a priority 
growth area. There is also a lack of recognition of importance of the cross border economic 
relationships that exist with the Mersey-Dee Alliance, for example. Whilst reference is made to a 
role for coastal towns between Caernarfon and Prestatyn, there is a lack of clarity as to what the 
NDF is trying to say about priorities for the region and which parts of the region will contribute in 
what ways? For example:

 What is actually meant by ‘Deeside’ as the Spatial Strategy map identifies most of 
Flintshire? Does the NDF actually mean North East Flintshire?

 In contrast, the whole of Wrexham is referred to despite the dominance of Wrexham Town 
and adjacent satellite towns and industrial areas, and where there is a large rural area with 
limited growth potential?

 With low levels of housing need identified for North Wales in the draft NDF, where is this 
housing to be provided and how does this relate to a focus for growth set out in the NDF, 
or planned growth in LDPs and the provision of housing to support the economic ambition 
of the area, and what happens in the other Local Authorities in North Wales which are not 
in the North East Wales proposed growth area?

 Given the identification of North East Wales as a priority growth area, would the definition 
of an extensive Green Belt on the border with England be counter-intuitive to this long 
term growth ambition? 

 The need to recognize the diversity of North Wales, which on the one hand is 
predominantly rural much of which needs protecting, whilst on the other hand ensuring a 
spread of economic development across the region including within and serving our rural 
communities i.e. sustainable development that recognizes the need to maintain, and 
support our rural communities.

4.5. Comments on the specific NDF policies and their impact on the North Wales region

4.5.1 Policies 1, 2 and 3 – Sustainable Urban Growth; Supporting Urban Centres and Public 
Investment, Public Buildings and Publicly Owned Land

This trio of policies reinforces WGs recent “Town Centre First” ambition of directing appropriate 
development initially towards urban centres and encouraging the public sector to intervene in 
bring such sites forward.  This should be done in a rational manner, thereby acknowledging that 
urban sites are not without constraints and that development should only be undertaken in areas 
here the infrastructure can absorb it.

4.5.2 Policy 4 – Supporting Rural Communities

Whilst this NDF policy is well intentioned, it lacks a precise definition of what ‘rural’ means, leaving 
this instead to lower level plans to do so. It is not clear, therefore, as to what scale of rural town 
or community the NDF feels is sustainable to accommodate growth, of what type, and at what 
scale. There is a lack of recognition that in many rural contexts the loss of facilities that have 
already taken place over time (village shops, schools, pubs, banks/post offices etc.) has already 
made many rural villages and communities unsustainable in terms of locating growth, and the 
proposition that enabling growth will result in these facilities returning needs testing and may 
need government support. There does not appear to be sufficient linkages drawn out across 
policies 2-4 in the NDF that explain in any hierarchical sense either the spatial relationship between 

Page 126



‘urban’ and ‘rural’ or the varying levels of sustainability to accommodate growth and 
development.

4.5.3 Policy 5 – Delivering Affordable Homes

Whilst the principle of providing more affordable homes via the planning system is supported, WG 
seem to fail to recognise that planning is only one of many ways to secure affordable housing. It 
should be clearer in what role the planning system plays relative to other sources such as the work 
of RSLs, Local Authority management of its own housing stock, as well as proactive schemes such 
as the Council’s building their own homes. When the NDF refers to the need for ‘a shift in the 
delivery model’ to deliver more homes, it then fails to explain what this means or how and when 
this will be implemented. Equally, while the NDF policy talks about “ensuring that funding for 
affordable homes is effectively allocated and used” it does not say what money. Is it new WG 
funding, if so what, how and when this will be provided, or is there an expectation that the private 
developers “pay”. This latter approach does cause viability issues particularly outside of the cities 
and larger towns. This is far from a strategic approach to the increase in delivery of affordable 
homes in North Wales or Wales as a whole. In contrast to the a Council’s LDP, which has had to 
carry out a detailed viability assessment to determine the levels of viable and deliverable 
affordable housing within the plan, there seems a lack of similar empirical evidence to support the 
affordable need levels set out in the NDF. A number of North Wales Council’s viability studies 
show, for example, that if a policy requiring even up to 20% affordable housing (let alone the 50% 
suggested in the NDF) on its LDP allocations, would not be viable on most, if not all of the 
allocations.

4.5.4 Policy 6 – Planning in Mobile Action Zones

It is not clear as to how or when the Mobile Action Zones will be identified and incorporated into 
the NDF and what option for scrutiny they will be given particularly where they may pose conflicts 
for sensitive areas such as the National Parks or AONBs.

4.5.5 Policy 7 – Ultra Low Emission Vehicles

Discussions with Scottish Power Energy Networks about infrastructure capacity in relation to 
accommodating LDP growth and other policies such as the encouragement of charging points via 
policy PC5, has highlighted that there is a fundamental issue of upgrading the grid infrastructure, 
both domestic and commercial, before the roll out of charging points can be seriously considered. 
However, there is no timeframe for this nor an understanding of how this is to be funded. What 
joint working has there been between the NDF and the power providers to determine the national 
strategic approach to the provision of this infrastructure?

4.5.6 Policy 8 – Strategic framework for biodiversity enhancement and ecosystem resilience

Whilst well intentioned and supported in principle, the policy relies on things that have yet to be 
put in place e.g. Area Statements. There needs to be greater clarity and collaborative working from 
NRW’s perspective to ensure that the necessary framework is provided to future SDPs and LDPs 
to address the intentions behind this and other similar NDF policy intentions.

4.5.7 Renewable Energy Policies 10-13

Welsh Government have set ambitious targets for 70% of electricity consumption to be generated 
from renewable energy sources by 2030. Policies 10-13 of the NDF relate to the development of 
renewable energy technologies. The spatial priority is for large scale wind and solar development 
to be directed towards priority areas as shown on the ‘Wales Energy Priority Areas’ map (see 

Page 127



below). A review of landscape and visual impact identified the priority areas as the most 
appropriate locations to accommodate landscape change. The NDF states that large scale on shore 
wind and solar energy development is not acceptable within National Parks or Areas of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).

The priority areas identified for wind and solar are generalised and it is difficult to interpret their 
precise extents from the NDF map. It is also difficult to understand the process used to identify 
these areas or whether they have followed the Toolkit approach advocated for Renewable Energy 
Assessments in PPW, to support LDP policies on renewable energy. It is a concern that no account 
is taken of the potential negative impact that renewable development can have adjacent to, or 
within, the setting of sensitive areas such as the AONBs or Snowdonia National Park. The level of 
detail included within policies 10 and 11 seem at odds with the strategic nature of the NDF and 
are more akin to detailed development management criteria based policies found in LDPs. Given 
the level of assessment that is required by the various criteria to demonstrate suitability or 
compliance, and whilst are understandable requirements to determine sustainability, these 
requirements seem at odds with the general statement that within the priority areas there is “a 
presumption in favour of development for these schemes and an associated acceptance of 
landscape change”. When such detailed assessments are required by the criteria that follow there 
is an implication that they have not been carried out to a sufficient level when defining the priority 
areas.

4.6. The Regions

4.6.1 The NDF identifies three regions in Wales:

 North Wales
 Mid & South West Wales
 South East Wales 

4.7. The following policies specifically refer to the North Wales region

4.7.1 Policy 17 – Wrexham and Deeside

From earlier comments relating to the spatial strategy, there is uncertainty as to what is meant by 
‘Deeside’ as in a Flintshire context this diminishes the wider contribution that many areas within 
Flintshire make towards the economic prosperity of the County and sub region. This is in contrast 
to the reference to Wrexham as a whole where its contribution is potentially more focused in 
terms of the main town and satellite settlements and industrial areas.

What is also unclear is that the NDF places so much weight on ‘Deeside and Wrexham’ being a 
focus for growth, but does not clarify what the role of the remaining areas of the North Wales 
regions will be. This does not help to set any context or guidance for the development of a SDP 
and is a missed opportunity to recognise the contribution of the wider region, as well as identifying 
the regional issues that could be addressed via an SDP. This would also appear at odds with the 
plans of the NWEAB via the adopted Economic Ambition Strategy and emerging Growth Deal to 
share growth across the region via sustainable development reflecting the predominantly rural 
nature of our environment and communities.

Whilst the NDF talks about priorities for growth, its approach to identifying unmet housing need 
and yet not quantifying the sorts of growth levels required to be ambitious and support economic 
development is inconsistent. The NDF is not prescriptive in relation to economic growth which 
would assist in the development of a regional SDP, instead just focussing on one specific aspect of 
meeting housing need, and specifically affordable need. There should be a much more 

Page 128



comprehensive and strategic focus for a NDF than just affordable housing, which, whilst 
acknowledged as a key priority, is also not properly explained in terms of either the change 
required to deliver more, or how this will be supported and funded by the Welsh Government (see 
comments relating to Policy 5 – para 4.5.3). It would also have been more strategic to have 
considered economic growth as the key driver where housing is an important part of the 
supporting infrastructure to help support economic change and delivery of growth and jobs.

The NDF is also silent on any form of Rural Development Strategy approach to the large rural areas 
of the region that can also in a balanced and sustainable way, make important contributions to 
growth, development, economic prosperity and well–being.

4.7.2 Policy 18 – Managed growth of North Wales Coastal Settlements

One obvious issue with such a focus on coastal urban areas for ‘managed growth’ is the issue of 
flood risk and how this has been taken into account in putting this policy approach forward.  Also 
how are “coastal towns” defined? e.g. Llandudno is clearly a coastal town, is Abergele or 
Bodelwyddan classed as “coastal towns”? Issues relating to development and flood risk will be 
further constrained if the focus of the review of TAN15 is to further restrict development in flood 
risk areas. There is also the unclear consideration as to the sustainability of this approach in terms 
of areas such as connectivity and transport infrastructure to support this strategy, as well as the 
role that key inland settlements currently play in respective LDPs, but where the NDF is silent on 
the role they should continue to play.

4.7.3 Policy 19 – Green Belts in North Wales

It is unclear why the WG has now made such a clear statement in support of Green Belts in the 
North Wales region, particularly in prescribing that the area north east of Wrexham “must” have 
a green belt. Most if not all LDPs in the regional have followed PPW and used a form of green 
wedge or green barrier approach to manage urban form, and the obvious consequence of shifting 
to a preference for green belts is the degree of permanence their designation then confirms. The 
principle also seems at odds with identifying ‘Deeside and Wrexham’ as a regional focus for 
strategic growth.

4.7.4 Policy 20 – Port of Holyhead

The Welsh Government fails to fully acknowledge the international role that the Port of Holyhead 
plays.  The NDF needs to be amended to reflect the importance of the port in that context. This is 
clearly relevant to the emerging Growth Deal.

4.7.5 Policy 21 – Transport Links to North West England

There is a lack of reference to the need to invest in and improve inter and intra-regional transport 
infrastructure and also, whilst the focus seems to be on improving cross border connectivity with 
England, it is not clear what priority is given to improving north-south links with Wales.  
Emphasising the need to improve linkages from North Wales to Cardiff, Swansea and the main 
towns in South Wales is a missed opportunity in the draft NDF.

4.7.6 Policy 22 – North West Wales and Energy

Whilst the NDF acknowledges the region’s potential for an active nuclear industry, it underplays 
the role which nuclear can play as a low carbon energy source, particularly at a time when the 
Welsh Government have recently declared a climate emergency. 

Page 129



5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1. None.

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1. None.

7. STAFFING IMPLICATIONS

7.1. None.

8. IMPACT ON EQUALITIES

8.1. The NDF seeks to increase prosperity and reduce inequalities in Wales. The NDF seeks to 
contribute to the WG ambition to increase the percentage of people who speak Welsh daily by 
10% by 2050 by ensuring that the Welsh speaking communities within North West Wales continue 
to thrive.

9. CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN

9.1. Undertaken with all NWEAB partners through the work of the Executive Group.

APPENDICES:

Appendix 1 Link to the National Development Framework:
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2019-
08/Draft%20National%20Development%20Framework.pdf 

Appendix 2 Proposed response of the NWEAB to the consultation on the draft National 
Development Framework

STATUTORY OFFICERS RESPONSE:

i. Monitoring Officer – Host Authority:

“The National Development Framework forms part of the framework of development 
plans under the Planning (Wales) Act 2015. As a consequence it is a document of high and 
long term significance and of particular regional relevance. Given its role as a lead body 
for the development of the region it is appropriate that the Economic Ambition Board is 
able to provide a response to the consultation.”

ii. Statutory Finance Officer (the Host Authority’s Section 151 Officer):

“I note that section 4.1.2 of the report refers to Strategic Development Plans, but the 
Welsh Government's consultation on the National Development Framework does not 
reveal whether additional resources will be available for local authorities to prepare those 
Strategic Development Plans.”

Page 130

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2019-08/Draft%20National%20Development%20Framework.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2019-08/Draft%20National%20Development%20Framework.pdf


APPENDIX 2

Draft Response to be sent on behalf on the NWEAB:

The North Wales Economic Ambition Board thanks Welsh Government for providing the opportunity to 
comment on the draft National Development Framework.  The following matters have been raised by the 
NWEAB in relation to the NDF:

The NWEAB is concerned that the NDF does not accurately reflect the Board’s spatial vision for 
growth in the region.  In particular, the NDF places undue onus on the extent of economic growth 
which should be planned for in North East Wales, whilst making little provision for growth in the 
remainder of the region.  This is contrary to the NWEAB adopted Economic Ambition Strategy and 
the emerging Growth Deal with UK Government and Welsh Government, which seeks a more even 
distribution of growth across the region, recognising the diversity of the region and the significant 
rural area, which requires sustainable growth for its communities.

The NDF should be more explicit in where the evidence to support its policies and strategy can be 
found.

1. Clarity needs to be provided in relation to the derivation of the housing projection figures 
for North Wales and how these are intended to be used in Strategic and Local 
Development Plans in the future.  In addition, WG should clarify how it expects that the 
ambition of providing 51% of all homes as affordable within the next five years will be 
achieved.  We believe such a figure is not viable if it is to be achieved via the planning 
process i.e. such a requirement will stifle/prevent much development throughout the 
region.

2. WG should provide immediate clarity on what weight should be placed on the emerging 
NDF prior to its adoption for Local Planning Authorities in their development management 
decisions and policy making.

3. The NDF should acknowledge and reflect the influence of the emerging Regional Economic 
Strategies and ensure that both documents are complimentary and consistent with each 
other. Of particular concern is a lack of recognition of our own Economic Ambition 
Strategy and emerging Growth Deal.

4. WG should provide greater clarity on the role that the extensive rural areas and the 
communities that serve those rural areas (e.g. the towns and villages) of North Wales, 
including AONBs and the Snowdonia National Park, should play in meeting the objectives 
of the NDF.

5. The NDF should make specific reference to the role that Holyhead should play as a 
Regional Growth Centre since it is the gateway which connects North Wales with Ireland 
and is of key importance to servicing the region and UK as a whole.

6. WG should clarify within the NDF the role that the nuclear industry should play in meeting 
the future energy demands of Wales and the extent to which facilities within North Wales 
will supply the nation. With WG having declared a climate emergency, the need for more 
low carbon energy has increased and the role that nuclear may play in meeting that need 
should be re-visited and made clear.

7. The NDF should provide greater clarity on how the Welsh language will be protected, 
strengthened and developed within the North Wales region.

Page 131



8. Whilst the NDF’s support for the managed growth of the region’s coastal towns is noted, 
the NDF should acknowledge and address the constraints to development which already 
exist in those settlements e.g. the risk of coastal/alluvial flooding, or the lack of essential 
infrastructure both physical and digital. Clearer definition of what is a “coastal town” is 
required as some of our potential growth areas in the region are not “on” the coast but 
are close to it.

9. The NWEAB acknowledges the role that renewable technologies can play in meeting the 
nation’s energy needs, but the approach of the NDF on this matter and the promotion of 
Wind and Solar Priority Areas should be further refined.  The NDF should reflect and 
acknowledge the impact that renewable energy development can have on sensitive 
landscapes (e.g. National parks and AONBs) even when it is located outside those areas. 
Greater clarity and further refinement of the Priority Areas should be undertaken prior to 
the NDF being adopted as it is felt that, in North Wales, the Areas are too extensive.

10. The NDF should clarify what new or reinforced grid infrastructure is needed to bring 
forward renewable developments within the Priority Areas identified.

11. Whilst the NDF acknowledges that strategic North - South transport links are a constraint 
on growth, it does not make proposals in relation to how and when these should be 
improved. This should be addressed in the final version of the NDF.

12. Similarly, the NDF should make reference to strategic transport projects (e.g. the 3rd Menai 
crossing  and the North Wales Metro) and how they can ensure that transport along the 
North Wales corridor (from Wrexham to Holyhead) is effective and provides access to jobs, 
services and facilities whilst promoting better connections throughout and along that 
region.

13. The NDF should make a clear statement on how general infrastructure requirements will 
be provided/funded over the next 20 years and beyond in order to support growth e.g. 
how will sufficient infrastructure such as roads, water, electric gas, digital, electric 
charging infrastructure, schools of a sufficient size and standard, hospitals, doctor 
surgeries, dental practices etc. be funded.

WG should consider the above comments from the NWEAB and reflect them in the final version 
of the National Development Framework. The NWEAB would be happy to clarify any of the above 
comments with WG, if necessary.

Page 132


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	5 GROWTH DEAL UPDATE
	6 ESF FUNDING APPLICATION
	7 REGIONAL SKILLS AND EMPLOYMENT PLAN
	Item 7 - Appendix 1 - NWRSP DRAFT SKILLS PLAN version 12 03.10.19
	Item 7 - Appendix 1 - Skills Plan Annex 1 RSP Membership oval
	Item 7 - Appendix 1 - Skills Plan Annex 2 List of Employers consulted
	Item 7 - Appendix 1 - Skills Plan Annex 3 Sector Infographics

	8 NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK

